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Major Accomplishments
RER

2022

—_————

May
5A
> The Group was awarded as “Outstanding
listed securities and futures companies”
by Oriental Daily News again in recognition
of the Group’s efforts in strengthening and | - P

consolidating online and offline services ﬁ j» @ =% ~
during the pandemic, providing customers k/ RET

with “safety, security and reassurance” R O
in their investment, creating an all-win e
situation of “customers, shareholders and VS

company”. The Group is pleased to be
recognised as a Chinese-based securities
company in maintaining a leading position
in the highly competitive securities industry.
K%%Hﬁ%%ﬁﬁi&%ﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁﬁé%%&
BB EmiERE] - J«Xi'i%ﬁ’flﬁ:g% The Group was awarded as “Outstanding listed
Hif R b M2 EF EF TARE - E%Egif‘{‘_tﬁ securities and futures companies” by Oriental Daily
BE L ZE T T HGEIRE - News, and Mr. Hui Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief
BEUEAT W= ° $E @4 e Executive Officer of the Group, received the award on
= o b 5| e oo behalf of the GI’OU N .
BEMANBEXTEETRASERT s amm(E AR AE BEEERAH LR
L i 45 3 2 & R %) HAEERTESRTRERT BN EERRE
=

{2 2 Yo
N

=y

=T e

June

67

>  The “Win HK$1 million worth of gold for
guessing Hang Seng Index Closing Points
right (A 148 H1008 & €)” event held
by the Group has always been popular in
the public. In the third round, a consolation
prize (% & #€) of HK$30,000 worth of gold
was created to ensure that there were
prizes of gold every round, in order to let
every investor embrace a “gold dream” and
to test participants’ insights and luck.
REBEPH[HP ’\‘ETE m100EE 2 [JEB)  In order to thank all participants for their supports to the
— RS KEE:D - F=MO 4[N L%  event, except for the “Grand Prize”, we also created a

1= o o 4 s 1o “consolation prize” in the third round to ensure that there
SETLE R[] {%” MUE K - & were prizes of gold every round, without any fakes!

BRANBE-BIZESE] ZER2NE sTes-—RoBEULBEOSRE  BIAKIS 5=
AR S F3E & BAPHERRHE] REMNEER  BELE

BARSEHEEERAR | —F | Z=FFH 5



Major Accomplishments

RERL

August

8H

>

The Group has been awarded the “Hong
Kong Top Service Brand Awards (Top
Mark)” by Hong Kong Brand Development
Council for 8 consecutive years, fully
endorsing our continuous efforts in
developing our brand, which makes our
brand known to every household in Hong
Kong and lays the foundation

for creating a leading quality

brand among Chinese-
based securities companies
nowadays.
REEEESFEELERER
MEE[H B L EIZER (Topk)] R
B REAEEEREREIE
WEL N  SHMEBEEER
BERE  BEAEITEHSKSAH
EE-—FNWEBEME -

The Group always upholds the
philosophy of “Client-oriented”. We
have been always moving forward
without any stops, proceeding
aggressively to seek perfection,
and have successfully won the
trust and support from a broad
group of customers.
REE—MFREURRLINES
EER—ARBCKERA « KT
# o BIBER - BmRE - K E
FEAREFEEMFH -

S REBEN
016 TP SERVGE BAD

armssRamARAD

wiisy
BT SuT SEctmme

September

9H

>

The “Baobao” and “Doudou” apps which
were heavily invested by the Group, once
again won the “Outstanding One-Stop
Mobile Application for Securities and
Futures Trading” by the Metro Broadcast
and The Chamber of Hong Kong Computer
Industry in the “Hong Kong Digital Brand
Awards 2022”.
AEBEESITENRA [EE IFM[E S ] APP
BEFTREALESESHESEHITEH
o SUHS an B K 422022 w9 [ B — 3 =X 3% &5
MERGFHRERARENXIANE -

=% mEeTRCBrROADCAST

" remannan

Mr. Hui Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, attended the ceremony of “Hong
Kong Digital Brand Awards 2022” to receive the award
on behalf of the Group.
AEERTEEFRTREARTENEERRETEELR
[ 75 B B fR K 882022 I I ER 32 5F ©
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Major Accomplishments

KRERL

BIESETHEERRAR | —F—_—/

October

104

>

The Group published the Economic
Market Outlook Survey Report for the
Fourth Quarter and Next Year at the media
sharing session to analyse the latest trend
of the market in future. The attendees
included lots of media agencies and the
survey report was widely reported by the
media.

AEBREBENZG LAMIEEERASF
KEATHEREREAESRSE] oK
RATMRMED  AERERSIAREE
B ERSARE -

November

114
>

The Group was invited by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
("SFC") to act as the guest speaker for
“Embracing new generation of investors
through online platforms” of its annual
event — “SFC Compliance Forum 2022”.
The Group attached high importance
to this event and delegated Mr. Hui
Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer on behalf of the Group,
to discuss with representatives from SFC
on issues such as Hong Kong’s future
finance technology development as an
international financial centre, the latest
cyber security, the opportunities and
challenges for Hong Kong as an Asian
equities hub and the opportunities and
Challen?es of online platforms.

AEBEE ST AR HNELEREAS
(BEE ) MBETEFERE —[20228
Bl EnE (B EFAMAH— R
Ge)EdEE AEEEEEE EHH
AEEROBAE RN EER A BE
Bw sk — FE B A S D
DARSBHREE RENERTS
DB ETIE AT A SR A EE T kR
BETAMMER KB SHE -
—EFEW

During the media sharing session, Mr. Hui Yik Bun
(middle), Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Group, released the survey results and analysed
the latest trends of the market with Mr. Chik Yiu Fai,
Stanley (left), Head of the Research Department, and
Mr. Chan Wai Ming (right), senior manager of Sales and
Customers Department.

HAAEERTEERITHRAHFENEE(PIRCTES
P RAMAEERTERAARBEEERELE(L)R
HEREFHaREKEBRERLEB) ST AT E

sy
Mr. Hui Yik Bun (second from the right side), Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Group,
attended “SFC Compliance Forum 2022” as a guest
speaker.

AEERTESFTRITBARFTENLE(E D) HFEI2022

EEEARWMEITRRRS -

AT



Major Accomplishments

RERL

December

12R

>

Fully sponsored by Chicago Mercantile
Exchange ("CME"), the Group organised
the Competition for Futures Genius (&8
¥ FH8)) and has been dedicated to
investor education, the purpose of which is
to enhance the general public’s knowledge
of financial management and investment
by inviting them to participate in regular
investment simulation competitions with
different themes. The competition was well
received and attracted more than 1,000
investment master-hands.
REBKEZMFRERZA(ZEMAD 2
NER)  BP(HBFEHEE) —ERNAE
BREEHBLEH— 9N THEHRTRAEE
WEBRKRELE  HEBEBEATRZ2MN 5
ERREEATZNEMREENH  HE
REZZ - Rl BTFERERFLE -

Mr. Hui Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, presented the awards to the
winners of Open Group and Youth Group of the
Competition for Futures Genius ((Hi18 F T8 ).
AEBATESHRITBAHTEWEERERRET(H
WMEBE)ARARTFHETE -
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Major Accomplishments
RER

2023
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January

1A

> The Group was awarded the “ListCo
Excellence Awards 2022”, which was
jointly presented by organisations including
AM730, PR Asia and IFENG HK STOCKS
to recognise the Group's outstanding
performance in business development,
corporate management, and operating
policies over the years.
755 B 8 7 FHCAM730) R[22 )0 2 B L Bk &
2 (EEREABR)SNZFNED £/
NAIK#2022]  MREAEEZFRE X
BER CEEEREEFHNEMRE -

February

2R

> Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the

Group, is known for his philanthropy and
sponsored the 2023 HOPES RUNNER
hosted by the Haven of Hope Christian
Service. Mr. Yip Mow Lum has been
supporting the fundraising activities
organised by the charity organisation
Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation for
13 years. This year, we became the title
sponsor of the “Joyful CNY Charity Walk”
event.
REEBERFEXMREEROAE - RAE)
BB 1% g % P 2 [2023 HOPES RUNNER
BELAGBREST BEXNREETRIH
RERBIOBTHIRRNEFREHRE
+=F  SFETRZREPLBESTRNE)
EE ©

=548

T /

I3y —m . rF P N N\ N
LISTCO EqCE@ENCE AWAI

#i A TR
LS

EKEE R A S KM ] 5 2% B EHATXE B

B EHATASE i EmLE Rii b sk B EHATRE

EES- 4 e b A S K i ES: 3 il Em AT KL B

RY EHATRE HEEHATX Bl bR AT R B b AT X

Tk R ERAT KL BHERAT KR B

Mr. Hui Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, received the award on behalf of the
Group.
AEERTESRITRAHTENEERREHERE
I8 o

J
i

5 W A E

Mr. Hui Yik Bun, Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, led approximately 50 frontline and
backline employees to participate in the 2023 HOPES
RUNNER.
AREERTESRITBARTEW T EXFELS0E AR
K 1% 7 B T i #2023 HOPES RUNNERZ & 4 i i & &
=110



Major Accomplishments

RERL

10

March
3A
> In 2023, Hong Kong has officially entered

the stage of post-pandemic recovery.
Although the city is still not fully restored
to its pre-pandemic scenario, the public
are beaming with pleasure again. In order
to share the joy of the recovery with our
customers, the Group has spent more
than a million HK Dollars to resume the
booking of the entire cinema for Invitation
for Theatergoing event this year, with a
record-breaking 26 shows in a row. Nearly
5,000 friends and customers were invited
to watch Hollywood’s blockbuster "Ant-
Man [lI" in Causeway Bay, which became
the talk of the town. This has showcased
the style of the leading position of the
Group in the Chinese-based securities
firms.

—EC=F BEAREABARBES 2K
BEMELINARETERERBENES - B
TREXZFEROERMELAIAER Rt
HEFPHZEBRERNEY  AEBSFRE
BEETMEERNBEFBEIEE  EH
26% - WX TR F R AC 8% - HBAF 5,000 4F
REBEFBERBEZERBEE(EKS) il
BRETEAB—F KAMPRGE R
EE SR -

iE
o

W
gy ;al‘.‘m,,

Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Group, Mr. Hui Yik
Bun, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, Mr. Raymond Wong, the senior advisor of
the Group and Mr. Chik Yiu Fai, Stanley, the Head of the
Group’s Research Department, together attended the
Invitation for Theatergoing event.
EEAEBEFERMELE  MITESRITREHTE
Wik afERERMEERMEDLEERELE
—RILEHEHREES -

The Group invited nearly 5,000 customers to watch
“Ant-Man [II” at 26 shows under the “Invitation for

Theatergoing” event.
REBEFBHE ] BRH26% - BFE 50008 F F & E (%
%3 °
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Major Accomplishments
RER

March
3R
> In the year 2022/23, the Group won F—= = - = =

four First Awards by HKEX including: - N\ 12 =% >
“Top Brokers — Equity Index Futures & ¢+ ° ﬁﬂE 7IA FVA %
Options”, “Top Brokers — Stock Futures | \ BRICIL S sl

& Options”, “Top Brokers — Weekly '

Index Options” and “Top Retail Brokers
— Futures & Options”, which is fully
showcasing the strength of the Group.
AREBEERRERGM_T__/==FF 1
MEIE—%]181E  BF&ERLLHE —

BERBRINPERIE ] [RBRELE  |n the year 2022/23, the Group was granted four First

— RERERERE] [RERELH — Awards by HKEX, which achieved remarkable results.
BIESHE | AR TR E R PR A AEELIEE R FT2022/23FENIB [ — ] K88 - K4E %

—HELHE] REAKEENERL - n

BABLEREBERAR | —T——/ —=FF®W 11



Branch Network

1T R A

HONG KONG & &

Hong Kong Headquarters
BERBRER

Central Branch
R AT
Wanchai Branch

DT
KOWLOON h. 8

Kowloon Headquarters
NEBRER
Mongkok Branch
HBD1T

Kwun Tong Branch
BES1T

Sham Shui Po Branch
RIKYE D17

10/F & 23/F (Sales & Customer Services Department),

Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central
FREBETNIHRAKLEEANEI0E2ERBELE
(HERE PR )

Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 58-60 Queen’s Road Central
HIREFREFE8-60E IR A A EEE

Shop 1, G/F, Gold Swan Commercial Building,

438-444 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai

R R FF 4384445 R B /2 © 157 % K B T15% 48

Mezzanine Floor and First Floor, Honour House, 375-381 Nathan Road
NEEBHBEI5-3BIREDAERERIERE

1/F, Golden Hill Commercial Building, 39-41 Argyle Street, Mongkok
HEATEEZH0-NRSIUHERNEE

Shops 4-6, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road, Kwun Tong
BREZESRELTT O T4E65H

G/F, 39 Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po

WK RN ET 395 B i T

NEW TERRITORIES #i 5

Tsuen Wan Branch
2ENTT

Tai Po Branch
REHTT

Sheung Shui Branch
EXkD1T

Tuen Mun Branch

BT

G/F & Cockloft, 262 Sha Tsui Road, Kwong Fat Building, Tsuen Wan
SEDHBRERAEM T RER

G/F, 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po

R EREI41-1455 T

Shop D, G/F & Cockloft, 99 San Fung Avenue North, Sheung Shui
EKF LI TD&

Shop 28, G/F, Honley Court, 94-110 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road,

Tuen Mun

HPIAEE G B 94-110 SRR AP LT 23 K&

BRIGHT SMART MOBILE TEACHING CENTRE B A #2H&H

12

(852) 2537 1371

(852) 3961 6688

(852) 3127 0888

(852) 3604 1888

(852) 3188 0928

(852) 3768 0888

(852) 3666 5688

(852) 3929 2798

(852) 3763 3388

(852) 3768 7188

(852) 3193 1688

(852) 6282 6635
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Awards
4218

1. Metro Broadcast/The Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry — Hong 7.  HKEX “Top Brokers” — Stock Futures & Options

Kong Digital Brand Awards 2022 8. CME Group — Excellent Partner Award 2022
2. Oriental Daily News — Outstanding listed securities and futures companies 9. Eastweek — Best Brand in Greater China
3. am730/PR Asia/IFENG HK STOCKS — ListCo Excellence Awards 2022 10. Joyful CNY Charity Walk (Title Sponsor)
4.  HKEX “Top Brokers” — Equity Index Futures & Options 11.  The Community Chest BEA Charity Golf Day 2023
5. HKEX “Top Brokers” — Weekly Index Options 12. The Hong Kong Council of Social Service — 10 Years Plus Caring Company
6. HKEX “Top Retail Brokers” — Futures & Options Logo
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

Year ended 31 March
HZ=A=t-ALEE

Increment/
2023 2022  (Decrement)
#m,/
—EC-= —E-— R )
$000 $'000 %
Tr T
1 )
Revenue A 881,733 1,068,012 (17.4%)
Other income HoAth U 5 326,157 190,280 71.4%
Profit from operations g m 806,397 780,726 3.3%
Profit before taxation BR 3 AR A 692,195 656,214 5.5%
Profit for the year F A 7 620,595 561,502 10.5%
Total comprehensive income attributable to BERREMEAKEEE
equity shareholders 620,880 561,345 10.6%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREKRZHGEMW) 36.56 33.08 10.5%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) BREBRNGEWL) 36.56 33.08 10.5%
Special dividend per share declared and paid ~ 5t1,697,296,308 % i% 17 & /& M
on 1,697,296,308 shares (HK cents) Iz ERER R B GBI 70.00 — =
Final dividend per share proposed after the RBREHREEZRE
end of the reporting period (HK cents) FRARERBGEW)
(31 March 2023: 1,697,296,308 shares, (ZZ==%=RA=+—8:
31 March 2022: 1,697,296,308 shares) 1,697,296,308% -
—E--f=ZA=1+—8:
1,697,296,308/% ) 50.00 10.00 400%
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The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong began
in 2020, and it was not until this year that Hong Kong officially
declared its return to normal. The nearly three-year “pandemic
battle” has finally come to an end. Despite the global recovery,
it is a hard fact that the pandemic has completely destroyed
the Hong Kong and global economies, and its aftermath is
difficult for governments around the world to predict. High
inflation and soaring prices everywhere have hard hit people’s
livelihood. Currency depreciation has triggered a round of debt
crisis, which has affected the supply chain, soaring commodity
prices and inflation, and dragging the global economy into a
critical condition. Given the uncertainty of the external economic
outlook, Hong Kong is not immune.

BABLEREBERAR | —FT——/ —=FF®R
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In the past few years, Hong Kong’s economy has been ravaged
by the COVID-19 pandemic. The stock market dropped to
the 1997 level in the prior year; the IPO market was not what
it used to be, and its poor performance has made investors
disheartened; the property market plummeted and market
sentiment dropped sharply. Recession was seen almost across
the board and the economy was in a predicament unseen in
the past 30 years. Although Hong Kong has been on the road
to recovery since last November, and the customs clearance
between mainland China and Hong Kong has resumed, the
economies of mainland China and Hong Kong have thus been
officially connected, it remains uncertain how much the Hong
Kong economy can benefit as it is only recovering from a
prolonged economic depression. One disaster after another,
the United States has been raising interest rates sharply over
the past year, which seems to be able to contain the rapidly
rising inflation, but has brought about a lot of uncertainties
and consequences. Following the Lehman Brothers incident
in 2008, there was another wave of bank failures, leaving
a worrisome global economic outlook. Under the adverse
economic environment, the Hong Kong stock market was also
affected, with a significant decline in turnover. According to
the statistics of the Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited
(“HKEX”), the average daily turnover of HKEX for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year”) was approximately HK$120.3
billion, representing a decrease of approximately 18.4% as
compared to that of approximately HK$147.5 billion for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (the “Prior Year”). However, the results
of Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
remained outstanding, with a consolidated net profit after tax
of approximately HK$621 million for the Year, representing an
increase of 10.5% over the Prior Year, and the total number of
client accounts reaching 547,742.

Thankfully, the Group as a leader of the securities industry, has
been proactive and flexible be the market bull or bear, thus it is
rewarded in spite of adversity. Net profit for the Year amounted
to HK$620.6 million. | am pleased to present the results of the
Group for the Year to the shareholders. The Group recorded a
total revenue for the Year of HK$881.7 million (2022: HK$1,068.0
million), representing a decrease of 17.4% as compared to
that for the Prior Year. In particular, brokerage commission
income fell by 13.4% year on year to HK$598.3 million (2022:
HK$690.8 million). Interest income from margin lending for the
Year amounted to HK$276.9 million (2022: HK$326.1 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 15.1%.

EEEARERNBELTFRINTRBERE
BEHELFESTAZ—ANEFHKTE » FK
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DRER EMERTE  AMBENHER B
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ERWEEEEFRE PR ESNE
NED BEHREELEITAARRE KRR
R EwXBEZL DAFER -SENEHNR
ZERBE—FTERBINE  REEUAT
TH SR EFRBIRMEE AERBRETIET
MEEE TR _ZFT)N\FEEEH2E B
REIBRITAIRES  2HREBEISSAEE
EELHEBERET  BRITAMIFE S 3 2E
HNRPHEER BESERZIREEME
RAR (BRI DEOFTER  BRAREE=
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EET(ZCE-__F 1068088 ET) &L
FETHI7.4% + &P &2 8 WA E598.38
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Profit for the Year increased by 10.5% to HK$620.6 million
(2022: HK$561.5 million) as compared with the Prior Year. Basic
earnings per share were 36.56 HK cents (2022: 33.08 HK cents),
representing a year-on-year increase of 10.5%. To reward all
shareholders of the Company for their continued support over
the years, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company recommended the payment of a final dividend of
50.00 HK cents per share. The Board believes that the payment
of the final dividend will not have any adverse effect on the
underlying assets, business, operations or financial position of
the Group. As at 31 March 2023, the total number of the Group’s
client accounts reached 547,742, representing an increase of
4.0% over that of 526,849 as at 31 March 2022. Client assets
(including cash and stocks) decreased by 9.3% year on year to
approximately HK$58.5 billion (31 March 2022: approximately
HK$64.5 billion). For this outstanding performance, we are
grateful for the long-term support of our clients and the
concerted efforts of our colleagues in overcoming adversity over
the years.

In addition to the solid implementation of the active, flexible
and “client-oriented” business philosophy, the outstanding
performance of the Group was attributed to the following
advantages:

1. Two proprietary trading apps, BS Securities (Baobao) and
BS Futures (Doudou), have been well received by investors
since their eye-catching launch. The following statistics
show that the Group’s unfailing effort paid off:

i. The total number of client accounts increased to over
540,000, representing an increase of approximately
4.0% over the total number of accounts in the Prior
Year;

ii. The number of downloads of Baobao and Doudou
apps rose by approximately 32% as compared with
the Prior Year;

iii.  The number of accounts opened through Baobao and
Doudou apps increased by approximately 34% as
compared with the Prior Year.

BARSEHEEERAR | —F | Z=FFR
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2.

20

Staying abreast of market trend, the Group has adopted
some market-oriented strategies and put forth some offers
such as:

Vi.

Rewards of 20 shares of TraHK (2800.hk) and
10 shares of HSBC (0005.hk) for opening new
accounts;

Rewards of up to 10 shares of Tencent (0700.hk)
for stock transfer, with full refund of transfer fee up
to HK$0.2 million;

Margin financing ratio up to 95%;

Commission of only US$0.008 per share for
trading of US stocks, waiver of platform charge,
and interest rates for margin financing as low as
4.78%;

1-month genuine zero commission for trading of
Hong Kong stocks/A shares/U.S. options, and
lifetime waiver of platform charge;

Free commission for 7 months (pay first and refund
later) for trading of Hong Kong futures and options,
etc.

AEBERKGHE HEZRHTEL RS
R BEEE:

Vi.

B P& 20l & E & € (2800.hk) &
10 /% JE 2 #2£ 1% (0005.hK) :

2 3% = = 100% B8 77 (0700.hk) » 8

REAEZ2HOE 5F208:
R RS EIKF:

EExXk&ERAK0.008% T T
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=
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The Group adheres to its proactive business model and all
trading systems have already been connected to the world’s
major financial markets, allowing clients to trade anytime and
anywhere through the “Baobao” and “Doudou” apps and all
online trading channels. Moreover, the Group has been regularly
optimising and perfecting the functions of all online trading
channels and improving the speed to place an order. The
Group has been continuously enhancing and strengthening the
promotion of the 24-hour Electronic Direct Debit Authorisation
(“eDDA”) Service approved by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority. This service allows clients to deposit money and
trade financial products anytime and anywhere regardless of
time differences and Hong Kong holidays after going through a
simple registration procedure with any bank account.

The Group perpetuated the expansion of its offline network by
operating a total of 13 outlets including Bright Smart Mobile
Teaching Centre, the first of its kind in Hong Kong, and some
branches now open seven days a week, in a bid to provide
clients with considerate services. To further refine this branch
network to serve customers closely, the Group will consider
any potential branch site with low rent, prime location and high
pedestrian flow.

BARSEHEEERAR | —F =FFH
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While the Group is highly recognised by the society for its
services, it has always been upholding the principle of “giving
back to where one takes from” and actively undertaking social
responsibility. Over the years, the Group has been actively
involved in various charitable activities with a keen interest in
the community. Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Group,
is known for his philanthropy and has been supporting the
fundraising activities organised by the charity organisation
Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation for 13 years. This year, we
became the title sponsor of the “Joyful CNY Charity Walk” event,
hoping to promote the publicity and counselling for emotional
health through large-scale activities and publicity, and to raise
awareness of emotional disorders among all levels of society, so
that patients and their families can access to more consultation
channels, resources and help. The Group has been recognised
as a “Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service (HKCSS) for more than 10 consecutive years. For the
Year, the Group continued to make donations to support The
Community Chest BEA Charity Golf Day 2023 and the Shanghai
Commercial Pok Oi Cycle for Millions 2023, while the Yip Mow
Lum Charity Fund was also the diamond sponsor of the 2023
Hopes Runner. The Group hopes that our actions can arouse
general awareness of the needs of the society. The Group
spares no effort to give back to the community, hoping to
carry forward the caring spirit of “benefiting the public when in
abundance”.

OUTLOOK

Going forward, the business environment in Hong Kong is still
full of challenges. Apart from tackling the uncertainty brought
about by aftereffect of the pandemic, the actual situation of the
long-intertwined Sino-US issue continues to be tense despite
some superficially calm intervals. The case is that the tariff
measures related to the trade friction between the US and the
mainland China show no sign of stopping. The Taiwan situation
is always an excuse used by the United States to provoke China.
This not only directly strains the relation between China and the
United States, but might also cause a sudden deterioration of
the situation across the Taiwan Straits. Unexpected conflicts
will probably have adverse effects on the relation between
mainland China and Taiwan. Meanwhile, President Biden of
the United States officially announced his bid for re-election of
his presidency next year, and it is expected that on the eve of
the general election, he will definitely make a lot of moves and
continue to cook up a lot of nonsense about China. Despite the
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lousy clichés of Biden, all his rhetoric has the potential to invoke
huge impact on the stock market. Once a series of problems
deteriorate than expected, Hong Kong will be the most stricken
area, and the economy will definitely suffer. Investors must be
mentally prepared. Also, the Russia-Ukraine War is still lingering
despite the seemingly temporary ceasefire, but in fact, the two
countries are still at odds and it has become a field for the
United States, NATO, Russia, Ukraine and other countries to
struggle with each other, which will be a geopolitical powder
keg. In addition, Dow Jones Industrial Average remains above
33,000 points despite the adverse economic environment in the
United States, which does not seem to be adjusting at all as
compared with other global stock markets. However, the United
States, in the absence of a panacea, keeps raising interest rates
to suppress high inflation, which brings endless worries about
possible intrinsic repercussion. Subsequent to the Lehman
Brothers incident in 2008, there has come another wave of bank
failures and the situation is described as a replica of Lehman
Brothers collapse, which is worrying. All the above factors will be
a serious impediment to Hong Kong’s economic recovery, and
we must not take them lightly.

Although the market is full of challenges, with my commercial
experience for decades, | believe that opportunities arise from
adversity. The reopen of boarder between mainland China and
Hong Kong will indeed help accelerate the progress of Hong
Kong’s economic recovery; and the implementation of “Stock
Connect” has definitely brought great opportunities to Hong
Kong stocks. In order to further support the development of
RMB in Hong Kong stock market, HKEX has introduced a
HKD-RMB Dual Counter Model for trading and clearing in the
secondary market. We believe it can significantly increase the
trading volume of Hong Kong stocks and various derivative
products. After the end of the pandemic control and prevention,
China will certainly step up the progress of RMB digitisation,
thus accelerating the realization of the “Belt and Road” initiative.
Hong Kong is the world’s largest offshore RMB business hub
and it offers the world’s most diverse range of RMB investment,
financing and risk management products. The relevant
economies under the “Belt and Road” initiative can use Hong
Kong’s payment system to settle their RMB trade with their
respective importers and exporters. Investors can also make use
of their RMB liquidity in Hong Kong through bank loans or “Dim
Sum Bonds” and invest their surplus RMB funds in a variety
of RMB financial products in Hong Kong, which will also bring
unlimited opportunities to the Hong Kong stock market.

BARSEHEEERAR | —F | Z=FFR
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The Group, being listed in Hong Kong for more than 12 years,
has tided over ups and downs in the stock market without fear
of market downturn. With the “Client-oriented” and “Caring
about Clients’ Needs” philosophy, the Group continues to
allocate more resources on the provision of more convenient,
good value and comprehensive investment products and
services to customers and enhance the speed and compatibility
of trading platforms, in order to cater to customers’ needs.
Whether in prosperity or adversity, the Group keeps pace with
times to strengthen its competitiveness and expand its business
with a view to competing with all competitors in the market for
market share and continuing to actively promote our services
in various ways to acquire clients. Upholding the business
philosophy of integrity, sincerity, equity and conscience, all our
staff will be united and devote themselves to our work, treat our
customers with sincerity and continue to work its way through
obstacles, explore new business opportunities, and provide our
clients with the best investment services in recognition of the
continual trust and support of our clients and shareholders.

Yip Mow Lum
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 June 2023
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MARKET REVIEW

The global market was an ever-changing landscape when
looking back on this year. The three-year COVID-19 epidemic
has finally come to an end, but its aftermath, hidden worries
and unforeseen effects have really worried the governments of
various countries. The supply chains of many countries were
broken during the epidemic, causing costs to rise in all sectors
and resources to be stretched thin, resulting in soaring prices
and worsening the inflation problem. In order to suppress the
unprecedented inflation, the U.S. had no alternatives but to
raise interest rates continuously to curb it. The persistently
high interest rates did, on the surface, alleviate the inflation,
but behind the scenes, there was an impact on banks’ lending
business due to the high interest rates and therefore a significant
adjustment in the prices of various types of bonds. Bank
failures occurred in the affected business environment, and
governments became cautious about the economic outlook as
they worried about a repeat of the Lehman Brothers incident in
2008. On the other hand, the war between Russia and Ukraine,
which has been raging for more than a year, seems to have no
sign of a ceasefire, and energy prices remain high, adding to the
headwinds of a recovering global economy.

The Hong Kong economy is expected to recover gradually
in 2023 given that the Hong Kong government has officially
announced the full lifting of the epidemic prevention measures
and the resumption of more business and economic activities.
However, with the uncertain global economic and geopolitical
outlook, the risk appetite for corporate investment, business
expansion and personal consumption is expected to remain
conservative in the near term.
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The relationship between China and the U.S. has always been
the biggest global concern. Since Donald Trump took office
as President of the U.S. in 2017, the relationship between the
two countries has often faced fierce clashes. On many issues
such as policies, economy and geopolitics, there are serious
differences between China and the U.S. Joe Biden, the current
President of the U.S., has not improved relations between the
two countries during his term of office. He has been more
assertive than his predecessor on trade and technology issues,
and has even repeatedly signed executive orders restricting
U.S. companies from investing in key areas of the Chinese
economy, creating unnecessary friction and disputes between
the two sides. As for geopolitics, the Taiwan Question, the
Indo-Pacific strategy, and the Korean Peninsula all have been
highly controversial issues in recent years. However, the U.S.
side has not changed its provocative behavior, as evidenced by
the Douyin, chip and balloon issues, showing that it is a trouble
maker. Given these problems, if any should go wrong, the global
economy will be affected, and Hong Kong is not immune.

For the Year, Hong Kong has experienced volatility. Under the
economic downturn, the property market has returned to the
level of 2018, while the stock market has even returned to the
level of 1997, hitting a low of 14,597 points. The rapid decline
in the share prices of many major blue-chip stocks has shrunk
investors’ assets and their desire to invest has been greatly
diminished, resulting in a continuous decline of turnover. The
overall market sentiment has been affected, and Hong Kong
stocks have repeatedly plunged during the year. According to
the statistics of HKEX, the average daily turnover of HKEX for
the Year was approximately HK$120.3 billion, representing a
drop of approximately 18.4% from the average daily turnover
of approximately HK$147.5 billion in the Prior Year. The total
market value of Hong Kong listed companies at the end of 2022
was about HK$35.7 trillion, representing a year-on-year decline
of 15.8% compared to HK$42.4 trillion at the end of 2021. In
2023, the situation seems to improve, as the HSI reached a high
of 22,700 points on 27 January, but the improvement cannot
sustain and the HSI only closed at 20,400 points at the end of
the Year (i.e. 31 March).
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OPERATIONAL RESULTS

The Board announces that the Group’s revenue for the Year
was HK$881.7 million (2022: HK$1,068.0 million), representing
a decrease of 17.4% compared to that for the Prior Year,
despite due to the continuous contraction of Hong Kong
stocks trading volume. Nevertheless, the profit for the Year
was HK$620.6 million (2022: HK$561.5 million), representing
an increase of 10.5% as compared to that for the Prior Year.
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders
amounted to HK$620.9 million (2022: HK$561.3 million),
representing an increase of 10.5% as compared to that for the
Prior Year. Basic and diluted earnings per share was 36.56 HK
cents (2022: 33.08 HK cents). In contrast, according to the
statistics of HKEX, the average daily turnover of the market for
the Year was approximately HK $120.3 billion, representing a
drop of approximately 18.5% from the average daily turnover of
approximately HK$147.5 billion in the Prior Year, demonstrating
that the Group’s profits outperformed the market.

Despite the pressure in the stock market for the Year, the
Group’s earnings have been able to emerge from adversity
and remain resilient, which is believed to be due to the fact
that in adversity, the Group is able to introduce products and
offers that meet the needs of the market and attract a wide
range of customers, and besides, the Group continues to
develop different types of financial products around the world,
allowing customers to trade products of global interest in real
time, thus maintaining an advantageous market share; coupled
with effective cost control measures, the Group’s resilience in
adverse markets has led to an increase in earnings.
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Despite the fact that after suffering from the incessant ravages
of the pandemic in the past three years, the Hong Kong
economy finally started to recover last year. With the successful
reopening of the border between Hong Kong and mainland
China and the relaunch of the global economy, the market is
generally expected to bring unlimited opportunities to Hong
Kong and stimulate the Hong Kong economy to bottom out
quickly. However, the overall economic environment in Hong
Kong has not recovered as ideal as expected by the market.
Hong Kong’s economy is suffering from internal worries and
external problems under the context of political instability
due to the stalemate in the tensions between China and the
U.S. Fortunately, under the long-term support and trust of
our shareholders and the loyalty and dedication of our staff
at all levels, the Group’s results for the Year have achieved
growth. All the members of the Board would like to take this
opportunity to express their gratitude to each and every one of
our shareholders, bring about more money of necessity under
the uncertainty of the economic prospect and to bring a little
warmth to our shareholders in this fluctuating economy, and
therefore, recommend the payment of a final dividend of 50.00
HK cents (2022: 10.00 HK cents) per share. The Board believes
that the payment of the final dividend will not have any adverse
effect on the underlying assets, business, operations or financial
position of the Group.

TOTAL NUMBER OF CLIENT ACCOUNTS
AND ASSETS

In view of changes in the market conditions, the Group
adjusted its marketing and operating strategies in a timely
and appropriate manner. Besides, the Group invested heavily
in the research and development of one-stop mobile trading
apps, BS Securities (Baobao) and BS Futures (Doudou), as it
anticipated the rapid increase in investor demand for financial
technology. With continuous improvement of their performance
and remarkable results, the apps successfully drew hundreds
of thousands of downloads by investors. The Group will
continuously improve its trading platforms and services while
upgrading its network security devices in order to strengthen the
protection of its clients’ interests, be well-prepared for market
fluctuations, overcome challenges and seize opportunities.
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The Group has made constant progress over the years, and has
invested a lot of resources regardless of market conditions to
provide clients with more comprehensive, high-quality and more
professional services. As at the end of March 2023, the Group,
together with the Central Head Office and all branches and
“Bright Smart Mobile Teaching Centre”, had a total of 13 outlets,
covering the core areas of Hong Kong, some of which operate
7 days a week, breaking the industry tradition, to improve the
quality of client service and bring convenience to our clients.
The Group’s proactive expansion successfully led to a steady
growth in the total number of client accounts. During the Year,
the number of new accounts (after deducting the number of
client accounts closed) reached 20,893, increasing the total
number of client accounts to 547,742, representing a growth of
4.0% as compared to 526,849 as at 31 March 2022. As at 31
March 2023, client assets (including cash, stocks and margin
deposits) amounted to approximately HK$58.5 billion (31 March
2022: approximately HK$64.5 billion).
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REVENUE WA

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$881.7 million A FE » KA&EE WK A $: 1888178 8 8 (=
(2022: HK$1,068.0 million), representing a decrease of 17.4% as ZT = —#:1,0680B BB L) B EFE T &
compared to that for the Prior Year. A summary of the Group’s  17.4% o NEEE R E % 9 502 W A E & 51 10
revenue by business divisions is set out below: ™

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=+—-HLLEE

2023 2022
—E-= —EF-=
Proportion Proportion
of total of total Increment/
revenue revenue  (decrement)
[ X ON 1 28 4 A i/
Z Bl 2 LBl OB 4)
HK$°000 % HK$000 % %
FE7 FHT
' e e
Revenue from: REUTEE A
— Securities brokerage - BHEREL 331,551 37.6% 437,221 40.9% (24.2%)
— Hong Kong futures and — FAHEREIELL
options brokerage 135,206 15.3% 125,030 11.7% 8.1%
— Global futures - BRHEERL
brokerage 114,485 13.0% 99,797 9.4% 14.7%
— Bullion trading - BEcBRS 4,876 0.5% 10,791 1.0% (54.8%)
— Leveraged foreign — ERANIERS
exchange trading 948 0.1% 2,548 0.2% (62.8%)
— Stock option brokerage — B% ZHifE & 42 14,641 1.7% 15,463 1.5% (5.3%)
— IPO brokerage - BRAHABELLR 2,386 0.3% 13,290 1.3% (82.0%)
Interest income from BRARZE/RE
IPO financing B A 777 0.1% 37,737 3.5% (97.9%)
Interest income from HFEREFNSHA
margin financing 276,863 31.4% 326,135 30.5% (15.1%)
881,733 100.0% 1,068,012 100.0% (17.4%)
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Securities brokerage

The total turnover of securities on HKEX for the Year was
HK$29,586.1 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of
18.8% (2022: HK$36,431.7 billion). Commission income from the
Group’s securities brokerage business amounted to HK$331.6
million (2022: HK$437.2 million) and accounted for 37.6% (2022:
40.9%) of the total revenue, representing a decrease of 24.2% as
compared with the Prior Year.

Hong Kong futures and options brokerage

Hong Kong stocks fluctuated significantly, and the trading
volume of futures market in Hong Kong has increased, benefiting
the Group’s commission income from Hong Kong futures and
options brokerage. The number of derivative contracts traded
on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”) for the
Year increased by 30.2% to 179.0 million (2022: 137.5 million),
commission income from the Group’s Hong Kong futures and
options brokerage went up by 8.1% to HK$135.2 million for the
Year as compared to that for the Prior Year (2022: HK$125.0
million), accounting for 15.3% (2022: 11.7%) of the total revenue.

Global futures brokerage

During the year, the trading in the global futures market was
active due to the significant volatility in market conditions.
Commission income from global futures brokerage for the Year
increased by 14.7% to HK$114.5 million as compared to that
for the Prior Year (2022: HK$99.8 million), accounting for 13.0%
(2022: 9.4%) of the total revenue.

Stock options brokerage

Commission income from the Group’s stock options brokerage
for the Year decreased by 5.3% to HK$14.6 million as compared
to that for the Prior Year (2022: HK$15.5 million), accounting
for 1.7% (2022: 1.5%) of the total revenue. As stock options
are highly leveraged investment products, the Group carefully
monitors the margin level of stock option accounts and makes
adjustments according to market conditions in order to properly
control risks.
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IPO brokerage and IPO financing

As the market sentiment has turned cautious amidst the
lingering effect of the COVID-19 pandemic and U.S. interest
rate hikes, and the market reaction to the new stock market has
become muted. According to HKEX statistics, the number of
new listings in Hong Kong stock market continued to decline in
2022, with 89 companies successfully listed in Hong Kong for
the year, hitting a record low since 2014 and a decrease of more
than 50% compared to the peak number of IPOs in 2018; the
total amount of IPO proceeds raised in 2022 was approximately
HK$104.57 billion, representing a sharp decrease of nearly
70% year-on-year and reaching a record low since 2013, with
a dramatic drop. It is not uncommon for the IPO price to fall
through on the first day of listing, and overall investor sentiment
towards IPO subscriptions has fallen to a low point. Commission
income from the Group’s IPO brokerage business for the Year
decreased by 82.0% to HK$2.4 million as compared to that for
the Prior Year (2022: HK$13.3 million). Interest income from IPO
financing decreased by 97.9% correspondingly to HK$0.8 million
(2022: HK$37.7 million).

Margin financing

During the Year, the Group’s average daily margin lending
decreased by 38.5% to HK$6.02 billion (2022: HK$9.79
billion) and the Group’s interest income from margin financing
amounted to HK$276.9 million (2022: HK$326.1 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 15.1%, and accounting
for 31.4% (2022: 30.5%) of the total revenue. The Group
implements effective credit control procedures and recorded no
bad debts in the past few years.

PERFORMANCE OF PROPRIETARY
INVESTMENTS

The Group held Hong Kong-listed securities, bonds and futures
contracts as investments during the Year. As at 31 March 2023,
the book value of investment portfolio stood at HK$67.0 million
(2022: HK$51.0 million), which included Hong Kong-listed
securities amounted to HK$66.0 million (2022: HK$49.4 million).
During the Year, the investment loss from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss was HK$3.3 million (2022: loss of
HK$26.8 million).
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OPERATING EXPENSES AND NET PROFIT KREFpITRAR =X
MARGIN

With effective cost control, the operating expenses of the FEEMAIKAARIZEH T RNEEZREEZ KL H
Group for the Year decreased by 14.6% to HK$507.0 million as X & EFE T #14.6% * B507.08EBE T(=ZF
compared to that for the Prior Year (2022: HK$593.6 million), and — —% :593.6A&& T)  AEBEMF R - FA &=
net profit margin of the Group increased to 70.4% (2022: 52.6%). 70.4% (=& = =4 : 52.6%) °

A breakdown of operating expenses is as follows: LEFATRAANT
Increment,”
2023 2022 (decrement)
i,/
—E-=fF —E=-= CRi )
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FET FAT
1
Staff cost BT KA 120,120 160,616 (25.2%)
Amortisation and depreciation BT E 74,488 77,541 (3.9%)
Net charges for expected credit EAEEEEFE
losses 752 7,429 (89.9%)
Finance costs B 7 B 7R 114,202 124,512 (8.3%)
Advertising and promotion expenses & &N E&EH X 15,057 19,488 (22.7%)
Auditors’ remuneration % RN B & 1,768 1,733 2.0%
Commission, handling and Kufe  FEER
settlement expenses HEER 97,239 114,566 (15.1%)
Information and communication B kBAMAXZ
expenses 44,721 44,435 0.6%
Rental, rates and building e ZMREF
management fees ERE 5,033 4,618 9.0%
Legal and professional fees FEREEER 1,785 1,891 (5.6%)
Miscellaneous expenses MIERY 31,856 36,728 (13.3%)
507,021 593,557 (14.6%)
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OUTLOOK

It is undeniable that Hong Kong has always been backed by
its motherland, both economically and geographically, and has
been able to get out of its predicament many times over the
years thanks to its motherland’s aids. China’s economy showed
an obvious recovery in the first 3 months of 2023 after Chinese
government suddenly lifted the stringent zero-COVID policy
in early December last year. National Bureau of Statistics of
China reported that China’s gross domestic product grew by
4.5% in the first quarter compared to the same period last year,
exceeding market expectations. As the inflationary pressures
in the U.S. continued to ease, the Federal Reserve began to
slow down the pace of interest rate hikes in December last
year, raising rates by 50 basis points at a time. It is expected
that the Federal Reserve will continue to slow down its interest
rate hikes in 2023, raising rates by 25 basis points at a time
and there will be no interest hikes after June. Inflation in Europe
continues to run at high levels, and the European economy is
expected to inevitably fall into recession in 2023. China-US trade
and China-Europe trade contribute more than 80% of China’s
trade surplus. China’s services trade deficit is expected to widen
significantly in the new year as China opens up travel outside its
borders. All these factors have caused China decision makers to
focus on domestic demand.
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The year 2023 marks the 10th anniversary of the Belt and
Road Initiative. In the aftermath of the pandemic, it is believed
that the country will promote economic and trade exchanges
and development between China and the countries along the
route in 2023 and begin to develop mutual enhancement and
linkages with regional economic cooperation mechanisms. This
combination may frequently occur between China and the Gulf
States, China and Africa, and China and Latin America. It is
likely that the Shanghai Cooperation Organisation will shift from
a pure security cooperation mechanism to a dual security and
economic cooperation mechanism. The Belt and Road Initiative
will create some kind of economic interaction, thus enabling
the Belt and Road project to be implemented as a multilateral
cooperation to counteract the impact of geopolitical tension. It
will also speed up the progress of RMB digitisation, which will
better stabilise China’s financial system and bolster the Hong
Kong economy.

The Stock Connect is a mechanism that links the stock markets
of Shanghai, Shenzhen and Hong Kong, allowing Mainland
investors to directly trade Hong Kong stocks and Hong Kong
investors to directly trade Shanghai and Shenzhen A-shares.
The southbound channel is Hong Kong Stock Connect, while
the northbound channels are Shanghai Stock Connect and
Shenzhen Stock Connect, respectively. With the introduction
of these measures, Hong Kong’s stock market has enjoyed
tremendous opportunities, and the results are clear to all. With
the southward flow of capital from the north, it brings unlimited
impetus to the turnover of HKEX. As the Mainland continues to
deepen its financial reforms and establish more ties with other
markets, Hong Kong will continue to be an important gateway to
the Mainland market for international companies and investors.
The further expansion of the market connect plans (including
the implementation of Cross-Boundary Wealth Management
Connect, the inclusion of ETFs in the Stock Connect
mechanism, and the rapid development of the Greater Bay Area)
will bring about tremendous new opportunities for investors and
the industry.
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The scope of the underlying stocks of the Stock Connect will
be further expanded from 13 March 2023, when the stocks
of major foreign companies listed in Hong Kong meeting the
relevant criteria will be included in the underlying stocks of the
Hong Kong Stock Connect. At the same time, the scope of the
Shanghai Stock Connect and Shenzhen Stock Connect will
also be expanded to include stocks that meet certain criteria as
constituents of the Shanghai Stock Exchange A-Share Index or
Shenzhen Stock Exchange Composite Index. It is believed that
this will further stimulate the turnover of Hong Kong stocks and
bring unlimited business opportunities to the Group.

Developing diversified global financial products

The Group has always seized every opportunity in the market
and adopted an aggressive and unafraid business philosophy.
Over the past nearly 30 years since its inception, the Group
has always been committed to working alongside Hong Kong
people to provide quality services to our customers. As the
application of financial technology in wealth management
business becomes more mature, the Group has been promoting
the digitalisation and intelligence of clients’ trading services by
combining online and offline marketing and business operating
strategies, utilising financial technology towards the objectives of
reducing costs, increasing efficiency, expanding client base and
enhancing client experience, so as to further strengthen its core
competitiveness. It will continuously seek and expand global
investment products so as to cater to the needs of different
clients. The Group believes that investors’ interest in global
financial products is growing. Therefore, it will continuously
develop more global financial products to meet market
demands, thus consolidating our leading position in the industry.
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Promoting digital investment services

The Group has always adopted a proactive business model
and all of its trading systems are already connected to major
financial markets around the world, allowing customers to trade
anytime and anywhere through BS Baobao and Doudou APPs
and all online trading channels, and the Group also regularly
optimises and improves all online trading functions and the
speed to place an order; and continuously promotes 24-hour
eDDA service approved by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
This service allows clients to deposit money and trade financial
products anytime, anywhere regardless of time differences and
Hong Kong holidays after going through a simple registration
procedure with any bank account.

Laying a solid foundation and strengthening the sales
network

The Group perpetuated the expansion of its offline network
by operating a total of 13 outlets including Bright Smart
Mobile Teaching Centre, traveling across Hong Kong, some of
which operate 7 days a week, in a bid to provide clients with
considerate services. This year, to further refine this branch
network and improve its customised service coverage, the
Group will consider any site with low rent, prime location and
high pedestrian flow.

To play an important role in investors’ education over years,
the Group launched the first broadcasting channel “Bright
Smart Finance Channel”, through which it makes a financial
programme on each trading day to provide investors with instant
information and answer their questions. Besides, it organised
various investment seminars and stock and futures investment
simulation competitions free of charge. For instance, the Group
partnered with world-renowned stock exchanges, financial
institutions and top industry experts to provide investors
with comprehensive, reliable and free wealth management
information so as to enhance their knowledge about financial
products and economic trends across the world and broaden
their investment choices. It believes that investors’ education
should be open for all, easy to understand and diversified so as
to enhance the financial literacy and abilities of the public via
different channels and assist them in developing responsible
financial habits, behaviours and decisions.
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Enhancing online trading security

The Group has invested substantial resources in improving
the efficiency and capacity of its online trading systems to
meet clients’ needs. In order to offer a more convenient and
stable online trading platform, the Group has previously made
huge investment in improving its trading systems, relocated
its central computer system to the centralised data centre of
HKEX in Tseung Kwan O, and conducted large-scale tests on all
transaction systems, including regular simulated tests involving a
trading volume exceeding five times of the existing peak volume
on HKEX, so as to continuously enhance the efficiency and
stability of the existing securities and futures trading platforms.

Internet technology and mobile communication technology
have become an indispensable part of our daily lives, and
with the rapid development of online financing, the issue of
online trading security has also arisen. Investors are becoming
increasingly risk-averse and are paying more and more attention
to the safety of online trading. The Group understands that
the online trading security is a top concern of investors and is
committed to ensuring sound and secured trading. The Group
has developed an anti-disruption system, with four trading
platforms for trading global stocks, namely BS Securities
(Baobao), Bright Smart Securities (MH), computer (web version)
and computer (professional version). The platforms can support
and complement each other to provide clients with four-fold
protection. Furthermore, the Group has set up three futures
and two leveraged foreign exchange trading platforms, on
which global futures and leveraged foreign exchange products
can be traded. The platforms can complement each other to
avoid disruptions, which ensure unimpeded and convenient
investments without crashes. Nine-fold protection measures aim
at significantly improving security.

In addition, customers will receive SMS or email alerts from the
Group once trading is completed. The Group will continue to
enhance the capacity and speed of the trading system, conduct
regular tests and invest in improving the security level of online
trading in order to provide the most secure and reliable trading
platform for our customers to invest worrilessly.
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Conclusion

The Hong Kong market has shown strong resilience in the
face of unprecedented challenges. The Group firmly believes
that Hong Kong remains as a top international financial centre.
During the past period of adversity, the Group is particularly
grateful for the long-term support and trust of our shareholders
and the dedication of our staff, which have brought many
important results to the Group. All of our employees have not
only shown perseverance but have also been able to adapt
to rapid change, so as to carry out the Group’s missions with
determination, and to meet and exceed exacting standards in
the process. This will continue to be the Group’s top priority
as it strives to maintain strict compliance with the regulatory
regime in Hong Kong and to build market and public confidence
through the performance of its daily duties. The Group would
also like to express its gratitude to the members of the Board for
their continued guidance and support to the Group.

The Group firmly believes that only by keeping close to the
needs of clients can it stands out in the fierce competition. For
the Year, the Group, with the “client-oriented and service-first”
philosophy, adopted both aggressive and defensive strategies
at the moment when the real economy went downhill. On one
hand, it has been committed to optimising the performance of
Baobao and Doudou apps to improve user experience. On the
other hand, it allocated more resources on various online and
offline platforms for publicity and promotion and increasing
brand exposure, attracting more investors to open accounts
and trade products through Bright Smart Securities. The Group
plans to further optimise its branch network, actively look for
potential locations to establish new footholds, and reach a
wider range of target clients, in order to expand its market
share and strengthen its brand competitiveness. The Group’s
achievements today depend on the long-standing support and
trust of its clients. The Group will be dedicated to providing
clients with better services and developing safer, more stable,
faster and more convenient trading platforms in the future, so
as to reward clients for their love and support and make them
feel at home. The Group will meanwhile develop more diversified
businesses, recruit talents from different sectors and seize every
valuable opportunity, so as to enhance its operation efficiency
and seek higher returns for shareholders.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s operations were financed by shareholders’ equity,
cash generated from operation and bank borrowings.

The Group maintains sufficient liquidity with total bank deposits,
bank balances and cash amounting to HK$504.5 million as at
31 March 2023 (2022: HK$524.7 million). The Group had bank
borrowings of HK$4,409.0 million as at 31 March 2023 (2022:
HK$5,162.2 million) which bore interest primarily at floating rate.
The bank borrowings were primarily collateralised by its margin
clients’ securities pledged to the Group. As at 31 March 2023,
unutilised banking facilities amounted to HK$17,637.2 million
(2022: HK$16,048.8 million). The Group’s gearing ratio (total
bank borrowings excluding IPO financing divided by the total
shareholders’ equity) was 254.2% (2022: 208.9%). As at 31
March 2023, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,603.5
million (2022: HK$2,296.3 million) and a current ratio (current
assets divided by current liabilities) of 1.3 times (2022: 1.3
times).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group
ensures that each of the subsidiaries maintains a liquidity level
adequate to support the level of activities with a sufficient buffer
to accommodate increases in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increases in the level of business activities.
During the Year, all the licensed subsidiaries complied with the
liquidity requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (Cap. 571N of the Laws of Hong Kong “FRR”).

CHARGES ON ASSETS

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 March
2023 and 2022.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2023, corporate guarantees provided by the
Company in respect of banking facilities granted by authorised
institutions to its subsidiaries engaging in securities and futures
broking amounted to HK$16,494.2 million (2022: HK$15,724.5
million). As at 31 March 2023, the subsidiaries of the Company
have utilised HK$3,579.0 million of these aggregate banking
facilities (2022: HK$4,063.7 million).

As at 31 March 2023, the directors did not consider that any
claim would be made against the Group under any of the
guarantees.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The capital commitments as at 31 March 2023 were
approximately HK$0.6 million (2022: HK$5.4 million).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a work force of 206
employees (2022: 262 employees). Staff costs, excluding
directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$94.7
million for the Year (2022: HK$128.7 million). The Group’s
remuneration policy aims to offer competitive remuneration
packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent employees.
The Group believes that the remuneration packages are
reasonable and competitive and in line with market trends. The
Group has put in place a bonus scheme for its executives and
employees as a measure to provide a competitive remuneration
package for the Group’s long-term growth and development.
The Group also provides appropriate training and development
programmes to its employees to enhance the staff’'s work ability
and personal efficiency.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the Group did not make any significant
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries.
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LITIGATION

As at 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this report, the Group
has not been involved in any litigation of significance.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due
from clients, brokers and clearing houses. The management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all clients (including cash and
margin clients) based on the underlying collateral. Cash clients
are required to place deposits as prescribed in the Group’s
credit policy before execution of any purchase transactions.
Receivables due from cash clients are due within the settlement
period commonly adopted in the relevant market practices,
which is usually within a few days from the trade date. Because
accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide range
of customers for whom there was no recent history of default,
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable, and the prescribed
deposit requirements and the short settlement period involved,
the credit risk arising from the amounts due from cash clients
is considered low. The Group normally obtains liquid securities
and/or cash deposits as collateral for providing financing to
its cash and margin clients and has policy to manage these
exposures on a fair value basis. Margin loans due from margin
clients are repayable on demand. For commodities and
futures brokerage, an initial margin is required prior to opening
transaction. Market conditions and adequacy of securities
collateral and margin deposits of each cash account, margin
account and futures account are monitored by the management
on a daily basis. Margin calls and forced liquidation are made
where necessary.
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In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and clearing
houses, credit risks are considered low as the Group normally
enters into transactions with brokers and clearing houses which
are registered with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation
in the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as
credits are granted to a large population of clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, and to ensure compliance
with FRR. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long terms.

Interest rate risk

The Group charges interest to its margin clients and cash clients
with outstanding loan amounts on the basis of its cost of funding
plus a mark-up. Financial assets, such as margin loans and
bank deposits, and financial liabilities, such as bank loans, bear
interest primarily at floating rates. The interest-bearing assets
and liabilities, such as margin loans and bank loans, are mainly
priced based on HIBOR rate. The Group mitigates its interest
rate risk by monitoring market interest rate movements ad
revising the interest rates offered to its customers on an ongoing
basis in order to limit potential adverse effects of interest
rate movements on net interest income. The Group regularly
calculates the impact on profit or loss of a possible interest rate
shift on its portfolio of bank borrowings, margin loans receivable
and interest-bearing bank deposits.
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
financial instruments that are denominated in United States
dollars (“USD”), Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”),
Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Australian dollars (“AUD”) and British
pound (“GBP”). As the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) is pegged
to the USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD as insignificant.
In respect of financial instruments denominated in other
currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept at
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.
The management monitors all the foreign currency positions on
a daily basis.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price changes arising from listed
equity investments, futures contracts and accounts receivable
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s equity investments are listed on the The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) while
investment in futures contracts are traded on HKFE. Listed
investments held in the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss portfolio have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

Accounts receivable from margin, cash and IPO clients expose
the Group to price risk as their fair value is made with reference
to the fair value of collaterals, capped by the principal amount
and accrued interest, without discounting.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. YIP Mow Lum
Chairman & Executive Director

(Appointed as a director on 4 August 2009 and elected as the
chairman on 4 August 2010)

Aged 71, is the founder, the Chairman of the Board, an
Executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Yip is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Company. He is responsible for
the formulation of corporate strategies, overseeing operations
and the overall steering of the Group’s management. Mr. Yip
has solid experience in brokerage industry and investment and
has over 30 years’ management experience in securities and
futures brokerage. He is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Yip is a responsible officer recognised by the SFC for
engaging in the Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated
activity. He is the sole director of New Charming Holdings
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company and the
uncle of Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson, one of the Executive
Directors of the Company.
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Mr. HUI Yik Bun
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

(Appointed as a director and Co-Chief Executive Officer on 5
October 2015 and re-designated as Chief Executive Officer on
31 May 2016)

Aged 49, is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He is responsible for overall business
development, operations and management of the Group. He is
also the chairman of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee, a member of the Risk Management Committee and
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 29
years of experience in securities and futures businesses, and
has worked in a number of securities firms. Mr. Hui has expertise
in brokerage operations, sales management and market
operations of securities and futures businesses, particularly with
over 19 years of experience in frontline management. Mr. Hui is
also a responsible officer recognised by the SFC for engaging
in the Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on
futures contracts), Type 7 (providing automated trading services)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities.
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Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson
Executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 58, is an Executive Director of the Company and the
Dealing Director of the Group in charge of the daily dealing
operations of securities and futures businesses. Mr. Chan is
also a director of Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited and Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Company
Limited, both are subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 23
years’ experience in securities and futures businesses and is
a responsible officer recognised by the SFC for engaging in
the Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on
futures contracts), Type 7 (providing automated trading services)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. Mr. Chan is
the nephew of Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the founder, the Chairman of
the Board and the controlling shareholder of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Yun Kong
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 57, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
and the Risk Management Committee as well as a member of
the Nomination Committee and the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu is a practising
certified public accountant with over 30 years’ experience in
public accounting practice. He is a fellow member of both the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also an
associate member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
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Mr. SZETO Wai Sun
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 64, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committee and
the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee of the
Company. Mr. Szeto holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Laws (Hons)
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of
Hong Kong, and obtained the Professional Certificate in Chinese
Civil & Commercial Law, a course jointly organised by Tsinghua
University in the PRC and the School of Professional and
Continuing Education of The University of Hong Kong in 2002.
He also obtained a Professional Diploma for the Financial Times
Non-Executive Director in 2015. Mr. Szeto is a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. He was admitted as a solicitor in
Hong Kong in 1985 and worked in a number of law firms in Hong
Kong including Edmund Cheung & Co. and Y.T. Chan & Co,,
before founding his own firm Sun Lawyers LLP (formerly known
as W.S. Szeto & Lee, Solicitors) in 2003. Having retired from the
partnership of the firm, he now remains as its Senior Consultant.
Mr. Szeto is also a practising Notary Public in Hong Kong. He
was an independent non-executive director of Target Insurance
(Holdings) Limited (a company of which its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Stock Code: 6161)
during the period from November 2014 to December 2020.
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Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 67, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committee and
the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee of the
Company. Mr. Ling has over 25 years’ experience in accounting,
finance and administration and has been a director and the
company secretary of a charitable organisation since 2004.
Mr. Ling has been an independent non-executive director of
Pangaea Connectivity Technology Limited (a company of which
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, Stock Code: 1473) since January 2021. Mr. Ling joined
Midland Realty (Holdings) Limited in 1990 and was an executive
director of the company when he left the company in 1997. Prior
to that, he was a controller of Hong Kong Telephone Company
Limited and has also worked at Chase Manhattan Bank and
the First National Bank of Boston in accounting field. Mr. Ling
is an associate member of The Chartered Governance Institute
and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, holding
Chartered Secretary and Chartered Governance Professional
dual designations.
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Ms. WONG Ting Ting, Priscilla
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 3 April 2023)

Aged 40, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committee
and the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
of the Company. Ms. Wong obtained her Bachelor of Laws
(Hons) degree and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The
University of Hong Kong in 2005 and 2006 respectively, and
later completed a Master of Laws degree in Arbitration and
Dispute Resolution from the same institution in 2010. Ms. Wong
specialises in dispute resolution works including commercial
and civil litigation and international arbitrations. Ms. Wong was
admitted as solicitor in Hong Kong in 2008 and has over 14
years of post-qualification experience in the legal profession.
She is also a certified general mediator and a civil celebrant.
Ms. Wong currently serves as a partner in Messrs. Ince & Co, an
international law firm in Hong Kong. She was a director of GIFTS
Charity Foundation and its chairlady in 2019-2020.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YIP Mow Lum

(Biographical details are set out on page 45)
Mr. HUI Yik Bun

(Biographical details are set out on page 46)
Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson

(Biographical details are set out on page 47)
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Ms. LI Wan Mei
Chief Financial Officer
(Joined the Group in November 2008)

Aged 39, is the Chief Financial Officer in charge of the
overall financial and accounting management of the Group.
She is also a member of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee. Ms. Li has over 15 years’ accounting
experience, including three years’ experience gained in
PricewaterhouseCoopers. She holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Business Administration from the Lingnan University and
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Kwan Pak

(February 2011-May 2012; re-appointed in October 2012)

Aged 66, is a member of The Chartered Governance Institute
and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, holding
dual designations of Chartered Secretary and Chartered
Governance Professional. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Chan has extensive experience in company secretarial practices
in respect of listed companies.
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SCOPE AND PERIOD OF REPORTING

A major trend for corporate development, sustainability has
become a key topic that draws the attention of stakeholders.
Policies set out in this report have been prepared with
the participation of and upon the consideration by major
stakeholders including shareholders, customers, business
partners and employees to address future challenges.

To achieve sustainability, the Group strives to promote
environmental protection, instilling corporate social
responsibilities to its business and management strategies and
maintaining a culture of sound governance. This report presents
the Group’s sustainability approach and practices from the year
ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year”). This report fully cover the
Group’s operation, which is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), with the aim to inform
stakeholders of the Group’s performance in environmental,
social and governance terms.

BOARD STATEMENT

The Group believes that comprehensive Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) principles will effectively enhance
the Group’s investment value and bring long-term return to
our stakeholders. In order to develop the Company to be a
sustainable enterprise, continuously improve the Group’s ESG
management and performance and gain recognition from capital
market for the Company’s ESG work, the Group has established
an Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (the
“Committee”).

The Committee is responsible for directing and reviewing the
development of the Group’s ESG management policies and
strategies to ensure that they are up-to-date, relevant and meets
applicable legal and regulatory requirements; monitoring the
development and implementation of the Group’s ESG objectives,
including setting the Group’s performance targets for ESG
management, reviewing the progress of achieving those targets,
and advising on the actions required to achieve those targets;
reviewing the main external ESG trends and reporting to the
Board the major trends affecting the Group’s ESG policies and
strategies and its objectives setting; directing and reviewing the
identification and prioritization of the materiality of ESG issues
of the Group; reviewing ESG reports and other ESG-related
disclosures, and making recommendations to the Board for
approval.
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The Committee delegates specific tasks to an ESG working
group (the “Working Group”) which comprises members from
relevant departments of the Group. Specific tasks delegated
include preparing annual ESG reports, monitoring ESG
performance, identifying ESG risks and implementing the ESG
activities of the Group in a comprehensive manner.

The Group is committed to constantly reviewing and adjusting
its sustainability policies to satisfy the everchanging needs of our
stakeholders. The Board acknowledges that it has the ultimate
responsibility for the Group’s ESG matters.

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has the
overall responsibility for ensuring effectiveness of the Company’s
ESG strategy and reporting with an aim that the Group can
operate its financial services businesses in a responsible and
sustainable manner.

To reinforce the Board’s ESG management approach and
strategy as well as further enhance ESG governance, the Board
has established the Committee for overseeing and managing
ESG matters specifically. The Committee members comprises
an executive director, independent non-executive directors and
senior management of the Company. Under the Committee,
Working Group is established, which comprises representatives
from relevant departments. Their respective roles and functions
are as follows:
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The Committee

direct and review the development of the Group’s ESG
management policies and strategies to ensure that they
are up-to-date, relevant and meets applicable legal and
regulatory requirements;

monitor the development and implementation of the
Group’s ESG objectives, including setting the Group’s
performance targets for ESG management; review the
progress of achieving those targets, and advise on the
actions required to achieve those targets;

review the main external ESG trends and report to the
Board the major trends affecting the Group’s ESG policies
and strategies and its objectives setting;

direct and review the identification and prioritisation of the
materiality of ESG issues of the Group; and

identify ESG risks and opportunities related to the Group,
assess the impact arising from such risks or opportunities
on the Group, and make recommendations to the Board on
responses to those risks or opportunities.

The Committee will report at least once per year to the Board on
the implementation and the progress made towards achieving
ESG objectives.

Based on the recommendation from the Committee, the Board
will review the progress made towards achieving the ESG-
related goals as well as effectiveness of the management
approach and strategy.

The Working Group

54

work through the key performance indicators and the right
tools and resources to handle the ESG issues; and

formulate and execute action plans and ensure execution
by respective teams so as to achieve the ESG-related
goals set by the Board and the Committee.
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REPORTING FRAMEWORK

During the preparation for this ESG Report, the Group has
applied the reporting principles in the ESG Reporting Guide as
the following:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify
material issues during the Year, thereby adopting the confirmed
material issues as the focus for the preparation of this report.
The materiality of issues was reviewed and confirmed by the
Board and the Committee. Please refer to the sections headed
“Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment” for
further details.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in
the calculation of relevant data in this report, as well as the
applicable assumptions were disclosed. The key performance
indicators (“KPI(s)”) data are supplemented by explanatory notes
to establish benchmarks where applicable.

Consistency: The preparation approach of this ESG Report
was substantially consistent with the previous year, and
explanations were provided regarding data with changes in the
scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies.

This report has undergone the internal review process of the
Group and was approved by the Board.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group is committed to making proactive efforts to
continuously interact with key stakeholder groups. The Group
maintains active engagement with its stakeholders, and collects
their feedback through various communication channels to

understand and address their concerns in order to improve the
Group’s operation and practices correspondingly.

Key stakeholders

ETEROE

Customers
s

Employees

==

Shareholders and
Investors

BREEEE
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Major communication channels
TEBBRE
|

Onsite communications
5% m

Emails and mobile applications
BEELRFHERARER
Customer service hotlines
=PRSS R AR

Company website

NGIECRS

Performance appraisal interviews
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Staff activities

BIEE

Daily communications

HE R

Orientation and training sessions
RGPS

General meetings

BRERRNSE

Company website
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Corporate communication documents
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BEEE

Services quality
BR7% & &
Customer privacy protection
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Employment and labour practices
E1E R 5 TE

Diversity and equal opportunities
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Training and development
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Occupational health and safety
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Corporate governance
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Sustainability and profitability
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Key stakeholders

Major communication channels

Issues of concerns
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ESG POLICIES

The Group’s ESG policies are based on five basic principles set
out below:

58

To enhance corporate value and focus on shareholders’
return;

To foster financial transparency and boost investors’
confidence;

To cater to customers’ needs and protect customers’
interests;

To develop employees and safeguard employees’ interests;
and

To support environmental protection and seek to give back
to the community.

Environmental
Policies on environment and energy

Environmental protection and energy conservation form
an important part of our corporate social responsibilities.
Apart from full compliance with laws and regulations
relating to environmental protection, the Group also seeks
to prevent pollution, conserve energy and reduce emission,
with a view to achieving sustainability in the course of its
day-to-day operations.

Besides, the Group has deposited funds through green
deposit projects offered by bank, to support and promote
low-carbon transition, environmental protection and
sustainable development projects and businesses that
contribute to the global environment.

Use of resources

Operating in the financial services sector, the Group
upholds energy conservation and advocates the best
use of resources. Disclosures on emissions and use of
resources primarily relate to the use of electricity, water
and paper in its head office and branch offices, as well
as the greenhouse gas emissions in the course of fuel
consumption by vehicles and the yacht of the Company.
Except for the mentioned emissions and use of resources,
the Group’s business has no direct impact on the
environment and natural resources.
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Environment and natural resources RERXARER

Greenhouse gases

Scope of greenhouse

gas emissions Sources of emissions

BERBHREE B BOR

Volume of emissions
(in tonnes of CO,e)
BERE
(LW = E 4L iz
EE23)

Year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—-HLEE

2023 2022
—Eg-= —E--
! |
Scope 1
Direct emissions Consumption of fuel by the Group’s 147.5 1391
fleet of vehicles and the yacht
g EA
BEEHEN AEEBKREENREER
Scope 2
Indirect emissions Purchase and use of electricity 889.5 941.2
E2
M HE BREN
Scope 3
Other indirect emissions Consumption of paper 474 54.0
#E3
H At ) 5 HE A HoRETE
Total
st 1,084.1 1,134.3

During the Year, a total of 1,084.1 tonnes (2022:
1,134.3 tonnes) of CO2e, which mainly comprised
carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide, were
emitted from the Group’s operations as greenhouse
gas emissions.

In order to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions,
the Group has set a medium-term target to achieve a
reduction of carbon emissions, together with specific
action plans formulated. In terms of the greenhouse
gas emissions generated by vehicles, the Group will
decide to reduce the non-essential and aging cars
with low fuel efficiency and giving priority to energy-
saving vehicles in the procurement process.
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Electricity

During the Year, the Group consumed 889,546
kilowatt-hours (2022: 941,179 kilowatt-hours) of
electricity. To identify opportunities for increasing
energy efficiency, the Group monitors the energy
consumption intensity across its operations from
time to time. The Group has set the target to
achieve a better control and reduction of electricity
consumption by gradually replacing the existing
incandescent tubes with LED lamps in office areas.
Other measures were taken for energy conservation,
including setting the default mode of printers and
computers at energy-saving; encouraging switching
off computers, air-conditioners and illumination
systems during non-office hours or periods of
extended away; and ongoing improvements to
equipment including illumination and air-conditioning
systems to uplift the overall energy efficiency.

Water

During the Year, the Group consumed approximately
758 cubic metres (2022: 1,315 cubic metres) of water.
As part of the water usage fee was included in the
management fee paid to landlord, full data on water
consumption are not available.

The Group continually strengthens water management
to avoid waste of water resources. The pipelines,
drainage and equipment are regularly inspected to
prevent dripping and leakage. The Group targets to
install hands-free faucets or push button faucets and
dual-flush toilets in public washrooms in its offices
and branches. The Group has also posted signages
in public areas and washrooms to strengthen
employees’ water-saving awareness.
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Fuel

During the Year, the Group consumed 52,046 litres
(2022: 49,243 litres) of petrol and gas oil in its
vehicles and yacht, representing emission of 147.5
tonnes (2022: 139.1 tonnes) of CO,e in aggregate.
The Group will reduce the non-essential and aging
cars with low fuel efficiency and giving priority
to energy-saving vehicles in the procurement
process. Also, vehicle and yacht inspection and
maintenance are regularly performed to keep good
efficiency of vehicles and yacht and thus reduce fuel
consumption.

Hazardous wastes and packaging materials

No hazardous wastes or packaging materials are
produced from the business operations of the Group.
In selecting suppliers or cooperation partners, the
Group takes into consideration, among others, their
environmental and energy policies, to maximise
environmental protection and minimise pollution.

Non-hazardous wastes

Non-hazardous wastes produced from the operations
of the Group primarily comprise paper used in
offices, which amounted to a total of approximately
9.8 tonnes (2022: 11.2 tonnes) of paper and in turn
471 tonnes (2022: 54.0 tonnes) of CO,e emission
during the Year. The recycled papers were not
included in the calculation of GHG emission. To
minimise paper consumption, a number of measures
are in place, including measures to encourage setting
double-sided printing as the default mode and reuse
of paper and so forth.

In recent years, the Group has sought for a paperless
working environment by adopting electronic means
for internal dissemination of information, such
as payroll notices, circulars, memoranda and so
forth. This has saved the use of space, facilitated
the sharing of information on our intranet, and cut
down on the use of paper, and in turn augmented
efficiency in our day-to-day operations. The Group
also encourages its staff to recycle waste paper
if possible, fully use the blank area on the paper
for drafting or other internal purposes and use
notebooks or tablets instead of paper for meetings.
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By partnering with its printing solutions provider, the
Group has adopted “Follow You” print solution in
the head office, helping the Group becoming more
cost efficient through smarter printing. The print
solution enables the Group to achieve environmental
objectives by reducing unclaimed printing, as printing
is released only upon presentation of a staff card
from that particular staff who gives the printing
instruction.

Further, digitised services including electronic
statements, account opening through mobile
apps and account opening through the internet
have been made available. We also use electronic
mails and messaging tools in disseminating latest
promotional materials to our customers. To reduce
paper consumption, the Group also sets a target to
switch to electronic statements instead of receiving
paper statements from counterparties and encourage
our clients to switch to electronic statements from
paper statements by raising handling charge on
paper statement and offering commission discount
to clients switching to electronic statement. As at 31
March 2023, over 99% of our clients have opted for
electronic statement, which effectively reduce paper
consumption.

We also recommend shareholders to access
information including HKEX announcements and
shareholders’ correspondences via the internet.
The policies for a paperless workplace contribute
to environmental protection as well as saving on
operating expenses.

Measures for green offices

To produce less wastes and recycle resources,
suppliers are regularly arranged to collect used
printing cartridges and toners for recycling purpose,
while recycling bins are placed at its head and branch
offices for collecting used paper.
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Climate Change Impact

The world’s climate has changed significantly in the past
decades — global temperatures have increased and
extreme weather events are becoming more frequent
and severe, which may cause disruptions to business
operations globally, and in turn poses adverse effects to
the macro economy.

The Group mainly engages in financial services business
which does not involve production. The increase in
temperature may lead to an increase in the energy
consumption of the Group’s offices and branches. Natural
disasters, such as typhoon, may damage our properties
and systems, which may result in business interruption.
We have established a backup office with backup systems
in order to maintain normal business operations in case of
natural disasters.

The Group will continue to monitor the potential risks of
climate change and its impacts on the Group’s operations
and customers, and devise and implement preventive and
emergency measures accordingly. Besides, the Group will
continue its efforts to control energy consumption and
carbon emissions.
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B. Social

Employment and labour practices

1.  Employment

The Group believes that a motivated and balanced
workforce is crucial for building a sustainable
business model and delivering long-term returns.

As at 31 March 2023, the employees of the Group
totalled 206 (2022: 262), working in the head office

and branches in Hong Kong.

The demographics of the Group’s workforce are

summarised below:

As at 31 March 2023

36%

By Gender
RIER

64%

Male ® Female
L %

As at 31 March 2022
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By Gender
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The Group has a diverse workforce in terms of
gender and age, providing a variety of ideas and
levels of competencies that contribute to the
Group’s success. The Group is firmly committed to
gender equality, and particularly encourages female
participation at managerial and operational levels.

The management believes that employees are
important assets of the Group. Competitive
remuneration and benefit package is provided in
order to attract and retain talents. To ensure that
the Group follows the best-in-class standards,
it regularly reviews the remuneration and benefit
package and benchmark it against its industry
peers. All employees are entitled to discretionary
bonus, medical benefits, annual leaves and other
compassionate leaves, educational subsidies,
examination subsidies and so forth.

To continuously improve employment practices, the
Group’s conducts exit surveys to closely monitor the
turnover rate and gather insights and information from
the employees leaving the Group. This will allow us to
address employees’ concerns and enhance retention
measures.

The turnover rates of the Group’s workforce are as
below:

By Gender
& 1% Bl
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To ensure the staff clearly understand their rights
and obligations, the employee handbook and other
policies and guidelines are in place covering the
areas of compensation and dismissal, recruitment,
working hours, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination
and other fringe benefits, etc. The Group has been
reviewing its related policies from time to time to
ensure the Group complies with the latest statutory
requirements. Also, a set of grievance procedures
is also in place, to provide staff with a channel to
confidentially escalate complaints and concerns to
the Human Resources Department or the Chairman
of the Board.

Health and safety

The Group provides a safe and healthy workplace for
its employees in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations such as the “Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong.

We care about the physical and mental health of
each and every one of our employees, with frequent
production of posters to remind our employees of
occupational safety and health.

The Group enhances emergency preparedness and
ensures there are well-stocked first-aid kits in offices,
warehouse and branches to protect the health and
safety of employees, in the event that they are injured
at work.
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Every case of injury (if any) is required to be reported
to the Human Resources Department and be
individually assessed under the internal guideline
procedures. During the Year, there were no lost days
due to work injuries (2022: 3 days). There were no
reported work-related fatalities in the past three years
including the Year.

The Group provides medical insurance to its
employees. Nursing rooms are also provided to
accommodate breastfeeding mother employees.
Additionally, in order to improve the air quality in our
workplace, air purifiers are installed at our offices.
Adjustable design work chairs are provided to protect
employees’ neck and back.

Development and training

The Group acknowledges that employees are
the most important assets of the Company. To
maintain its leading position in the vibrant and
versatile financial market, the Group encourages
and subsidises employees at different job grades to
enroll and/or participate in development or training
courses in support of their career and professional
development. A policy on Training & Development
Program is in place to deploying responsible officers,
sales, operations and compliance staff with sufficient
skills, knowledge, professional qualifications and
experience for the responsible discharge of their
duties.
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During the Year, we provided anti-corruption, anti-
money laundering, cybersecurity, risk management,
compliance and professional development trainings
and all employees had opportunities to receive the

68

relevant training.

Trained employees

Percentage of employees trained

ZiEE
EMRBINZIEER

Year ended 31 March

BE=ZA=+—HLEE

2023 2022

—g== -

—_= =

by gender Aok
Male 5 96% 100%
Female g 95% 98%
Percentage of employees trained BB S K & 20 ZH
by position grade EEBS K

Management EEE 100% 100%
Manager gt 100% 100%
General staff T@ET 92% 99%
Training Hours 359I B
By gender 1% 1 Bl
Male ES
— Total training hours — IR E 3,526.5 5,289.1
— Average training hours per — BREITFEHEI

employee S 26.72 31.30
Female Z
— Total training hours — B 901.2 1,217.0
— Average training hours per — BEZBIFEHEY

employee RF 2 12.18 13.09
By position grade BB ER
Management E12
— Total training hours — 45 I B B 221.5 135.5
— Average training hours per — BHEBITFHEH

employee RRF 8 20.14 16.94
Manager Fgt
— Total training hours — BRI E 2,201.7 2,790.3
— Average training hours per — EREIFHEI

employee S 25.60 31.00
General staff EBET
— Total training hours — B 2,004.5 3,580.3
— Average training hours per — BEZBIFEHE

employee RF 2 18.39 21.83

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2022/23



Labour standards

Recruitment are conducted by the Human Resources
Department of the Group according to relevant labour
laws and regulations, including but not limited to, the
“Employment Ordinance” in Hong Kong. Personal
data collected in the course of recruitment are only
used for selecting suitable candidates.

The Group fully complies with relevant laws and
regulations in related regions concerning prevention
of forced or child labour. In the recruitment process,
the Group implements appropriate procedures
to ensure that employment adheres to minimum
age provisions of applicable laws. The Group also
prohibits any form of forced labour. The age and
identity of its employees are verified and employment
contracts are entered into with each of its employees.

We endeavour to provide a harassment-free
working environment to employees. Any types of
discrimination is prohibited in the Company. We have
diversity policy in place to foster equal opportunities
among the workplace that ensures all employees
treat others in dignity and respect and employees
shall not be discriminated by sex, pregnancy, marital
status, disability, family circumstances and race,
while we follow the principle of meritocracy when
recruiting, hiring, training and promoting employees
regardless of their background. A candidate’s life
experience, knowledge, inventiveness, innovation,
self-expression, unique capabilities and talent are
what we seek. Employees facing any forms of
discrimination, inequality and harassment can lodge
complaints following the complaint procedures.
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Operating practices = EE N
1. Supply chain management 1. MHESEEE

The Group attaches great importance to the AEEHEsREHEINEERRE

mutually beneficial and long-term relationship with ME RBBRAK AR R AR

its suppliers. In its procurement policies, the Group B RBHEEKSNRE - TRER

adheres to the principle of “cost effectiveness”, under AIAIREEENERPRY o S3FPI78

which high-quality customer services are ensured HEENRFRTBER  TRET

while costs are minimised. Different departments stay BE NIRRT c MRTERER - T8

in good communication with its suppliers, conduct EHENBATH®RE  EM - R -

review and checking processes from time and R RIRBH GRRE - FEAEEIE

time. In making decisions for procurement, factors SHEAMXEEGENMHER -

including historical price quotations, product offering,

service offering, performance and environmental

and social policies by suppliers are all taken into

consideration, so that suppliers adhering to similar

notions and offering reasonable prices are selected.

The Group will also be alert to whether there is rEBETeBEHEEANERENT

unfavourable news of its engaged suppliers on the RIBREFTEHESHETFIE - a0

environmental aspect. In the event of such news, the BEE  AEBEHETABTR - N

Group will internally discuss the need to change the AREREFEDMMHER -

supplier.

The ESG risk assessment on the suppliers should HEERNERE e kERRBT

be carried out on an ongoing basis during the HIER AN RSB ETT - W7

contract term. In case of any material negative ZEMEEIEEMNENEB@IH

news or behaviour of an engaged supplier, the TR - MR ERPI A E T BN AT 0 [

relevant department should conduct an immediate REMBHRETE ©

assessment and determine the necessary follow-up

actions.

Number of Suppliers by Location Year ended 31 March

RitBE SN HEREE BZ=A=+—HLEE

2023 2022

—EC-=F —E-=

]

Hong Kong BE 306 320

Other Regions H h 3 [® 11 13

70 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2022/23



Product responsibility

Internal control and compliance procedures are
in place to ensure compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations by the Group’s frontline staff
members. The Group also provides relevant training
to its employees, thereby ensuring that employees
apprehend the nature and risks underlying financial
services and that they are equipped with professional
knowledge sufficient for them to provide the
most suitable advice to their customers under all
circumstances. Financial services provided by the
Group are not subject to recalls for health and safety
reasons.

Customer opinions/complaints

With clear black-and-white procedures within the
Group, all disputes and complaints are investigated
and resolved in an impartial and rapid manner.
General complaints are dealt with by the customer
services department, which replies accordingly
to the respective customers. Compliance-related
complaints are dealt with independently by the
compliance department, which replies accordingly
to the respective customers and/or relevant law
enforcement bodies. During the Year, there were
12 complaints (2022: 11) received from our clients.
All complaints were duly resolved with satisfactory
results.

Laws and regulations

The Group has obtained all licences, qualifications
and permits required of its business operations. The
compliance department is responsible for ensuring
that business operations comply with laws and
regulations. Updates on relevant laws and regulations
are notified to relevant operating units and employees
from time to time. During the Year, there had been no
violation of any laws or regulations on the part of the
Group that would have or would likely have material
adverse effect on the Group.
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Privacy of personal data

For the protection of privacy in respect of personal
data, the Group has developed its policies for the
protection of personal data on the basis of the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. With due regards
to personal data privacy, the Group is committed to
fully enforcing and observing the principles of data
protection as well as all relevant provisions in the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. The Group seeks
to ensure that appropriate measures are in place to
prevent the misuse or leakage of personal data, and
shall hold such personal data only for the purpose
of such collection. Relevant staff are provided with
adequate training in compliance with applicable
laws on data privacy protection, to strengthen their
awareness and to protect personal data against loss,
unauthorised access, use, modification or disclosure.
Access to the customer database is limited to
authorised staff, whilst authentication is required
before accessing the data. To reduce the risk of
identity theft, the Group takes appropriate measures
to dispose of documents that contain customer
information.

The Group’s Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance/
Privacy Policy Statement are made available on its
website to disclose the relevant protection policies to
its customers.

Protecting Intellectual Property Rights

The Group recognises the importance of intellectual
property rights (“IPR”) and makes effort to protect
IPR and the confidentiality of proprietary information
provided to or owned by us during business activities.
The Group has also formulated relevant measures
for its own IPR protection. We would consider to
take legal actions for infringement of IPR cases after
assessing the materiality and impact, competition and
reputation issues.
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Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption/Anti-money laundering ("AML”)

To build its corporate culture and procedures that
stay in line with laws and regulations as well as
ethics, the Group has established policies on anti-
corruption and AML, which stipulate procedures for
screening customers, “know your customers” policy,
rules for archiving and rules for whistleblowing in
case of suspected deals.

During the Year, anti-corruption training was provided
to directors, management and other general staff.
There was no legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Group or its employees during
the Year.

Gifts and benefits

The Group has developed its policies against
bribery and the receipt or provision of gifts. In all
circumstances, employees must declare any receipt
of gifts or benefits to the compliance department,
which would advise based on the circumstances,
for example whether such gifts or benefits can
be accepted, should be rejected or other ways of
handling.
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Policies for handling internal complaints

We have policies for handling internal complaints,
whereby employees may report to the Chairman of
the Board any improper behaviours on an anonymous
basis. Such improper behaviours include but are not
limited to:

° improper behaviours involving financial
reporting;
° improper behaviours involving internal control;

° behaviours in violation of any applicable laws;

° behaviours posing threat to the safety or health
of the others; and

° wilful concealment of any one of the above.

Whistleblowers do not face intimidation, retaliation or
improper disciplinary actions in any form as a result
of reporting the aforesaid behaviours. The Company
uses its best endeavours to keep all disclosed
information confidential and to handle the same in a
prudent manner. Without consent of the respective
employees, the Company will not disclose the identity
of the reporting employees. However, under certain
circumstances such as where it becomes necessary
to initiate litigation procedures due to investigation,
the Company may be required by law or be obliged
under law to disclose the identity of the reporting
employees. In such event, all reasonable steps
will be taken by the Company to ensure that such
employees will not get affected. Any acts to harass or
affect the whistleblowers will be considered serious
misconducts and once established would result in
termination of employment.
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Customer services

Dedicated customer services have bestowed on
the Group trust and support from its customers.
With clear and black-and-white internal procedures,
the Group impartially and rapidly investigates and
resolves all disputes and complaints. As an integrated
financial services provider, we have set up service
teams that are comprised of different professionals
to provide diversified financial services, including
securities brokerage, margin financing, commodities
and futures brokerage, bullion trading, forex trading
and so forth. As of 31 March 2023, 93 (2022: 110) of
the Group’s employees were persons licensed by the
Securities and Futures Commission to engage in one
or more of the regulated activities.

During the Year, the Group was granted the following
accolades with its caring and professional service
attitudes:

—  HKEX “Top Brokers” — Equity Index Futures &
Options, HKEX “Top Brokers” — Weekly Index
Options, HKEX “Top Brokers” — Stock Futures
& Options, HKEX “Top Retail Brokers” —
Futures & Options

— Oriental Daily News — Outstanding listed
securities and futures companies

—  Eastweek — Best Brand in Greater China
—  Metro Broadcast/The Chamber of Hong Kong
Computer Industry — Hong Kong Digital Brand

Awards 2022

— am730/PR Asia/IFENG HK STOCKS — ListCo
Excellence Awards 2022

— CME Group — Excellent Partner Award 2022
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Community
Community investment

Recognising the responsibility of a good corporate citizen
to contribute to the community, the Group has long
maintained its eagerness to serve and give back to the
community, with active participation in various community
activities. The management of the Group advocates staff
participation in philanthropic deeds, to arouse attention to
the community and drive further participation from other
people in community services.

The Group has been supporting the charitable organisation
"Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation", has been the sponsor
of the "Joyful Charity Run " for more than 10 years and has
been awarded the "Caring Company". During the Year, the
Group donated HK$100,000 to it.

During the Year, the Group has made a donation of
HK$100,000 to The Chinese International School
Foundation Limited, in order to support the all-round
development of students.

During the Year, the Group sponsored The Community
Chest BEA Charity Golf Day 2023 with a donation of
HK$45,000 for mental health services provided by the
Chest’s member agencies.

The Group is also passionate about medical charity. During
the year, the Group sponsored “Shanghai Commercial
Pok Oi Cycle for Millions 2023” for HK$32,000 to support
the construction of different medical projects in Pok Oi
Hospital.

During the Year, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the
Group, is known for his philanthropy and sponsored the
“2023 HOPES RUNNER” hosted by the Haven of Hope
Christian Service. Mr. Hui Yik Bun, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, led approximately 50
frontline and backline employees to participate in the “2023
HOPES RUNNER”.
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The Group has also been awarded the following
certificates of appreciation and commendation:

— Joyful CNY Charity Walk (Title Sponsor)

— 2028 Certificate of Appreciation for the Community
Chest BEA Charity Golf Day

— 20283 Hopes Runner (Diamond Sponsor)

— Shanghai Commercial Pok Oi Cycle for Millions 2023

— 10 Years Plus Caring Company Logo granted by The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service

Caring Company Scheme

// :
cari ngcompany
Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance and complying with regulatory
requirements, to secure and uplift confidence of shareholders
as well as potential investors. In order to meet expectations
of the public and shareholders and fulfill its commitment to
good corporate governance, the Board reviews the Company’s
corporate governance practices from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year”), the Company
has applied the principles of, and has complied with, all the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises seven Directors, 4 of them are non-
executive directors independent from the management. The
Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategies of
the Company, ensuring the availability of sufficient funds and
resources for implementing such strategies, overseeing the
financial position of the Company, and complying with laws and
regulations in the course of business operations. All members
of the Board possess the skills and experience required by the
businesses of the Group. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum
(Chairman), Mr. Hui Yik Bun (CEO) and Mr. Chan Wing Shing,
Wilson; and four independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun, Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph
and Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (appointed on 3 April 2023).
The biographical details of the current Directors are set out in
the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section
of this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. To balance power and authority, Mr. Yip
Mow Lum acts as the Chairman of the Company, whereas Mr.
Hui Yik Bun acts as CEO.

Their respective responsibilities are clearly established. The
Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly
discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good corporate
governance practices and procedures. In addition, he is also
responsible for ensuring that all Directors are sufficiently briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and that all Directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The CEO is responsible for day-to-day management
and administration of the Group’s business, including the
implementation of significant strategies formulated by the Board.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The Board, under the leadership of the Chairman, is responsible
for formulating the Company’s corporate strategy, overseeing
the management of the Company and evaluating the
business performance, with the ultimate aim to maximise the
shareholders’ value and long-term success of the Company.
The management is responsible for day-to-day management
and operation of the Group within the authority delegated by the
Board.

In addition, the Board has established five Board committees
namely, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee as
well as the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
and has delegated to these committees various functions and
responsibilities set out in their respective terms of reference.
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During the Year, the Board has all times met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors on the Board. And Mr. Yu Yun Kong and Mr. Ling Kwok
Fai, Joseph have the appropriate professional qualifications
of accounting and related financial management experience.
The independent non-executive Directors represent more than
one-third of the Board, complying with the requirement under
Rules 3.10A of the Listing Rules. In addition, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence to the Group
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson is a nephew of Mr. Yip Mow
Lum. Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Mr. Hui Yik Bun and Mr. Chan Wing
Shing, Wilson concurrently are directors of several subsidiaries
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, there are no other
relationships between the Board members, including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company acknowledges the importance of diversity at
the Board in contributing to the quality of performance of the
Company. The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy.
In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
takes into account a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background
or professional experience. Appointment of Directors is solely
based on meritocracy. The Board Diversity Policy is among
the criteria used in selecting members to join the Board.
Furthermore, the Company also takes into consideration its
own business model and specific needs form time to time in
determining the optimal composition of the Board.

In compliance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Wong
Ting Ting, Priscilla has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 3 April 2023. As at the date of
this report, the Board comprises seven Directors. Four of them
are independent non-executive Directors, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process. Based
on the foregoing, the Nomination Committee considers that the
current Board is sufficiently diversified in terms of its gender,
age, cultural and educational background or professional
experience.
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BOARD PRACTICES

The Board holds at least four regular meetings annually at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s
business development, operations and financial performance.
Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular
Board meetings. All regular Board meetings adhere to a
formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed to
the Board and the Directors are invited to include matters of
special concerns for discussion in the agenda. All Directors
have access to the Board papers and all related materials, and
are provided with adequate information by the management to
enable the Board to make informed decisions on the matters to
be discussed. The minutes of the Board meetings have sufficient
details of the matters discussed at Board meetings which are
prepared and kept by the Company Secretary and are opened
for inspection by any Director. The Directors are free to access
to the management for enquiries about further information, when
required, and the Directors can obtain independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense.

During the Year, four regular Board meetings and one general
meeting were held. Details of the attendance of the Directors to
the regular Board meetings and general meeting are as follows:
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Name of Director
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RABZHEXRFRUOT:

Executive Directors: HITES:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum BRMEE

Mr. Hui Yik Bun AFEW R E

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson BER oK BB 5T A
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIHITES:
Mr. Yu Yun Kong RENM L £

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AR R A

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & B8 St A

Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) B N NN

Note:

Appointed on 3 April 2023
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package from the company
secretary ensuring that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operation, business, the relevant laws
and regulations, the Listing Rules and governance policies.
The Company Secretary also provides the updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements to the Board from time to
time.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. During the Year, all Directors
participated in continuous professional development through
reading materials on regulatory updates, director’s duties and
responsibilities and corporate governance matters and attending
relevant seminar(s) or course(s) provided by professional bodies.
All Directors have provided the Company with a record of the
relevant training undertaken during the Year as summarized
below:

B

Name of Director
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Type of trainings

BIEE
Seminars
and/or Reading
In-house conferences and online
training and/or forums studying
WHER /%
REEIN EBRAWE HERALEE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Yip Mow Lum ERMEE

Mr. Hui Yik Bun FEWEE

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson BR oK 3 %
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES
Mr. Yu Yun Kong REM L&

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun ARSI &

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph E BBk &

Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) E 212/ NME (A7)

Note:

Appointed on 3 April 2023
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ACCESS TO INFORMATION BY DIRECTORS

In relation to regular Board meetings, notice of at least 14 days
shall be given to Directors allowing them to have sufficient time
to participate. Meanwhile, Agendas and meeting documents
are sent to all Directors 3 days prior to the respective meeting
to ensure that Directors have sufficient time to familiarize
themselves with the matters to be discussed and to play their
roles of supervision. For meetings of committees under the
Board, notice shall also be given to Directors in accordance with
the requirement specified in terms of reference of respective
committee, and agendas and meeting documents are also sent
to all Directors 3 days prior to the respective meeting.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and financial information, and also entitled to make
enquiry to the management regarding operating data and
financial information of the Company. The management must
submit the information requested by the Directors within
reasonable time so that the Board can play its role effectively.

Further, the Company provides all Directors with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, financial position and
prospects, so that Directors are well aware of the affairs of the
Group and can in turn perform their duties under the Listing
Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a fixed term of three years, which will
automatically be renewable for one successive year, and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
giving the other prior notice in writing (not less than three
months’ notice for Mr. Yip Mow Lum and Mr. Hui Yik Bun; and
not less than twelve months’ notice for Mr. Chan Wing Shing,
Wilson). They are subject to retirement from office by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at annual general meetings in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”).

Each of the four independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a fixed term of one year, which will
automatically be renewable for one successive year, and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
by giving the other party a three months’ prior notice in writing.
All four independent non-executive Directors are also subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at
the annual general meetings of the Company according to the
provisions of the Articles.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the current Directors, or if there are not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at least
once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries of each Director, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Year.

COMPLIANCE MANUAL

The compliance manual of the Company has been prepared by
the Company with reference to relevant regulatory guidelines
and other industry best practices, setting out ethical standards,
values and specific obligations on topics such as dealing in
securities, anti-money laundering and personal benefits, thereby
ensuring that all Directors, management members and staff
members abide by the ethics and integrity in compliance with
standards of the Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong,
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun, Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph and Ms. Wong
Ting Ting, Priscilla (appointed on 3 April 2023). None of them are
involved in the day-to-day management of the Company. Mr. Yu
Yun Kong is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports, interim reports and major comments
on financial reporting contained in the financial statements),
examining the Company’s financial reporting system and
procedures for internal supervision and control, and making
recommendations to the Board on matters regarding the
appointment of external auditors and the fixing of the audit fee,
etc. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.
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A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2022;

° reviewed the interim financial statements of the Company
for the six months ended 30 September 2022;

° reviewed the effectiveness of the accounting and financial
reporting function of the Group; and

° reviewed and recommended the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditor.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

Name of Director

Esgs

D]]I]

ERZBERNAEFEZTHERANT

\

s EMARRBE-_T-__F=-A=1+—H
LHFEEZREBLWHERE

o EHARRBE-_ZT-_—_FALA=+HIE
NEAZHRHM B HRE:

o A ANKEG KM R RBREZ WAL
&

o BREBSBRBMEEST
B -

BETREEFGR

BERREERNAFEARTTMAEH
EREZHFEREFIMT

B

Attendance/
number of Audit
Committee
meetings held
HE/BITERE
EEgBIRH

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REMEE(FRE) 2/2
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AIEME T A& 2/2
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % B 8% % A 2/2
Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) =B/ N ) N/A

i
Note: it -

Appointed on 3 April 2023

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants (“KPMG”), be nominated for
re-appointment as the external auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises six members,
namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board and Mr. Hui
Yik Bun, an executive Director and the CEO, together with four
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong,
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun, Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph and Ms. Wong
Ting Ting, Priscilla (appointed on 3 April 2023). Mr. Yu Yun Kong
is the chairman of the Risk Management Committee.

RZE-_=ZFNA=ZBEZE

ERREQCMEZSEE  EARTERER
RBFRGLREZEBNESHMEFSH G
BhEB P (TRBE)ABARE ZINERXEEAD -

RBREEEES
RREEZEER \BREEAK  BRESFS

If% EMTEMAITEERITHRAITEW
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BITEMERT B A& - *I‘ﬁﬁf‘ﬁi&ﬁ%%ﬁ EN QS
TC=FUA=ZREZRE) - RIAEERRER
E i@?,\ = IF_
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The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are to
review the risk management and internal control systems other
than the financial control and reporting system and to consider
major investigation findings on the risk management and
internal control matters of the Company. The Risk Management
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Risk Management
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system;
and

EREEZESE T ERERERVBELEK
E#&?uuﬁl\ CRET AR E R E R &AL e
EEME AR ERERASEREENE
BAEHRE - EREEZECRIREETRER -
NBITHE -

RBRERRE@RAEFRE 2 THERALNT:

s MEAEEERMIME K

e reviewed the risk register to identify, mitigate and monitor ¢  FEREMRELM  UiER - BREIKERS
significant risks, including environmental, social and RER  BERE S8REGRAR-
governance risks.

A Risk Management Committee meeting was held during the EREBREZEENAEERITT—AEH " A

Year. Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as B EEZ HELEHI WO T :

follows:

Attendance/
number of Risk
Management
Committee
meeting held
HERITER
EEZEEER

Name of Director EEHA ZRE

I

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REB ST E(FE) 11

Mr. Yip Mow Lum BERMEE 1/1

Mr. Hui Yik Bun FFREW kAL 1/1

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AIEHERT R A 11

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & B 88 St 11

Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) =i/ NE A7) N/A

i A

Note: oz

Appointed on 3 April 2023 RZTE-_=FMNA-HEZT
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely
Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, together with four
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun, Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph and Ms. Wong Ting
Ting, Priscilla (appointed on 3 April 2023). Mr. Yip Mow Lum is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among others,
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s strategy; reviewing
the Board’s diversity policy, as appropriate; and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the Board’s diversity policy, and the progress on achieving
the objectives; identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on selection of individual
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO; and determining the policy for
nomination of Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the structure, size, diversity of composition and
succession of the Board;

° reviewed the independence of the independent non-
executive Director;

° made recommendation to the Board on the appointment of
director; and

° made recommendation to the Board on the re-election of
Directors.

REZEE

REZEEHAEKEENK DA REFSE
FEEMREERMEZBIIFATESTRIYM L
£ RIERETELE ZEBEERERFE/E
(RZEB_=FMA=REEME) - EENELER
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HEBAUEEIERZIAL  UHERBBEHEA
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Two Nomination Committee meetings were held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

EEnA

Name of Director

REZBERAFERTTMREHE BHE

BEZHFEREHINMT

Attendance/
number of
Nomination
Committee
meeting held
HE BITRE
ZEEER
ZRE

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman) ERMNEE(FE) 2/2
Mr. Yu Yun Kong REDMI A 2/2
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AIEHE T R A& 2/2
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % B8 S A 2/2
Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) S AUN I oF ) N/A

i A
Note: B i -

Appointed on 3 April 2023
Nomination Policy

The nomination policy aims to set out the nomination criteria
and procedures to nominate, select and appoint (including the
re-election thereof) suitable candidates to be a director of the
Company.

The selection criteria in assessing the suitability of potential
candidates includes, but not limited to, their character
and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,
experience, expertise and measurable objectives set out in the
board diversity policy.

The nomination procedures for each appointment and re-
election of Directors shall be evaluated using a substantially
similar process and shall be fair and transparent. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing this policy to
ensure its effectiveness.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely,
Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, and four independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun,
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph and Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla
(appointed on 3 April 2023). Mr. Yu Yun Kong is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for, among others,
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management; making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; considering
salaries or fees paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group; ensuring that no Director or any of his
associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration; and
reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The Remuneration
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation to
the Board;

o reviewed the current remuneration package of the
executive Directors and senior management and made
recommendation to the Board; and

° reviewed the terms of the Director’s service contract and
letter of appointment and made recommendation to the
Board.

¥FMEES

FMEZBEehmARKEBEEN  DHIREFEE
FEEMREERMEZBIIFATESTRIYM L
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FHNZEE L RERRIARAEZTRSAE
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Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
Year are set out in note 9 to the financial statements in this
annual report. The Directors’ emoluments are determined
with reference to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and the prevailing market rates. The emolument
policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the basis
of their performance, qualifications and competence, as well
as market trends. The work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year included the review and approval of
remuneration scheme of the Group and the remuneration of all
Directors and submission of the same to the Board.

Two Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the

Year. Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as
follows:

Name of Director EENA

FEEZETWESBFRBHANAFRY BT
RHTEEO - EEME B ERRAZRERE
BAAXRBERRITHEKEMETE - A5EEE
ZHEBRAUBBRFEZRE EERENAR
MEBEITL - FHZEENAFEZTHER
HREZ BUARAEFSREAEEZFTHF
ELRMBESZHM -

FHEARRATERITMARH  SHE
FZHERERIIOT

Attendance/
number of
Remuneration
Committee
meeting held
HEBITHMN
ZEE8R
ZRE

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REB ST E(FE) 2/2
Mr. Yip Mow Lum BRMEE 2/2
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AE T R 2/2
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & B8 e A 2/2
Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) =g/ NE A7) N/A

A iE A
Note: B i -

Appointed on 3 April 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Committee
comprises six members, namely, Mr. Hui Yik Bun, an executive
Director and the CEO, together with four independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto
Wai Sun, Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph and Ms. Wong Ting Ting,
Priscilla (appointed on 3 April 2023), and the Chief Financial
Officer, Ms. Li Wan Mei. Mr. Hui Yik Bun is the chairman of the
ESG Committee.

The major duties of the ESG Committee are to direct and review
the development of the Group’s ESG management policies and
strategies to ensure that they are up-to-date, relevant and meets
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, to monitor the
development and implementation of the Group’s ESG objectives
and to report and make recommendations to the Board.
The ESG Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the ESG Committee during
the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the ESG objectives, management policies and
strategies of the Group;

° reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness
of the work of the ESG working group, including but not
limited to preparing annual ESG reports, monitoring ESG
performance, identifying ESG risks and implementing the
ESG activities of the Group; and

° reviewed 2022 ESG report and made recommendations to
the Board for approval.

For further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 52 to 77 of this annual report.
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An ESG Committee meeting was held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

CHERERZBENAFERITT -RE
*ﬁfﬁi%Ztﬂf‘E SREFIT

Attendance/
number of ESG
Committee
meeting held

HE BT

RE -HEREAR

ZE2SR

Name of Director EENR Z IR
./ /|

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REM L E(EE) 11

Mr. Yip Mow Lum HEERMETE 1/1

Mr. Hui Yik Bun ATREWRE 1/1

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun RIEHITI AL 11

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % B 48 S 1/

Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (Note) =g/ NEB ) N/A

i A

Note: B it -

Appointed on 3 April 2023

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for, inter alia, developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report. This corporate
governance report has been reviewed by the Board in discharge
of its corporate governance function.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Company for the Year:

HKS 7 7t

BEE SREEASHMH

TRIMARARZEEREREEABRRAKF
B 2 % B AR Bl :

Number of
persons

A

15,000,001-20,000,000
10,000,001-15,000,000
5,000,001-10,000,000
1-5,000,000

1

Total 42 8

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2023, Ms. Wong Ting
Ting, Priscilla was appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 3 April 2023.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements for each financial period, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, and
of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
financial statements for the Year, the Board has selected
suitable accounting policies and has applied them consistently,
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards which are pertinent to
its operations and relevant to the financial statements, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and
has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kwan Pak, the Company Secretary, is an external
service provider and was appointed by the Board. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered and Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Chartered Governance Institute. He reports
to the Chairman and CEO and assists the Board in functioning
effectively. All the Directors could have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary at any time in relation
to their duties and operation of the Board. During the Year, he
undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training to
update his knowledge and skills.

The primary contact person with the Company Secretary during
the Year was Ms. Li Wan Mei, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

During the Year, KPMG, the external auditor of the Group,
provided the following services to the Group:

Service rendered

Fir 12 # BR %%

RAWE

NEAMERLGBALERINERBIERE BE
FEZRME - EARBEBHLAREIMAGER
SENRERRHAMERGREFRAARER
CRE -WAEFERITHAZER KRB E
EZERAMEE MEESHIBERERER
EXZQEFREERNARANESKERRRE -
AEE  RAMEC2ETIRNIGIHBZER
Bl AE A A R -

AERRRMENETEBRRARARRY B
EFHE/NE-

B B

AEE AEBZIIBZEMESHRAALE
BEHIA T IRTS -

HK$’000
FER

Audit services ERS

Annual audit FEEZ 1,521
Non-audit services kEZRB

Interim review B 25 ) 247
Taxation service 7% R 7% 53
Total FEE 1,821
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has ultimate responsibility to establish and maintain
adequate risk management and internal control systems and to
review their effectiveness. Hence, such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risk

Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is
primarily responsible for designing and implementing the
policies and procedures of internal controls, while the Board
and the Risk Management Committee oversee the actions of
senior management and review the effectiveness of the controls
established on an annual basis in respect of the financial year.

Risk management of the Group is a continuous process carried
out at all levels of the Group. Each management team is required
to identify the risks in their division faces and classify them into
appropriate categories. All risks identified are given a risk rating
which is evaluated based on the likelihood and consequence
of the risks. Mitigation measures and plans are then developed
based on the control gaps evaluated and the predetermined risk
appetite to manage the risks to an acceptable level.

All risks identified and the corresponding mitigation measures
are recorded in the relevant risk register to facilitate review of the
senior management, the Risk Management Committee and the
Board on an ongoing basis.

Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function for the Year has been
performed by the Internal Audit Department which has
unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s
business activities and is responsible for quarterly monitoring
and reviews on internal and operational controls. They directly
report to the Chairman of the Board and the Risk Management
Committee.

The Risk Management Committee and the Board have
confirmed that there are no fundamental deficiencies with
material adverse consequences.
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Internal Control System

For the Year, the Board has, through management, the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The review covered all material controls over financial,
operational and compliance issues, risk management,
information systems security, the effectiveness of financial
reporting and compliance with the Listing Rules.

In view of the improvements made to the systems and the
appropriate measures taken, the Board considered that the
systems are effective and adequate.

The Board has also reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Disclosure of Inside Information
Manual to handle and disseminate inside information to comply
with the requisite inside information disclosure requirements as
specified under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy aims to set out key criteria on payment of
dividends of the Company.

Payment of dividends shall remain to be determined at the
sole discretion of the Board of the Company, except the final
dividend shall be subjected to shareholders’ approval at general
meeting.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia, the operating results, cash flow,
financial condition and capital requirements of the Group and
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
The Company’s distribution of dividends shall also be subject
to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles as well as all applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The dividend policy will be reviewed from time to time. The
dividend policy allows the Board to declare special dividends
from time to time in addition to the interim and/or annual
dividends. There is no guarantee that any particular amount of
dividends will be distributed for any specific periods.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

98

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles,
any one or more shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can deposit a written request to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary at Head Office
of the Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also
put forward proposal(s) at general meetings in the same
manner.

The Company will verify the request with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Board will be asked to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice to all shareholders in accordance with the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules and the Articles.

Such EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of the requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene an EGM,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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. Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are welcome to send in any written enquiries
to the Board for the attention of the Company Secretary
by post to the head office of the Company at 10/F, Wing
On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary would direct the enquiries
received to appropriate Board Member(s) or the Chairman
of the Board Committee(s) who is in charge of the areas of
concern referred therein for further handling. The Board,
assisted by the Company Secretary, would make its best
efforts to ensure that all such enquiries are addressed in a
timely manner.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’
relationship with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has
compiled a Shareholders Communication Policy and established
various channels of communication with its shareholders, such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press releases
and announcements of the latest development of the Company
in a timely manner. The annual general meetings provide an
opportunity for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
Moreover, resolutions are proposed at annual general meetings
on each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Directors and details of the proposed resolutions are
set out in a circular.

The financial and other information relating to the
Group has been published on the websites of the
HKEXnews (https:/www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(https://www.bsgroup.com.hk).
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding,
while the principal activity of the Group is the provision of
financial services, including securities broking, margin financing,
commodities & futures broking, bullion trading and leveraged
foreign exchange trading.

ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

Details of the analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit for the
Year contributed by operating segments are set out in note 12 to
the financial statements of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the Year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by
the Group, an analysis of the Group’s financial key performance,
particulars of important events affecting the Group during the
Year, and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 25 to 44 and the environmental
policies can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 52 to 77 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has
a significant impact on the businesses and operations of the
Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success depends on the support from key
stakeholders including employees and customers.

The Group provides a harmonious working environment to
employees and ensures all of them are reasonably remunerated.
The Company regularly reviews and updates its policies on
remuneration and benefits, training as well as occupational
health and safety.

The Group has the mission to provide excellent customer service
while maintaining long term profitability and business growth.
The Group pays close attention to various stakeholders and
maintains frequent communication with them, with a view to fully
understanding and listening to their appeals and making positive
responses based on the actual circumstances of the Group.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit and affairs of the Group for the Year are set out in the
financial statements on pages 126 to 219 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

To reward all shareholders of the Company for their continued
support over the years, the Board recommended the payment
of a final dividend of 50.00 HK cents per share, subject to
the approval of the proposed final dividend by the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”)
to be held on Monday, 21 August 2023. If approved, the final
dividend will be paid to the Company’s shareholders on Monday,
11 September 2023. Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Monday, 28 August
2023 will be entitled to the proposed final dividend.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM, from Tuesday, 15 August 2023 to Monday, 21
August 2023 (both days inclusive), during this period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to attend and vote at the
AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre,
No. 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 14 August 2023. The AGM will be held on
Monday, 21 August 2023.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO THE PROPOSED FINAL
DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed,
for the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to
the proposed final dividend, from Friday, 25 August 2023 to
Monday, 28 August 2023 (both days inclusive), during this period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, shareholders should ensure that
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17th
Floor, Far East Finance Centre, No. 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 24
August 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 26(c) to the financial statements of this annual
report.
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DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVE

The reserves of the Company are distributable to the equity
shareholders subject to the provisions of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution the Company is able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2023, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$766,144,000 (2022: HK$753,769,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$277,000 (2022: HK$1,545,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years ended 31 March 2023 are set out in the “Five-
year Financial Summary” section on page 220 of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the Year
or subsisted at end of the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023
are set out in note 19 to the financial statements of this annual
report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the percentage of the Group’s revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest client and the five largest
clients in aggregate were 1.4% and 4.1% (2022: 1.5% and
5.0% respectively) respectively. The Group’s principal activities
are providing securities, commodities and futures brokerage,
margin financing, bullion trading and leveraged foreign exchange
trading financial services. In the Board’s opinion, the Group has
no major suppliers due to the nature of the Group’s principal
activities. Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the chairman, executive Director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, is one of the
Group'’s five largest customers during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, during the Year, none of the Directors nor any of their
close associates nor any shareholders of the Company (which to
the best knowledge of the Directors, who owns more than 5% of
the number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Particulars
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme is set out in note 24 to
the financial statements of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is
to ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.

Employees’ remuneration are determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experiences,
performance and market pay level.

Details of the Director’s emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the Year are set out in notes 9 and
10 to the financial statements of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS 5=

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the WRAFENEEZEAFREHH  ARBZEFAE:
date of this report were:

Executive Directors: HITES:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman) EERMEE(FRE)

Mr. Hui Yik Bun (Chief Executive Officer) W E(TTRAEE)

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson G e

Independent Non-executive Directors: BYFHITES:

Mr. Yu Yun Kong R EM £

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun RIEHE T R A

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % B 48 S

Ms. Wong Ting Ting, Priscilla (appointed on 3 April 2023) BERENMI(KRZZE_=FNA=RAEZF)

In accordance with Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of #RIEAQF H4SRMAE1081F - B4
Association, Mr. Yip Mow Lum and Mr. Szeto Wai Sun will retire  RBEIEAFEABREER B AEAS HiRE
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election R @ BHEFAER LB EBERET - BIEA
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. In accordance with #Z R 4EBIFE1121&% - FEE/ AR ZREE
Article 112 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Wong Ting Ting, A LRI EE BHAERTHESEEE
Priscilla shall retire from office as Director at the forthcoming ff °

annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer herself for

re-election thereat.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management WAFFHHAE KRR ZEERSREEEZ
of the Company as at the date of this annual report are set outin  FEH N AERFI5E51B V[ EERSHEE
the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section [B 2 /| —%f °

on pages 45 to 51 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every
Director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done or about the execution of their duty or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Group has arranged
appropriate insurance covers relevant legal actions against the
directors. The level of such insurance coverage is reviewed
annually.

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions” and
“Material Related Party Transactions” as set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statement in this annual report, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or its holding companies or controlling shareholders
or any of its respective subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or an entity connected with a Director is or was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions” and
“Material Related Party Transactions” as set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statement in this annual report, no
contract of significance (i) between the Company (or any of
its subsidiaries) and its controlling shareholder (or any of its
subsidiaries); or (i) for the provision of services to the Company
(or any of its subsidiaries) by its controlling shareholder (or any of
its subsidiaries) subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING BEXRS BEHREXS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Tenancy Agreements 1. HEH=R
The Group had entered into several tenancy agreements AEBWEREP)BETHREALTIT S
(as the tenant) with some connected persons, which THEWZE lil:gfﬂ T;?% R TR A
constituted connected transactions of the Group under the BETAEE @&
Listing Rules:
Value of
right-of-use
Name of assets
Transaction counterparty 31 March 2023
(Note 1) (Note 2) HK$'000
RREEEEE
ZEC-ZE
x5 REHAEE Term of agreement Address of premises ZA=+-H
(Hrgtn) (Witz) EER VES B TET
.|
Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 Victory Beauty Limited as 1 April 2022 to 10/F, Wing On House, 12,438
(monthly rental: HK$1,050,000) the landlord 31 March 2024 71 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong
RIZ-ZFE-A-+N\BFTuz  2BARAAEAXET —ZT__$MA-HE FATREHKET
B4 (AH :1,050,000% ) ZEIMEZR=t-B NRAREEAEI0E
Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 Well Point Limited as the 1 April 2022 to Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 4,734
{monthly rental: HK$400,000) landlord 31 March 2024 58-60 Queen’s Road Central,
13-17 Stanley Street, Central,
Hong Kong
RIB-Z$-A-TN\BiIuz  ABARAAEREET —Z-__fNA-AE  EBRREGAEDSS-60%ERTHA
R4 (A :400,000% ) ZECMEZA=T-B MERTREARERE
Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 Sea Magic Limited as the 1 April 2022 to G/F. & Cockloft, Nos. 2,715
(monthly rental: HK$230,000) landlord 31 March 2024 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai
Po, New Territories, Hong Kong
RIZB-ZZFE-A-TN\Biluz  PRERAAEAXE —Z-_4MA-HE EFANRABERSE
R4 (A :230,000% ) ZTCMEZA=t-B 1H-URHTREE
Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 Top Sunshine 1 April 2022 to 1/F, Golden Hill Commercial 2,009
{monthly rental: HK$170,000) Development Limited as 31 March 2024 Building, Nos. 39-41 Argyle
the landlord Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong
RZB-Z#-A-tN\Biluz  RBEEERAF “E--FMA-AE  RANELREH
B (AR :170,000% ) fFR%E ZECME=RA=t-B  3-41RELAEAE
1B2E
Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 Fortunate State Limited as 1 April 2022 to The Entrance (at Left Frontage) of 9,534
(monthly rental: HK$806,000) the landlord 31 March 2024 Portion At of Shops Nos. 6, 7

and 8 on G/F, M/F and 1/F of
Honour House, Nos. 375-381
& 375A-379A Nathan Road, No.
24 Kansu Street and Nos. 2-10
Woosung Street, Kowloon
RZBZZ&-AZ+N\AF UL BAERAREAEET  ZT--FWMA-HZE  NEFHIEL75-381%375A-379A
4 (A7 - 806,000/ ) “ECRFZAZT-B % HEEURRRDE2-10%
EX UN-UR mssmﬁﬁm*ﬁ Ay
FEREZAQS HEZER
—B2E
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Value of
right-of-use
Name of assets
Transaction counterparty 31 March 2023
(Note 1) (Note 2) HK$'000
RAEEERE
ZECZZE
R REHAER Term of agreement Address of premises ZA=+-8
(Wit (Hit2) 5 4 ME i FET
.|
Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 Peaceful Smart Limited 1 April 2022 to Rooms 2301 & 2302 on 23/F., Wing 8,631
(monthly rental: HK$720,000) as the landlord 31 March 2024 On House, 71 Des Voeux Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong
RZB-Z#-A-TN\Biluz  BEAERAF ZE-ENA-AE  ERATREHEMR
B4 (A :720,000% T) fFR%E “ZCMEZA=T-A kREEAE2SE
2301%2302F
Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 Realmate Limited as the 1 April 2022 to 5th to 9th floor and Roof, 79 Pok Fu 6,146
(monthly rental: HK$520,000) landlord 31 March 2024 Lam Road, Hong Kong
RIE-ZF-F-tN\Biluz  BEERAR(EAEE —T--FENA-HE  BEIRMETORSRIEZEEXA
4 (A :520,000% ) ZEIMEZR=1-H
Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 Great Challenge Limited as 1 April 2022 to Car Parking Space Nos. 1,2, 3, 4, 233
(monthly rental: HK$19,800) the landlord 31 March 2024 5, & 5S on Lower Ground Floor
of Floral Tower, Nos. 1-9 Mosque
Street, Hong Kong
RIB-ZF-B-tN\BiuzB% BEERAFEEEET —T-_FNA-AE ZBEERRHIZONRRIELTEE
(A78:19,8003 ) ZT-MFZA=t-A  1:2-3 -4 5RESHZEEN
Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 Victory Beauty Limited as 1 April 2022 to 31 March ~ Car Parking Space Nos. 2048 and 154
(monthly rental: HK$13,000) the landlord 2024 2049 at 2nd Basement, The
Center, No. 99 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong
RIBZZ#-A-T/\Biluz  ZBERAFEA%T —Z-_fNA-AF ABZAABPORTERFLHT
B# (A 13,000% ) “ToNEZATT-B ZEE2048R20495% FE(
Tenancy made on 28 January 2022 Eastkind Investment 1 April 2022 to 31 March Al That Car Parking Space No. P3 35
(monthly rental: HK$3,000) Limited as the landlord 2024 on Carpark Level 9 of Vantage
Park, No. 22 Conduit Road, Hong
Kong
RZZB-ZZE-A-TN\Biliz  CEREARDAER¥T —Z-_fMA-HF FATEERREZHFESIE
(A% :3,000%T) ZZCEE=A=t—H PIRFIBREN
TOTAL 46,529
&5t
Notes: Mt &t
1. Monthly rental was exclusive of management fees, 1. ARTREERE - MHREM -

government rent and rates.

2. Each an associate of Mr. Yip Mow Lum (“Mr. Yip”),
Chairman, executive Director and controlling shareholder of
the Company.
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2. Financial Services Agreements

The aggregate amounts of interests charged to the
relevant connected persons for the financial services and
the maximum outstanding amounts of financial services
in respect of margin financing and IPO financing to be
provided to the relevant connected persons for the year are

& B AR A% 5 R

REE  HABEATRAESERHEH
FERBEREAAFAZERE 22 RRS
KRzFERKREEERERBEH W
T

set out as below:

Name of connected person

BEALRE

Annual cap

FELR

Amount for

Maximum

amount for
the Year ~ Amount for
the annual cap Payment from/ HK$'000 the Year
HK$'000 to the Group KEE HK$'000
EELRSE REELH/ BEeE FEESE
THT AFrEEzEE TEL TER

Mr. Yip and his associates, together as
“Mr. Yip's Group”

EXERHEBEA:
GRErEEE]

Mr. Hui Yik Bun (“Mr. Hui") and his
associates

AREEE(FEEDREBEA

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson
(“Mr. Chan”) and his associates,
together as “Mr. Chan’s Group”
RxatE(HEEIREBEA
nBRLEEE]

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (“Mr. Yu") and his
associates

FOMELE(REENREBEA

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun (“Mr. Szeto”) and his
associates

AEEFEE(REAEDREREA

110

IPO Annual Cap
BRAREEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FRFE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BRAREEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FREE LR

IPO Annual Cap
ERAREEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FREE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BRAREEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap
RFREE LR

IPO Annual Cap
ERDFAREFE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FREE LR

4,000,000 Advance from the Group
AEEZEBH
1,000,000 Advance from the Group
AEEZE2H
Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZH R
100,000 Advance from the Group
AEEZEBH
Advance from the Group
AEEZBH
Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZH S

10,000

20,000 Advance from the Group
AEEZE2H

Advance from the Group
AEEZ B

Interest paid to the Group

IR FREEZHE

10,000

20,000 Advance from the Group
AEEZBH

10,000 Advance from the Group
AEEZBH
Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZHE

20,000 Advance from the Group
REEZBR

10,000 Advance from the Group
TEEZBR
Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZHE

100

389,986

10,746

50

9,374

209

50

449
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Maximum
amount for
Amount for the Year ~ Amount for
the annual cap Payment from/ HK$'000 the Year
HK$'000 to the Group ’EE HK$'000
Name of connected person Annual cap EELRSE REAXIM/ ERtE KREESE
BEALHZ FELR THEL #FrEEzeE TEL TET

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph IPO Annual Cap

20,000 Advance from the Group =

(“Mr. Ling") and his associates ERRARBEEELR AEEZ BN
REBEE(REEDREBEA Margin Annual Cap 10,000 Advance from the Group =
FEREELR AEEZ BN
Interest paid to the Group =

Note:

Mr. Yip, Mr. Hui and Mr. Chan are executive Directors of the
Company. Mr. Yu, Mr. Szeto and Mr. Ling are independent non-
executive Directors of the Company. Mr. Chan is a nephew of Mr.
Yip.

3. Brokerage Services Agreements

The aggregate amount of brokerage commission income
by the relevant connected persons for the brokerage
services provided by the Group for the Year are set out as
below:

Name of connected person

BEATHSR

INFAREEZHE

g
BEE HAERREERKRARNITES -

RELE RAIERERELRERKNRRBILIEHR
TEE - BREEREEEZING -

IR &

AREE  HEREALRARERH 2L
KRBELCMERABBEHIIMT

Amount for

Annual Cap the Year
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FELR rXFESH
TET FHET

Mr. Yip’s Group
ol o ]

Mr. Chan’s Group
BRIt £ E
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112

Annual review of the continuing connected
transactions

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions were:

(@) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

(b) conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favorable to the Group than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and

() entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

FEBERGZFEEX

BYNITEZCER LIBERERS
WHERZERXS:

(a) AEBEZEER—REHBEPE

k2

b) BR—BEBEEKXIBRTERAEE
RTHREBUE=TT ZIGRFETT
I54

© BIRERSEOMEBRHET
DT AR R ARD R R F 2
Z G -

Bl S

ARBZEBMCERE  UREBEBEBER
B2 R 300058 (RERNIEL MK E
MESAHBHAINERER] Y2RE
BB A B M2 B R E7405% [ #
REB(ETRADAAFEBEIZNZ
BN IR ARBE 2B EREIZEH
W& o RIBE WA AFE14A56(F - X BUAD
ERASEMRBECHBEREXSELH
BEBRESHERNEWIEREBR KM -
A (A B SR P B 33 A% BRI BK {1 B AX o
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report. Those related party transactions which constituted
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, which are set out in the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
on pages 108 to 112 of this annual report, have complied with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, certain transactions
are exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules as they are (i) below the de minimis threshold
under Rule 14A.76(1) or (i) financial assistances received on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and
were for the benefit of the Group and no security over the assets
of the Group was granted in respect of those transactions under
Rule 14A.90.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

BARHETHMEEERAF | —T——/ _=FFH

FBL XS

AEBRBPEBBEPETZIERNER TS
ZHBENATFRESTERERM FI0A < R
BETRABERBERS HERERXS (ER
AERBISEM2E[MER S FHEEERS]
—f) 2B A RSB BT EMRBIE14AE - R
i BEFRXPEREETLEMRNE4AEZNRE
BRTE  BRABERS)ERIBEF14A.76(1) &
E’J?fﬁﬁ%@ﬁaﬂ@?%(ii)ﬁﬁuﬁzﬁxH’Jﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁmﬁf
MEAEEREBRAFABRIFALAEEF
&Iﬁﬁ‘f%MAQOIETZEZI"%TEH‘?$§EK@
MEE -

RRARAEERBESTRAERALF
EMEEEE 2R - HEROR
BEHRcEERXR

R-ZFZ=F=ZA=t—H &2 T%%&?%’
TR A B AR A g & A (] 48 Bt O B (32 (RE

K BB I (KR8 25 M B E R 1)) XV &R AT 8
ZER)ZEN  HEROXESTEEATE
mPKkRE MazEEZLABRERRE(GE
KB GEDI)EI2EHRERBFZELMAL
8 IWBHIAESFLTRAT TR DB

(EMBETAEZETERRXSNFRETUNER
ETFANERTHEARRA MBS KR

WM AN
KE
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Interests in shares of the Company (the “Shares”) RAEATRG (RG] 2 E=

Approximate
percentage of

Long/short Number of the issued
Name of Director Nature of interest positions Shares voting Shares
HERT
RERG
ESnA EamME B/ KRR ROBE <ZBHABESH
(%)
! |
Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Note 1) Interest in a controlled  Long position 900,000,000 53.02%
BN EN 1) corporation [59)
REEERER
Mr. Yip Mow Lum Beneficial owner Long position 192,040,280 11.31%
BRMELE BEREBA e
Mr. Hui Yik Bun Beneficial owner Long position 600,000 0.08%
FrEW LS EREEA e
Mr. Yu Yun Kong Beneficial owner Long position 1,108,829 0.07%
REAMEE BERERA e
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun Beneficial owner Long position 669,666 0.04%
AL ERBEEA e
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph Beneficial owner Long position 210,700 0.01%
% B R 5T BEREBA Sy
Note: Bt -

900,000,000 Shares were held by New Charming Holdings Limited, 900,000,000l A RAAIER AR AT (EEE T
a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the Chairman of the EEXMNELELZEHRBZRANEFAE - At - EHEM
Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed to be interested in these AR B(E SR B EEH) KRG AR ZZ D T
Shares by virtue of the SFO. B -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
PARTIES OTHER THAN DIRECTORS OR
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2023, the parties (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange are as follows:

Nature of interest

BaitE

Name of Shareholder

BREMR

Long/short positions

#/ %R

BREXFEEESN RZF_=F=ZA=+—
B ARAZREFTHHZSTBRAEBMEEALRT]
s AR AE (R(GEHZ R BMEHEHDEXV
mAriE 2 E ) 2EMRD - BERDRESS
BRECTAEDZIOAR  MEFEDIREZER
ARARECE 7 M BB GO E35216 18 E B
BRZECMALE  AREFLETICAE
ARBMBZ Az EmIAE -

RRABRESEHABRSTHRAEUNML
RALQ T R 5 K8 ERG28 s &K

)=

NRZE-_=F=A=+—H XxRAEETXES
TTHRABUAIATRBRORBERDHES
THRENIAR MZEEIIABRERARF
RIBE(EAE R EIEG)EIGIERTEEAEBERTZ
ZRMARRE  KESTMEEAAE KB RAT
AR

Number of Approximate
Shares and  percentage of
underlying the issued

Shares voting Shares

ROBER HEBTRERSG
HERH#E ZEBRED

Beneficial owner

ERBEBA

New Charming Holdings Limited (Note)

MERAERBRAR (M 2) He

Note:

900,000,000 Shares were held by New Charming Holdings Limited,
a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the chairman of the
Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed to have an interest in
these Shares.

BARHETHMEEERAF | —T——/ _=FFH

Long position

900,000,000 53.02%

900,000,000 IR BT RAIERER AR (EEE

FREEMEEZBREBZRARNFE - B - BEXM
EERB AR ZERNDTEAES -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the
parties (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had any interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company, its holding
company or any of their subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board of Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, there has been sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
section on pages 78 to 99 of this annual report.

B%J:XPH&E%%?I\' R-EB_=F=A=+—

EEMAL(RRFEEHNESTHRAE
%9\\)3@%@&*@%@%%43 BB HNARA
REB(EFLBEGI)EIBKRRERERFZ
BRftA - KBREM S A MEARE R BER
FrzEfAEmsoR R -

EEBARODHES ZEF

RAFEREMER  ARE - EERAIAK
BEZEAMBRATAMELBEMALY  FE
SERBARRRSEMEMER ZBHLE
FHMmER -

ZERARERE
BRERAARAIRGCARENREBESESMA
HEXRFHRBAH  XAFREETRNTPEBB
B%HARFTER  HeLmRBIMBAEZRE
REBFREEK-

%IEI:lm

REEARNRQAGIWEFT Tk IFEELEEY (T
MEBEKEB2EERITHRAD -

EEER

ARBIFIRMZER %

=) %@EA$¢$&
FISEQQA Z [ EERRE]—F

116 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2022/23



Directors’ Report
EEERE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to discharging its corporate social
responsibility as well as protecting the environment by
minimizing the negative impact of the Group’s existing business
activities on the environment. Details of which are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 52 to
77 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
have been audited by Messrs. KPMG, who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting. Messrs.
KPMG, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG Certified
Public Accountants, as the independent auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of,
dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to the shares
of the Company, they are advised to consult an expert.

BARHETHMEEERAF | —T——/ _=FFH

BRERERRHE

AEBRNRBETELEHLGETE  AREE
BREASERAEXGEHHRENAEZEN
RERE - ARAFBHNAFRES2ETTAN
RE -HEREBRRS -

BRABUFHITES2BLMY

ARREWESBULIFRTESRIE EMAR
FIBHEREBLIMEH CFRER - AQAR
RERBYUFNTEFHIREL -

B % BE

BE T =-F=-A=+-"HLFEZVBR
REHRESHEAMEHAAESHMER -
ESHEHMEBMANEERRBFRGH
RERME HEERYBEERZER -EFg
BREERRBFASLIR2ZEBEFTHE
MMEBARARB B L RBEZRASR -

BRECEEBBRER

MARARIAREHBE 5 HE 8
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2 EERSHWERAL -

117



Directors’ Report
EEE®RE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES EEE€ BB ARENSEE
FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of ZZ€EASHESVHEMEEE LA T
accounts for each financial period, which gives a true and fair KBAEEZEHERN  ZHBEERE LR
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and E27FH - RBEREEZ T -_=F=F=1+—H
cash flows for that period. In preparing the accounts for the IFFEEERR SE@CERTEHERS
year ended 31 March 2023, the Board of Directors has selected EZ &€zt X - tELEEAIE Z HI B M (HEF
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, WEEKEBELLSEERLUKA -EFC8ER
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and 7FEEZET408E N AIEERILHE
reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going concern N5 B ~ Bf #& k0 -

basis. The Board of Directors is responsible for keeping proper

accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at

any time, the financial position of the Group.

On behalf of the Board REREES

Hui Yik Bun HITEFFTHAZ
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer TEW

Hong Kong B

26 June 2023 —E-=FRA-tTRH
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e

To the shareholders of
Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bright
Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 126 to
219, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2023, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2023 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

BAESTHEERRAF | —F | Z=EFR

epnsc

HRETRSCMEBMETRAARK
(RESHEZMA L ZERAF)
=R

AZBETUATERBIRMDEEAINERE
126E219E R EFEMEBARARTER
ADRENBAR((ERE]NEEHBRE -
hGREMBRERER-_E_=F=A=+—
EMGEAMBRRAER  BEZBLFENEZS
EHKRGER SERDEPHRNESRSRE
RONARGEMBHRRME  BREIEEHR
RIEE -

BARS  ZERAVBRRECREZT LS
fing((EFEeFMmag) Bhn(EEMBR
SRAN(EAEMBREENNEEEAFHR
R EEER-_T_=F=-A=1+-HBNKEaH
BRARBEZRLFENGAWBKREA RS
FHERE YCRREB(RAKRIDZKE
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RREE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Revenue recognition: Brokerage commission income

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on page 162.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Brokerage commission income represented Our audit procedures to assess the recognition
68% of the total revenue of the Group for the of brokerage commission income included the
year ended 31 March 2023, following:

FARETER

AREAZFTEERBRMANEXHE  RAYH
AR EMBRERNEBTRASEENER - &
LERTERMEABRGAVBRR LA
EARETREN RMATSHELEREH
BEBENER -

WARRE —REMAESBA
2GR EUBERRMTARFI2EZ AR -

BRENER RANEH NARRYEEE
EERARRANAG BEBE RAMTLRDERENKAZE
5-E-"E-At-ALFE BFBENTAR:
28 A 268% -

Brokerage commission income arising from o
brokerage trading of securities, commodities
and futures is recognised on a trade date
basis when the relevant transactions are
executed.

Where the customer is given rights to
additional discounted or free services in
the future as a result of paying brokerage
commission, an appropriate amount of the
brokerage commission income is deferred
and recognised when those material rights
are utilised by the customers or expire.
Management judgement is involved in
determining the appropriate amount of the ¢
deferred brokerage commission income
mainly based on historical deferred rebate
utilisation rate.

The commission income subject to volume
rebate arrangements is recognised once
it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when
the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. .

We identified the recognition of brokerage
commission income as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and
therefore there is an inherent risk that the o
timing of recognition of revenue and the
amount recognised could be manipulated to
meet specific targets or expectations.

120

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to revenue recognition.
For the key underlying systems used for
the processing of transactions in relation to
the brokerage commission income, trading
volumes, commission rates and volume
rebates, this included involving our information
technology specialists to assess the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of a selection of relevant key internal controls
over access to these systems and controls
over data and change management;

developing an expectation of brokerage
commission income and deferred revenue for
the current year based on our consideration
of trading volumes, commission rates and
historical data, comparing our expectation
with the actual brokerage commission income
recorded by the Group and investigating
any significant differences between our
expectation and the amounts recorded by the
Group;

performing retrospective review on the material
rights estimated to be utilised by customers
by comparing the estimated deferred rebate
utilisation rate in the prior year against the actual
utilisation rate in the current year,

assessing the appropriateness of the estimated
deferred rebate utilisation rate by comparing with
the historical deferred rebate utilisation and our
understanding of the business; and

comparing details of journal entries raised during
the current year which affected revenue with
underlying documentation on a sample basis.
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Valuation of accounts receivable from margin clients

Refer to notes 16 and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages 177 to 179 and

pages 195 to 211.

The Key Audit Matter

At 31 March 2023 accounts receivable from
margin clients totalled HK$5,466 million,
representing 71% of the Group’s total
assets.

Margin clients are required to pledge
securities as collateral in order to obtain
margin loans. When determining the fair
value of the accounts receivable at the
reporting date, management evaluate
the margin loan portfolios on a fair value
basis by primarily considering the value of
collateral, which principally comprised listed
securities, with reference to the quoted
prices, to the extent of the outstanding loan
amounts. The Group classified accounts
receivable from margin clients as financial
assets measured at fair value through profit
or loss (‘FVPL).

In cases of collateral shortfalls, management
exercises judgement by taking into account
other factors such as available remedies for
recovery and the financial situation of the
borrower.

We identified assessing valuation of
accounts receivable from margin clients
as a key audit matter because of its
significance in the context of the Group’s
financial statements and also because of the
judgement exercised by the management in
determining the inputs used in the valuation.

BIESETHEERRAR | —F—_—/

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
accounts receivable from margin clients included
the following:

o understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of the key internal controls over the approval,
recording and monitoring of accounts
receivable from margin clients and collateral
shortfalls and valuation procedures;

o understanding the business model of
margin financing business and assessing
the classification of accounts receivable
with reference to the prevailing accounting
standard;

o assessing the existence of collateral by
comparing the underlying securities held
as collateral as extracted from the Group’s
records with custodian statements from
brokers or clearing houses on a sample basis;

o identifying collateral shortfalls, which affect the
valuation of accounts receivable from margin
clients, by comparing the carrying value of
individual accounts receivable to the value
of underlying securities with reference to the
publicly available market prices on a sample
basis;

o in cases of material collateral shortfalls,
assessing the available remedies for recovery
such as the fair value of the assets placed
with the Group and other possible sources of
repayment from the borrower; and

o assessing the reasonableness of the
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards.

=FER

BRFREFRBEZME

2B G AP BRRWMF16F28K F177E21798
MEIBE2ME Z G HE °

BRESEE

RZE-=F=fA=+-8 E%
FERPHIBE5466BEET -
1 EEEAEEN%

AEEPARNASBAREF AR
RAREHRER - BERREEA
BEREFHLFER - EREN
LYEAERFEARERAS
B ZENIBRZRAAR(E
ERELHENNER AK2
ZHE RARKEBENEHN S
B AFEREAFEERPIA
PRARATEAABEHEL
TREE-

WERm I NEREGETH
B ZRAMAR - MRBFEN
RERERERETADHHM
ne

HRERFEEFPFAY R5E
LHBRRYEENNREEE
REEREFAGAABETE
I REARFEERTE L
ERRBRELSE

AMNEHNAREREEE

EMTREERAREPHELAE
LEARFEENTAR:

o TERRFERE THERES
EUAREPREAREAHKO
U RIEERF OB A
Z&it BRERERRA:

o TRARBEXBHEHEL
R2ERTEHEN  FHEE
WD BER:

¢ BRRERAAREZENE
fFEAmNERESERAE
LABEREROREAGERN
LR FEEAREEE

T -
4

o RBRELEARPRENEK
AEEEEEFNER 12
ZRRMTRER BEYE
HBRERREPENERM:
EHERRTRER  HHE
ES Sk

o EREHAARTROEABN
B FETRARMEHENH
EE AImERR 55E
MEENRFEARERAL
AT ERRE R

o ZERTEFEUNRTNMG
RRABARRRENA Y -

121



Independent Auditor’s Report

B R BERE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

s FHEEFEMRASIBENBREMLERED
SRt AR MERERENS R -

s HEERAKBLLGTERNBENR
fEifEm - RBFAEMMETRE BT
EEFERERKBEAEENEANTEE
Mk ERYE EEENBELE
RNELEEARRE NRBMRREHEE
ATHEEN MBS BERBEN RS
FBIBHAVBHRRPOEEEE - BRE
BRENBRETRE  AEIRMANER - &
1P 80 48 7 2 B A X BT 45 B LE FTERAS A9
BFRE - A RERFELBRATEE
¥ BEEBETRFELE -

s FHEHXAUBHRNERIHRIN  EF
MAR BREEE URESUBHRRE
BREsRBABXZMNEE -

e i BERBERNEBIXBEINYKER
EmxR EENENRE UEHEHEAS
MBBRERBERER - BHMEERFTHOT
M- EBEEHNT  RASBEAERAER
AL -

FREMEERESN  RPAEEZZEQBRTE
MEFSE BEALZHEREAETERE 8
RIS BB A BB AR Bl M) (A B KRR
fa -

BMERNEZZESRER SARMAET
EERBYMMNERERER L EMBFEAE
ERRABNRR ST ERMBIENME
BMEMEMEER  AREERNBERLT  BH
FREB MR TR RERMN EEE -

124 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2022/23



Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZBARE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wong Po Shan.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_Z-_=F=ZA=+—HIEFECABTIT)

2023 2022
—E-=F T —4F
Note $’000 $°000
Bt 5 Fr T
'
Revenue A 4 881,733 1,068,012
Other income Hth g 7
— Interest income calculated using — REBMNELHED
effective interest rate method BB A 5 196,721 26,816
— Interest income calculated using — REMFEFERD
other method BB A 5 36,481 51,906
— Others — HAth S 92,955 111,558
Other net loss H b Eri8 F 5 6 (8,674) (8,521)
1,199,216 1,249,771
Staff costs BIKA 7(b) (120,120) (160,616)
Amortisation and depreciation HBERITE (74,488) (77,541)
Net charges for expected credit losses B Hi{z B 718 % 58 (752) (7,429)
Other operating expenses Hh&&E M= 7(0) (197,459) (223,459)
Profit from operations rE@mA 806,397 780,726
Finance costs BF 7 B AR 7(a) (114,202) (124,512)
Profit before taxation R Bt A a R 7 692,195 656,214
Income tax Frig &t 8 (71,600) (94,712)
Profit for the year FRER 620,595 561,502
Other comprehensive income for SR EMEEWKHE :
the year:
ltems that may be reclassified HiErgEfoEs
subsequently to profit or loss B=mrIEE
— Exchange reserve — E N FEE 285 (157)
Total comprehensive income EaBRRELCFREZE
attributable to equity WmE
shareholders for the year 620,880 561,345
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (cents) A M) 11 36.56 33.08
Diluted (cents) #5E () 11 36.56 33.08

The notes on pages 132 to 219 form part of these financial Z5132ZE 2198 7 i 5 1 A It B 55 3 & E AP &6
statements. Details of dividends declared for the year are set out % ° FRE IR B 2 E 15 SR M 5E26(b) °

in note 26(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR 3R

At 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZB-Z=ZF=ZA=+—BAEBTIHITR)

2023 2022
—E-Z=H —E-4F
Note $’000 $’000
B 5 T T
' e A
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB REHE 13 88,667 136,198
Intangible assets | EE 14 5,783 5,783
Deferred tax assets BELEHIBEE 25(b) 801 1,820
Financial assets at amortised cost BEHEK AT EZEMEE - 1,443
Other receivables, deposits and HEip el kiE - i2e &
prepayments SEENE QL] 17 2,941 1,981
Other assets Hith & & 15 41,843 79,978
Total non-current assets _  : #RBEERE 140035 227,203
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable FE LK BR 3K 16 6,971,713 8,915,867
Other receivables, deposits and HMEWHRIE Zek
prepayments TET RIE 17 36,914 29,446
Financial assets at fair value through &R QA F{EFAEHZ
profit or loss TREE 66,012 49,575
Financial assets at amortised cost BREHEK AT EZEMEE 943 =
Tax recoverable Al AR B 75 18 25(a) 9,222 21,707
Cash and cash equivalents HRekBEeEED 18(a) 504,531 524,716
Total currentassets = #“®&EE®E 7,589,335 9,541,811
Current liabilities REaE
Accounts payable JE 5 BR 3K 20 1,464,115 1,939,351
Accrued expenses and other payables J& 5 5 52 K& E b & (< ZUIE 21 51,648 85,881
Bank loans RITE XK 22 4,409,000 5,162,165
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 54,322 54,186
Current taxation BN HARE 18 25(a) 6,718 3,462
Total current liabilites ~~ #“B&sf@E#s® 5,985,803 7,245,045
Netcurrentassets = *BXEFE 1,603,582 2,296,266
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERTBEE 1,743,567 2,523,469
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Accrued expenses and other payables & 5t 51 sz & H b & <t 7018 21 608 794
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 8,545 51,304
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBELRE 9,153 52,098
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,734,414 2,471,371
BARLSEREFERLAT | = | —=FFH, 127



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e R R R

At 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZBZ=F=A=+—HBUABTITR)

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-=

Note $’000 $’000

hg=2 Fr Tt
./ ! ! |
EQUITY e
Share capital % 2 26 509,189 509,189
Share premium f% 0 &m (E 26 738,020 738,020
Exchange reserve P 7 1 26(d) 333 48
Merger reserve & HiEE 26(d) (20,000) (20,000)
Retained profits R E & A 26 506,872 1,244,114
TOTAL EQUITY EmHAE 1,734,414 2,471,371

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on K ERER T -_=F XA+ X ETEE
26 June 2023. Fij 2% -

Directors

5=

Yip Mow Lum Hui Yik Bun
ERM AW

The notes on pages 132 to 219 form part of these financial Z132ZE 2198 7 i 5 1 A It 5 B 55 3 & E A &6

4N o

statements. 7]
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HEZZZ-=F=ZA=1+—HLEFEUAEBTIR)

Share Share  Exchange Merger Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits  Total equity
TS & 3% & B X e SR REEF EHlE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
s T Tr T i Tr Tr
! '/ ! ' [ ' [ /| |
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE--FMA-A 509,189 738,020 205 (20,000) 903,261 2,130,675
Changes in equity for the year ended HEZ-ZF=--%
31 March 2022: =ZA=+-AL
EEvERZE:
Profit for the year FR&EF - - - - 561,502 561,502
Other comprehensive income 2 mbE - - (157) - - (157)
Total comprehensive income FRE2EMRAE
for the year - - (157) - 561,502 561,345
Dividend paid during the year FRRMHRE 26(0) - - - - (220,649) (220,649)
At 31 March 2022 RZZ-Z%
=A=+-H 509,189 738,020 48 (20,000) 1,244,114 2,471,311
At 1 April 2022 R-B--EmE-R 509,189 738,020 48 (20,0000 1,244,114 2,471,371
Changes in equity for the yearended BZ-Z-Z=f
31 March 2023: =A=t-HL
FEVERED:
Profit for the year FREF - - - - 620,595 620,595
Other comprehensive income Ht2ENE - - 285 - - 285
Total comprehensive income FRE2ERRAE
for the year - - 285 - 620,595 620,880
Dividend paid during the year ERRAEHRE 26(0) - - - - (1,357,837)  (1,357,837)
At 31 March 2023 R-BZ=F
ZA=+-8 509189 738,020 38 (200000 506872 1734414

The notes on pages 132 to 219 form part of these financial F132E2198 2T BRI ST B HE E P I
statements. e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_Z-_=F=ZA=+—HIEFECABTIT)

2023 2022
—E-=E —E-—F
Note $’000 $°000
B 5E Fr Tt

1
Operating activities RESEE
Cash generated from operations KEXBMERS 18(b) 2,119,058 6,874,889
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREBRNEH (54,840) (171,301)
Net cash generated from RETEBMBEEEE

operating activities 2,064,218 6,703,588
Investing activities REZH
Purchase of financial assets at amortised BEE LB K AT E 2

cost THEE - (8,1193)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value B EIR A FEFAEZ 2

through profit or loss TRMEE (108,861) (39,139)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEE A FEFAEBREZ

at fair value through profit or loss EREESRE 89,135 33,371
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets &R K A 2 2

at amortised cost SREEMSNIE - 7,758
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE « HE N X E

and equipment Fr 1S 5818 2,742 =
Payment for purchase of property, BEME KBEX

plant and equipment BE-ENEN (15,308) (7,966)
Dividend received 2R & 2,083 1,607
Interest received =S IPE) 233,306 78,930
Net cash generated from investing RETBHMEHRESFE

activities 203,097 66,448
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEBREEIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-_Z-_=F=ZA=+—HIEFEUGABTITR)

2023 2022
—E-=F T F
Note $’000 $°000
Bt & Fr Tt
I
Financing activities MEETE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEHE2ERTED (57,083) (61,258)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENEEHREE 2 EHD (1,444) (1,122
Net repayment of bank loans RITERETFE (748,358) (6,275,874)
Dividend paid B E (1,357,837) (220,649)
Interest paid B F B (112,758) (123,390)
Net cash used in financing activities BEFEFARESFHE (2,277,480) (6,682,293)
Net (decrease)/increaseincashand BRERBELZEY
cash equivalents Rl ),/ # hnF 88 (10,165) 87,743
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April RO A—HBZBER
REEEY 524,716 418,483
Effect of foreign exchange rates EXxEHso¥E
changes (10,020) 18,490
Cash and cash equivalents at R=ZA=+—HZzHRE£ERK
31 March ReEEEY 18(a) 504,531 524,716

The notes on pages 132 to 219 form part of these financial

statements.

BARHETHMEEERAF | —T——/ _=FFH

v)

o

FIRE2I0E 2B S H R R E P

131



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7E SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B S BEA - AETIIR)

132

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(“the Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
on 4 August 2009 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman lIslands. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.
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Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way,
802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1205, Cayman Islands ° B Z -2 - =F =
A=T—RLEFEZHEVBRRRTER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current accounting
period reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis,
except that certain financial instruments are stated
at their fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs require management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that year, or in the year of the revision and future
years if the revision affects both current and future
years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©)

Basis of consolidation

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)
unless the investment is classified as held for
sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations involving entities
under common control

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses as if they
had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or business first came under
the control of the controlling parties.

The net assets of the combining entities or
business are recognised at the carrying values
prior to the common control combination.

The consolidated financial statements include
the results of each of the combining entities
or business from the earliest date presented
or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under the control of the
controlling parties, where this is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
entities or businesses had been combined at
the previous reporting date or when they first
came under control of the controlling parties,
whichever is shorter.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Over the
Lease term

—  Properties leased for own use

Shorter of the
unexpired term of
lease and 3 years

—  Leasehold improvements

—  Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years
—  Office equipment 5 years
—  Furniture and fixtures 5 years
—  Computers and software 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

®

Intangible assets
Intangible assets include club and school debentures.

The intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)). Amortisation
begins when the asset is available for use, i.e. when
it is in the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended.
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives as
follows:

—  Debentures are amortised over the unexpired
term

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy
for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as
set out above.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group are primarily office furniture.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities
Investments

Investments held by the Group are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method
(see note 2(p)(iii)).

fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual
cash flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
The Group recognises expected credit losses
allowance (“ECL”) on the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and other receivables, deposits
and prepayments);

— debt securities measured at FVOCI
(recycling); and

— loan commitments issued, which are not
measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at FVPL,
equity securities designated at FVOCI (non —
recycling) and derivative financial assets, are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder of the
loan commitment draws down on the loan and
(i) the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, accounts
receivable and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate; and

— loan commitments: current risk-free rate
adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

For accounts receivable, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments, financial assets at
amortised cost, and cash and cash equivalents,
the Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

BrESETRHEETRAF |

failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
For loan commitments, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing ECLs
is considered to be the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a
loan commitment, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default occurring on the loan to
which the loan commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change
in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for investments
in debt securities that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B % & 5= A5

F A TTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

BIESETHEERRAR | —F—_—/

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-
impaired financial assets

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(p)iii) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower

will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7E SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B S BEA - AETIIR)

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-

impaired financial assets (Continued)

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

— the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of loss allowance in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

intangible assets; and

investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

BrESETRHEETRAF |

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

z /

=FER

2

FESTTHE®)

(hy FEEBEREERE®R)

(i)

Hit&EERE
RERNMEINE 2 ERTIRE
HEBHERN  UBHTIE
ERRHEBRERBERER
MEBETNBFEXAEDR
DZBR e

ME BELERE B
EREEE:

BREE: R

R B AR R AR R B
BRAAZIKE -

MFEEMZTR - Al &MEE
BEZAIWRDEE -

FHEAE S

BEZAKRODSERER
FERBEERALERE
EMEZERSE - R
EREER - At KRR
&M B AR RE
BEEREERERRZR
B 1 355 7T {2 T AT R 3R =X
MREHRRE - HEEM
EXReRARKREE L
WIFBIL N EME EFTE
£E - RBYELARS
MAZ&N—HEERD
ReELBEMBTEAR
Bl & % -

149



Notes to the Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

150

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the period
in which the reversals are recognised.

Accounts receivable and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has an

unconditional right to receive consideration. A right

to receive consideration is unconditional if only the

passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised

before the group has an unconditional right to receive

consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

)

(k)

@)

Accounts receivable and other receivables
(Continued)

Except for accounts receivable arising from cash
clients, margin clients and subscriptions of new
shares in IPO which are stated at financial assets
measured at FVPL; receivables are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for credit losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, and demand deposits with banks. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(h)(i).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits

(i)

(i

(i)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a share
option reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at the grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

Where the Company enters into equity-
settled share-based payment arrangements
involving employees of subsidiaries, the cost is
recognised in “Investment in subsidiaries” and
credited to the “Share option reserve” over the
vesting period. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the vested option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets
are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

(0)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised
on a trade date basis when the relevant
transactions are executed. Volume rebate to
customers is recognised to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. Where the customer is given rights
to additional discounted or free services in
the future as a result of paying brokerage
commission, an appropriate amount of the
brokerage commission income is deferred
and recognised when those material rights are
utilised by the customers or expire.

Income from bullion trading
Income from bullion trading is recognised when
the related services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Handling and settlement fee income
Handling and settlement fee income are
recognised when the related services are
rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Investment trading

Income from investment including realised fair
value gains or losses on trading investment is
recognised on a trade date basis.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates.
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BA IS MR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)

2

BIESETHEERRAR | —F—_—/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q@)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in
other fiduciary capacities that result in the holding
or placing of assets on behalf of its customers.
These assets arising thereon are excluded from the
consolidated financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or
(8) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parents.
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B 7E SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B %= B E A

2

CAETTIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

1)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third party.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of the Group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.

160

2

FESTTHES)

() BEAL#E)

(ii) ﬁfﬁﬁﬁwﬂﬂ%@ BIZZE
RREAEEGRE

(1) ZEREASEBR-—
lZWE@T@%#E
IR INCIDS AR EN )=
RAZEER@E) -

BAr—BERZE
/AME¥C%E3
%W%%@ﬁTW

ﬁk,L‘/_\TjZA

B> om 30 mE |

| > =

~ _I )ﬂﬂfii} | )ﬂﬂfﬁ}
%

e >

@ MEEMHAR—E=
ZRBLE -

BREE=ZFE
¥ mME—E
Pl AN

:m)a

(ol i@

26
vl

ND%
8 0dE o
|H9%

o

ZERBAAREELELRE
EARREZEEIERRT
RS2 BB 1R AR A A

2 -

&
B S
=

kﬂlﬁ

#m

5

E

. B

ﬁ;ﬂ

@ ORI LEHE
YENABH
%WEEFZtﬂ)
EAR ¢

NWW

p

H
W @
m

/

8 “ERIZEBMEESHE
ZIERMKERABAEE
IAREBZHRAREEE
ZEEABRSE -

N
~

X

N

ERALZOREREZER
RIEHAZEZBATHEZS
TEIZREKE -

2
+

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements
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2

BIESETHEERRAR | —F—_—/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16, “Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use”

Amendments to HKAS 37, “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts
— cost of fulfilling a contract”

None of these developments has had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or presented
in this annual report.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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B 7E SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S BEA - AETIIR)

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are securities broking,
margin and IPO financings, commodities and futures
broking, bullion trading and leveraged foreign exchange
trading.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as
follows:

A
AEBEIBEBRBLFEL  FRRER

NFARERE FAnkYELEL BB
RZARBERAINERS -

EBEERMNBASENT

2023 2022
—E-=E T —F
$’000 $'000
Fr FT
1
Revenue from contracts with EBMEHREERFE155
customers within HERAZEFEHKWA
the scope of HKFRS 15
Brokerage commission _ &m@® 598,269 690,801 _
Revenue from other sources Hfth 2ROR W A
Dealing income from bullion trading EeBRIBMA 4,876 10,791
Dealing income from leveraged foreign BERAIIER S KA
exchange trading 948 2,548
Interest income from margin financing FREEMNEWA 276,863 326,135
Interest income from IPO financing BRAAHBEERERNBKA 777 37,737
283,464 377,211
881,733 1,068,012

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no customer
had transactions which exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 and does not disclose
information about the remaining performance obligation
that have original expected durations of one year or less.

AEEEFERERE HMERSE-—FPHE
TXHEBAREERAI0% -

AEECREAE BB REENFRE
2B 2 ATRENE LEEBEEBR
AR A —FRU T2 B EOEL
B
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B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S BHEBH - B TIIR)

5 OTHER INCOME 5 Htz=
2023 2022
—Zg== —E- =
$°000 $’000
F Tt
1y A
Interest income from B A KB
Financial assets carried at REBHEBAIRZEREE
amortised cost
— Authorised institutions — R 188,762 25,586
— Others — Hfth 7,959 1,230
196,721 26,816
Financial assets carried at FVPL DEAFEFABREZZAFR
JIRzERMEE
— Cash clients —BeEP 36,481 51,906
233,202 78,722
Handling and settlement fees FEBREEER 76,192 96,572
Dividend income g B A 2,083 1,607
Government grants BT 78 B 2,585 1,131
Sundry income AW A 12,095 12,248
326,157 190,280
6 OTHER NET LOSS 6 HttEEFHAE
2023 2022
—E-=EF —E- =
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Realised gain/(loss) from BEgRKE (BB XRa
— Financial assets at fair value through — BAVEFABERZ
profit or loss SRIEE 1,466 (3,373)
Unrealised loss from FEBREBRE
— Financial assets at fair value through — BAVEFAERZ
profit or loss SREE (4,755) (23,386)
(3,289) (26,759)
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain SNE (5 18), W % 0 58 (4,356) 19,600
Loss on disposals of property, LEME BEK
plant and equipment REBE (69) (36)
Error trades arising from dealings EERS (12) (180)
Others =i (948) (1,146)
(8,674) (8,521)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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164

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7 R ADEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: B AR A 2 FOBR T 51 & 18 -
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
$’000 $'000
Fr FT
(a) Finance costs (a) KR
Interest expenses on AT & IEF B
— Bank loans for IPO financing — BRARHEERMEZ
RITERK 106 26,514
— Other bank loans — HMIRTER 104,608 93,561
— Lease liabilities (note 13) — HEBBEMHZL13) 1,444 1,122
— Others — HAftb 8,044 3,315
114,202 124,512
(b) Staff costs (b) BEIRAK
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e ERUEREWREF
kind 103,317 111,430
Discretionary bonuses BB IE AL 13,454 45,402
Contributions to Mandatory Provident BB S M
Fund 3,349 3,784
120,120 160,616
(c) Other operating expenses (c) HiR&EmMX
Advertising and promotion expenses BEEREEMAE 15,057 19,488
Auditors’ remuneration % B 6T BN & 1,768 1,733
Commission, handling and LR BEe  FEEBNM
settlement expenses EEER 97,239 114,566
Information and communication B RBAAX
expenses 44,721 44,435
Legal and professional fees FEREXER 1,785 1,891
Operating lease payments — LEHON R
property rentals —WEHEE 87 278
Rates and building management fees EMRIEFERE 4,946 4,340
Miscellaneous expenses HMERX 31,856 36,728
197,459 223,459
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S BHEBH - B TIIR)

BIESETHEERRAR | —F—_—/

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

8

REZTHEHWBRBERZFEHR

(@ FREREWFERZBIEE:

2023 2022
- g —_= —_=__

$’000 $'000

Fx Tt

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

BHRE - BEEBRNEHR

Provision for the year F R 70,598 96,153
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BAEFE

prior years (5, TREHE (17) 111

70,581 96,264

Deferred tax IE & B 1R
Origination and reversal of temporary TIFERE EA RER

differences (note 25(b)(i)) (H1F250)00)) 1,019 (1,552)
Total tax charge for the year FAMEBEL DR 71,600 94,712

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2023 is
calculated at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate
regime.

For this subsidiary, the first $2 million of assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was
calculated at the same basis in 2022.

=FER

TR CZFZBEARNEHBREIAE
AfEET RS M 1216.5% (ZF ==
F:16.5%)E - EAKE—HHE
RAFS B R ARSI RSB Z R AFRRON

BB ARIME - B2,000,0007TE
FRRH FIR8.25% M - AT EER
i MBI 16.5% B H - KB AR Z
BAFNGSHREBEZE-_T - —FiER
ZEEHHE
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8§ INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

(a)

(b)

166

Taxation in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents: (Continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2023 is
taken into account a reduction granted by the Hong
Kong SAR Government of 100% of the tax payable
for the year of assessment 2022-23 subject to a
maximum reduction of $6,000 for each business
(2022: a maximum reduction of $10,000 was granted
for the year of assessment 2021-22 and was taken
into account in calculating the provision for 2022).

Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

GETHREXRZAEBHR 2

(@)

(b)

FEREWRBERZBER: (@)

ZEZCFEAFNERBEDIRK
EBENTHEBRNRE =%
TEERBEERTE —E%100%
(LR &6,0007T) 2 ENBIBER (=
T B CEIRECRHE
M-B 2 _FRUUFEETZ
& 510,0007T & H) o

BERAREGEZBEMXES
BRE L

2023 2022
—_E=-= e
$°000 $’000
5 Fr
e
Profit before taxation B 35 Bl & A 692,195 656,214
Notional tax on profit before taxation ZEARNHEBEEREF 2
calculated at the rates applicable to MEFEZBRBA
profits in the countries concerned i Al B & IR 114,058 108,110
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TT?D BAS 2 HBEE ; 2,246 3,656
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARBNE o MBEE (43,617) (13,498)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERRBAMBEBIEZ
recognised MG E 272 3
Utilisation of tax loss previously not By S AT R R
recognised TIEE A (25) (41)
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BAFE(BFE),/
prior years TREE (17) 11
Others Hfth (1,317) (3,629)
Total tax charge for the year FABREZ HER 71,600 94,712
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B S BHEBH - B TIIR)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulations are as follows:

EEM=

2 REF B(R B & H1)%383(1) & k(A A
(BREEENDER)RADE2RAREZ
EEMET:

2023
—ECZE

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to Mandatory

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary Provident
fees in kind bonuses Fund Total

5% 2ER
EZHe BNREA MERL BESHXR @t
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
r r i r i
./ ! !/ ! ' [ |
Yip Mow Lum ERM - 14,952 4,563 - 19,515
Hui Yik Bun TEW - 2,520 1,375 18 3,913
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson Bk 3 - 1,040 236 18 1,294
Yu Yun Kong e 273 - - - 213
Szeto Wai Sun pkid £ 237 - - - 237
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph KB E 201 - - - 201
Total Bt 711 18,512 6,174 36 25,433
2022
—E-CF

Salaries, Contributions

allowances and  Discretionary  to Mandatory
Directors’ fees  benefits in kind bonuses  Provident Fund Total

5 2R
Rk ENRH WERAD  HERER B
$000 $000 $000 $:000 $000
i i i i i
' ! ! ! ' [ |

Yip Mow Lum L4 - 14,472 9,136 = 23,608
Hui Yik Bun TEW - 2,444 3,896 18 6,358
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson Bk 3 - 1,010 261 18 1,289
Yu Yun Kong REMA 264 - - - 264
Szeto Wai Sun A e 229 = - = 229
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph REE 194 - - - 194
Total B 687 17,926 13,293 36 31,942
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9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No director received any emoluments from the Group as
an inducement to join or leave the Group or compensation
for loss of office and, no director waived or has agreed to
waive any emoluments.

10 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Included in the emoluments of the five individuals with
the highest emoluments were the emoluments of 2
(2022: 2) Directors. The emoluments of Directors have
been disclosed in note 9 above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other 3 (2022: 3) individuals
are as follows:

10

EEME

BMEEEEAKEWRRETAMES - FRN
BABRAAREZ R RBERME - TE
EEREXRAERELAME -

ReEFMAL

IEFHEeENEETEEMAG(ZE=_Z
FHBEEF - BTN LEXHFO
WE - -BRTI=ZR(CTE-_—F:=Zf)AETZ
P& mzEmT:

2023 2022
—E-=EF —E-=

$’000 $°000

Fr Tt

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBEREYET 3,574 5,230
Discretionary bonuses B 15 TE 4L 2,521 7,044
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund 38 7& & fft & 39 54

6,134 12,328

The emoluments of the 3 (2022: 3) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

BoZ(CE-—E CEZ)SESEMAT
ZEN FUATEHE:

2023 2022
—_EC-=E —EF-=

$’000 $'000

Fr Tt

Nil to $2,000,000
$2,000,001 to $4,000,000
$4,000,001 to $6.000,000
$6,000,001 to $8,000,000
$8,000,001 to $10,000,000

Z £2,000,0007T 2 2
2,000,0017T £4,000,0007T 1 =
4,000,0017T £6,000,0007T = —
6,000,0017T £8,000,0007T - -
8,000,0017T £10,000,0007T = 1

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial year

(2022: Nil).
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

11

BRAER
SREXRF
SRERRFIRUAFERDAHEAE

EHENBEAFRERTERR 2 MEFH
BEtE -

2023 2022
—EB-=HF —_EF_-—

L ' - -
Earnings el
Profit for the year attributable to owners of A& E AR R HEHF A

the Company ($°000) FEAE & F (For) 620,595 561,502
Number of shares R 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary BEETERR

shares in issue (in thousands) hRE S B (FAR) 1,697,296 1,697,296
Basic earnings per share (cents) BREAXRRRN L) 36.56 33.08
Diluted earnings per share BREERR

There was no dilutive potential ordinary share during the
year (2022: Nil) and diluted earnings per share is therefore
equal to basic earnings per share.
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12

170

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

—  Securities broking — provision of broking services
in securities traded in Hong Kong and overseas
markets, margin and IPO financing services to those
broking clients.

— Commodities and futures broking — provision
of broking services in commodities and futures
contracts traded in Hong Kong and overseas
markets.

— Bullion trading — provision of trading services in
bullion contracts traded in overseas markets.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and
current assets with the exception of unallocated
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include liabilities
and accruals attributable to the activities of the
individual segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
earnings before finance costs and taxes (“EBIT”).
To arrive at EBIT, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as corporate administration
costs.

12
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 /]-J\ "‘;ZB ﬁ % (48 )
(b) Segment information (b)y DEER
2023
—EC-=E
Commodities
Securities  and futures Bullion
broking broking trading Total
HmRk
EE T HERLE EBLEBRS o
$°000 $°000 $'000 $°000
Fr Fr Tr Fr
./ ! | [ | |
Revenue from customers: REXEEZHMA:
— Brokerage commission - ®BEEe 348,578 250,032 - 598,610
— Dealing income LN - - 4,876 4,876
— Interest income from margin financing — # & & & Fl B A 276,863 - - 276,863
— Interest income from IPO financing ~ — BAAREERE
HEHA 777 - - 777
Reportable segment revenue ARESHHA 626,218 250,032 4,876 881,126
Interest income from cash clients RexPHEKA 36,481 - - 36,481
Other interest income HipF 2B A 168,229 28,468 - 196,697
Handling and settlement fees FRERKEER 76,169 23 - 76,192
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) % 5 #% 5 (EBIT) 655,117 141,301 2,355 798,773
Amortisation and depreciation FREERNE
for the year (17,229) (2) - (17,231)
Finance costs B ISR K (132,927) (1) - (132,928)
Additions to non-current segment assets ERRE 2k RB D HEE
during the year 15,306 - - 15,306
Reportable segment assets RESHEE 6,986,752 992,403 29,152 8,008,307
Reportable segment liabilities ARELHEE (5,599,447) (535,710) (10,491)  (6,145,648)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 ﬁ:'l\ "‘;ZB ﬁ % (&)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b)) oHER (&)
2022
“E-—F
Commodities
Securities  and futures Bullion
broking broking trading Total
EHmk
FHEL HERgL E2BRS @i
$:000 $'000 $'000 $000
i it i L
I e
Revenue from customers: REZEFZHWA:
— Brokerage commission -BERe 465,974 225,369 - 691,343
— Dealing income LN - — 10,791 10,791
— Interest income from margin financing — # & & &5 B A 326,135 - = 326,135
— Interest income from IPO financing ~ — BAAREERE
EL N 87,737 - - 37,787
Reportable segment revenue DEERETON 829,846 225,369 10,791 1,066,006
Interest income from cash clients ReRPHAEKMA 51,906 = = 51,906
Other interest income EFSWA 24,420 2,395 - 26,815
Handling and settlement fees FEEREEER 96,560 12 - 96,572
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) % 5 s (EBIT) 672,580 93,184 7,860 773,624
Amortisation and depreciation FRERRNE
for the year (17,089) 8) - (17,097)
Finance costs HBAA (132,865) ) - (132,868)
Additions to non-current segment assets FRRE 2k RB D HEE
during the year 7,958 - - 7,958
Reportable segment assets AREDBEE 8,703,165 1,085,483 29,304 9,817,952
Reportable segment liabilities TRENHEE (6,562,238) (636,323) (12,615)  (7,211,176)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 7 HHE®E)
(¢) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, o0 THREDBUWA - EF - EBEER
profit, assets and liabilities BEEZHE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
$’°000 $°000
Fr T
1
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue Al R & 2 #B A 881,126 1,066,006
Elimination ¥ 4 (341) (542)
Unallocated corporate revenue Ko AR KA 948 2,548
Consolidated revenue FEAEWA 881,733 1,068,012
Profit Y A
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) Al 3R & 9 B & A (EBIT) 798,773 773,624
Finance costs B 75 3K AR (114,202) (124,512)
Unallocated corporate income RO AR A 117,481 115,812
Unallocated corporate expenses KA AR (109,857) (108,710)
Consolidated profit before taxation 4R A B A & A 692,195 656,214
Assets =3
Reportable segment assets AHRE D BEE 8,008,307 9,817,952
Elimination Ea) fﬁ (404,685) (223,715)
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEAREE 125,748 174,277
Consolidated total assets e ﬁ ERE 7,729,370 9,768,514
Liabilities &81&
Reportable segment liabilities s BaE (6,145,648) (7,211,176)
Elimination E| 1,168,476 1,151,688
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEAREE (1,017,784) (1,237,655)
Consolidated total liabilities IREBEEE (5,994,956) (7,297,143)
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ BERRXRHE
Properties Motor
leased for Leasehold  vehicles and Office  Furnitureand ~ Computers
ownuse improvements yacht  equipment fixtures  and software Total
BRRAENE BEEE REREE  BLOERE  BAREE  ZHREH it
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
n T T Tr Tr Tr n
L
Cost: A&
At 1 April 2021 W-F--%BA-A 182,715 56,881 32,529 18,323 11,145 35,480 337,079
Additions AE 21 1,448 3,507 366 178 2417 7,993
Disposals & = (6,984) - (224) (310) (218) (1,736)
Lease modffication HEL: 99,266 - - - - - 99,266
Exchange adjustments B3 - 7 - 9 - 15 3
A Maoh 2022k VZESCRSASTR 22008  é%2 %603 18464 11018 ST 436688
At 1 Apri 2022 RZE-ZFMA-H 262,008 51,352 36,036 18,464 11,013 31,760 436,633
Additions HE 9,535 4,959 8,587 407 132 1,223 24,843
Disposals hE - (2,846) (3,507) (1,174) (1,056) (2,863) (11,446)
Derecognition of right-of use assets X I-BF[F HEEE (16,903) - - - - - (16,903)
Lease modification REEBH 4,025 - - - - - 4,025
Fxchange adjustments EXHZ - (13) - {17) - 2 (57)
At 31 March 2023 RZEZZEZA=1-A 219,565 53,452 41,116 17,680 10,089 36,093 437,995
Accumulated depreciation: ~ ERE#E:
At 1 April 2021 R-B-FRA-A 114,338 44 481 14,997 16,456 10,306 29,985 230,563
Charge for the year EREY 62,006 5945 5,508 900 537 2,645 77,541
Written back on disposals MHERER - (6.984) - (189) (310) (218 (7,700)
Exchange adjustments EZRZ - 7 - 9 - 15 3
__3_1_Ma_f°_h_2_0?2______________ ToACTCA 7MWY A0 I 1083 AT 300435 _
At 1 April 2022 176,344 43,449 20,505 17471 10,533 32,421 300,435
Charge for the year 57,651 6,744 6,740 673 186 2,494 74,488
Written back on disposals NHEREMD - (2,846) (101) (1,169) (1,056) (2,863) (8,635)
Derecognition of right-of-use assets & I- Bz (F BEEE (16,903) - - - - - (16,903)
Exchange adjustments EXHZ - (13) - 17 - )] (57)
M3fMarch2023 & i et e A1002 434 654 16664 963 %01 349,328 _
Net ook value: FEFE:
At 31 March 2023 RZEZZEZA=1-A 62,473 6,118 14,572 1,016 426 4,062 88,667
At 31 March 2022 R_E--%=A=1-8 105,664 7,903 15,031 1,287 480 5333 136,198
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13

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 YM¥ BERRXRE®
(Continued)
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by REREERNE D2 ERAEEEREF
class of underlying asset is as follows: BEommT:
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
—E=-= -
=fg=+—-HB =ZARA=+-—H
$’000 $'000
T T+

e
Properties leased for own use, carried at BREEYWE  RIFEKR K

depreciated cost 7] BR 62,473 105,664
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases HRNERER 2 HEEBA  AIBE N
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: FINNE

2023 2022
—EB-= —_ZF- -

$’000 $°'000

Fr T

1
Depreciation charge on properties leased BRAEWETER S

for own use 57,561 62,006
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7(a)) HEGERNEHF7E) 1,444 1,122
Expense relating to short-term leases and B HAHEE KB HAM12E AR

other leases with lease terms end within & RMEMTEE BB 2 M

12 months 87 278
During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were FARNE 2FRAEEER95350005T (=
$9,535,000 (2022: $27,000), which primarily related to the T §:270007) T ERRIBHEE
capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy HEENCENMCBEEREERM -
agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity BHE_Z-_-—F-A=+—HZHER%
analysis of lease liabilities as of 31 March 2023 are set out MbRELREHEBEINHBESTEFE D7
in notes 18(d) and 23, respectively. B A MY s 18(d) &2.283 °
As of 31 March 2023, there are no leases subject to RZEZ=F=ZA=+—H BMEHLAEY
variable lease payment arrangement. A EHENRETHE -
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BEEE
Debentures
B
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-=
$’000 $'000
Fx T
Cost less accumulated amortisation AR AR 2 18 5,783 5,783
Impairment BB - —
Net book value IR FEE 5,783 5,783
15 OTHER ASSETS 15 Hitt&EE
2023 2022
—EBEC-=HF —E-=
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Statutory deposits with exchanges and RGREEMZEEES
clearing houses 41,843 79,978
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16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

16

FE& UR BR X

2023 2022
—Eg-= [ —

$°000 $000

T T

Accounts receivable from: FEUER kB ¢
— Clearing houses — BER 857,424 1,043,642
— Brokers and dealers — RBREERZE 267,855 402,179
Less: Loss allowance (note 28(a)) W BB BB (B i 28(a) (2,011) (2,539)
Financial assets measured at amortised  Z#E K AT EZ S MEE
cost 1,123,268 1,443,282
Accounts receivable from: FEURBR PR A -
— Cash clients - BerF 382,430 410,185
— Margin clients —HFRERP 5,466,015 7,062,400
Financial assets measured at FVPL WEAFEFAERZ Z
TR EZCERMEE 5,848,445 7,472,585
6,971,713 8,915,867
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BR#R 2T
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable from cash RBEBHRCERBESEFPERIIZ
clients based on the settlement date as of the end of EEBZERETOT
the reporting period is as follows:
2023 2022
—ZE=-= —E- =
$’000 $'000
T T
1
Curent A 41804 73861
Less than 1 month L H11{E A 142,317 166,477
1 to 3 months 12318 A 118,071 79,541
More than 3 months % A 31E A 74,238 90,306
334,626 336,324
382,430 410,185
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16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

178

(@) Ageing analysis (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default. These receivables are secured by
their portfolios of securities. Cash clients are required
to place deposits as prescribed in the Group’s credit
policy before execution of any purchase transactions.
At 31 March 2023, the total market value of their
portfolios of securities was $2,176,486,000 (2022:
$2,430,129,000).

Margin clients are required to pledge securities
as collateral to the Group in order to obtain
margin loans. When determining the fair value
of the accounts receivable at the reporting date,
management evaluate the margin loan portfolios
on a fair value basis by primarily considering the
value of collateral, which principally comprised listed
securities, with reference to the quoted prices, to
the extent of the outstanding loan amounts. At 31
March 2023, margin loans due from margin clients
were current and repayable on demand except for
$166,000 (2022: $146,000) where the margin loans
were past due. $5,000 (2022: $14,000) were past
due for less than 1 month. $7,000 (2022: $3,000)
were past due for 1 to 3 months. $34,000 (2022:
$11,000) were past due for 3 months to 1 year.
$120,000 (2022: $118,000) were past due for over
1 year following the trading suspension of the
pledged securities. At 31 March 2023, the total
market value of securities pledged as collateral in
respect of the loans to borrowing margin clients
and all margin clients were $13,431,769,000 and
$22,710,446,000 respectively (2022: $16,880,241,000
and $25,630,574,000 respectively). Margin loans
that were past due were considered immaterial by
management.

16

FE W BR FR ()
(a) B®IW(E)

USRS EPRFT SN LRI &
REAGEHECER - ZFRBGIERE
BHEAEERE - RRTTMEER
S ReBPFPARAEBZEER
HBEH N E-—=F=A=+—1 -
HEHHE 2 8MER2176,486,000
7T (=T = =% :2,430,129,0007T) °

FREEFARAN S EIKITESHKIHE
MUBRBHFRER - BEERmEAH
FEWBR R A FER - EIEEAAF
BEAEARFHITRERHEET &
MNEZREREFR(EERFE LTE
FOMEE  RELERE  BFUARE
EENERSBE R _T-_=F=A
=+—H ' Ki166000T (—ZF = —
F @ 146,0007T) 2 FFEE BN
FBRABREFZ2HFRERANBE R
B BENREE - 500T (==
F :140007T) B E LR — @ A -
70007T (= & = = 4 : 3,0007T) #
B—Z=={A - 34,000t (&=
F:11,000T) MEBA=—RBMAE—%F -
120,0007T (= & = = £ : 118,000
L) REBRHBLEEFEERG B
B—F R _TE-_=ZF=ZA=+-—
H REBERFTREFPREITT
REFERENRCEBERKEARM
2 EHBTED R A18,431,769,000
JT N22,710,446,0007T (— & = —
F£: 9 Bl A&16,880,241,000C K&
25,630,574,0007%) - MEIFFEBE R
WEEERATERK-
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16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 16 B..En L& E‘E%k(/fg")
(a) Ageing analysis (Continued) (a) BRER D (E)
Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers EREER KLk HE2ER
and dealers are current. These represent (1) pending B BEARRKRBMNEERESH X
trades arising from the business of dealing in BrREEEERS  —RRXR5H
securities, which are normally due within a few days BHHRANIBMRQEEHSE & HE
after the trade date and (2) margin deposits arising BREBZHERER °
from the business of dealing in futures and options
contracts.
(b) Loss allowance of accounts receivable by EWRERREBEEE
Loss allowance in respect of accounts receivable ESER AT E 2 BIWBR K 2 B 18
measured at amortised cost are recorded using an BENBERLE  HAEEEMRK
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that B IE 2 AT REVE B SEERRIN  TERIE
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the T BB EEEERAR M -
loss is written off against the accounts receivable
directly.
17 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 17 HtBEWRIE B2 RFEMFRIE
PREPAYMENTS
2023 2022
—E-= —F=-=
$’000 $'000
Fr T
e
Rental and utility deposits HekKEBRS 16,126 18,851
Prepayments AN R 2,719 5,010
Other receivables H b JE W R IE 21,926 7,595
40,771 31,456
Less: Loss allowance (note 28(a)) B BB E (K i128(E) (916) (29)
39,855 31,427
Included in the above balances are amounts of $2,941,000 MR-ZTE_=F=A=+—H A Lu

as at 31 March 2023 (2022: $1,981,000) which are
expected to be recovered in more than one year.

BARHETHMEEERAF | —T——/ _=FFH

4R 7 FNIE B2,941,000t(ZE = =
1,981,0007T) © FEE N — F UM -

179



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7E SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S BEA - AETIIR)

18

180

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

HERBATEEY
(a BHERFESEEYWERE:

2023 2022
—EBC-=HF —E-F
$’°000 $°000
T Tt
Deposits with banks RITF K 55,567 37,566
Cash at bank and in hand RITAKFERE 448,993 487,185
504,560 524,751
Less: Loss allowance (note 28(a)) B B EEE (K E28(@) (29) (35)
504,531 524,716

The Group maintains segregated accounts with
authorised institutions to hold client money in the
normal course of business.

At 31 March 2023, client money maintained in
segregated accounts not otherwise dealt with in the
financial statements amounted to $7,758,668,000
(2022: $10,374,018,000).

AEERRAARBREBILES,  NAF
EBBRETHEEFES -

RZE_=F=ZA=+—H HFENBEIL
REFEYERVBRREMBLOEREZ
BF &4 A7,758,668,000C (Z T~ — 4 :
10,374,018,0007%) ©
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continuea)y 18 BHERBEEEYW (&)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBANEAELLEEEFEERS
generated from operating activities: ZHER:
2023 2022
—E—-= —E-—F
$’000 $'000
T F7
Profit before taxation R 75 A1 s A 692,195 656,214
Adjustments for: MUATHEELFE:
Amortisation and depreciation BERTE 74,488 77,541
Finance costs B 75 B AR 114,202 124,512
Dividend income B B U A (2,083) (1,607)
Interest income FERATBEAFR R
(excluding interest income from ERNANGE &5
margin and IPO financings) B & 2 F B A) (233,202) (78,722)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) SNEEIE (W) F 8 4,356 (19,600)
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE BER
plant and equipment HEZEE 69 36
Net (gain)/loss arising from disposal of HEZAFEFABRZZ
financial assets at fair value TREEMEAZ
through profit or loss F (W) B R (1,466) 3,373
Net unrealised loss on financial assets at EAFEFAEBZRZ Z
fair value through profit or loss TREECARER
FEE 4,755 23,386
Others Hth 758 7,832
Changes in working capital: EEESHE
Decrease/(increase) in other assets Hu&EER D GEm) 38,135 (1,549)
Decrease in accounts receivable & L BR OB 1,929,538 6,230,913
Increase in other receivables, deposits HEMmERRIE ZE2k
and prepayments TE A R IB 42 0 (9,349) (1,519)
Decrease in amount due from a related [ Ug — 5 B8 B 2 &
company RIER AL - 3
Decrease in accounts payable FE A5 BR 5B (458,934) (127,493)
Decrease in accrued expenses and other J& 5t 59 5z & H fib g 1~
payables HKIER L (34,404) (18,431)
Cash generated from operations CEEBMEHE 2,119,058 6,874,889
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continved) 18 BRERBEZEEBY (%)

(¢) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from ¢ BMEIBHELAMNEBGSZHIER:

financing activities:

Lease Accounts

Bank loans liabilities payable Total
BRITER HESE EEERR @t
$°000 $°000 $’000 $°000
r r r Tr
At 1 April 2021 R-E——FNA—H 11,436,038 67,706 2,061,356 13,565,100
Changes from financing cash flows: BMERSTZEE:
Net repayment of bank loans EBERRITERFE (6,275,874) = — (6,275,874)
Other borrowing cost paid BREMEERA (120,075) - (3,315) (123,390)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BEREERS CERTED - (61,258) - (61,258)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ~ BAHEEMS 2 FI8HH = (1,122) = (1,122)
Changes from operating cash flows: LERe R EY:
Change in accounts payable JEfT BRI - - (127,493) (127,493)
Changes in accrued expenses and EathX kEM
other payable ERFEZE - (251) = (251)
Exchange adjustments ER AR 2,001 = 5,488 7,489
Increase in lease liabilities from entering Rz #AEM
into new leases ENREEE - 27 - 27
Increase in lease liabilities from lease EREEmEM
modification HEAR - 99,266 - 99,266
Interest expenses FEHAZ 120,075 1,122 3,315 124,512
At 31 March 2022 St ~Jfant - 3
=A=+-H 5,162,165 105,490 1,939,351 7,207,006
At 1 April 2022 i S—
MA—H 5,162,165 105,490 1,939,351 7,207,006
Changes from financing cash flows: BERSRZEE:
Net repayment of bank loans BRRITERFE (748,358) - - (748,358)
Other borrowing cost paid EREMEERAR (104,714) - (8,044) (112,758)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHERE 2 ERES - (57,083) - (57,083)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ~ EAREMS 2 FIEHD - (1,444) = (1,444)
Changes from operating cash flows: KER SR 28
Change in accounts payable EREEREE - - (458,934) (458,934)
Exchange adjustments ER AR (4,807) - (16,302) (21,109)
Increase in lease liabilities from entering Rzl #TAEM
into new leases EMAEAE - 9,535 - 9,535
Increase in lease liabilities from lease EREEmEM
modification HEAE - 4,925 - 4,925
Interest expenses FBEX 104,714 1,444 8,044 114,202
At 31 March 2023 RZB==
=A=+-H 4,409,000 62,867 1,464,115 5,935,982
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 18 BERBESEEW ()
(d) Total cash outflow for leases d HERESARLHEE

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for ReREXRMIHEERBERIE:
leases comprise the following:

2023 2022
—EB-= —EF-—
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Within operating cash flows RELEHREREN 87 278
Within financing cash flows REEFHHRESREAN 58,527 62,380
58,614 62,658
19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 RMBARIZRE
At 31 March 2023, the Company had direct or indirect RZEZ_=ZF=ZA=+—8 " AR HMN
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are THBARES EE? RS ZEW
private companies, particulars of which are set out below: BRARYAFARE  FBHINAT:
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company operations paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
AR EMRLEE EEHY Eéé R&RKRK EERAER TEXHR
Direct Indirect
HE Gk
Bright Smart Investment Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI) US$100 100% - Investment holding
BTREARERAT EBRLHES 100% 7t REBR
Marick Investments Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI) US$1 100% - Investment holding
EBRLES 1% REBR
Bright Smart Advertising Company Limited Hong Kong HK$_1 S 100%  Administrative services
BR BT THR%
Bright Smart Asset Management Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100%  Asset management
BTEEEERRAA B 5,000,000/ 7T _services
BEEERRE
Bright Smart Leasing Management Limited Hong Kong HK$10 = 100%  Inactive
BTREERARAA ) 10% 7T TEex
Bright Smart Facilities Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
BIREERERAA B 18T TH R %
Bright Smart Facilities Service Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
BIRERREERAT B BT TH R %
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(B %= B E A

19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

184

P A TTAIR)

Name of company

NAEB

Bright Smart Finance Channel Management
Limited
BTHBRERARAR

Bright Smart Finance Online Channel Limited
BTHEBLERBERAA

Bright Smart Forex Limited
RIBRINERRLA

Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Company
Limited
BTHERAMERAA

Bright Smart Global Bullion Limited
BARRERERLA

Bright Smart Investment Consultancy (China)
Company Limited
BIREZABF(FE)ERARA

Bright Smart Promotion Limited
BTHEEERAR

Bright Smart Property & Facility Management
Limited
BIMERZIEERERAR

Bright Smart Property Management Limited
RTNZERERRA

Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited
RAEHER (BB ARATA

Bright Smart Select Fund OFC
BTRERBAZLHEAT

Charm Capital Limited
BEARAA

Everlasting Source Limited
BYERRA

Place of incorporation/
operations

Issued and fully
paid-up capital

AMALLYEEEE BRORMARRK

Hong Kong
&b

Ho\ng Kong

/
Hong Kong
&8

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
N

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
&b

Hong Kong
BR

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&8

Hong Kong
&b

HK$1
BT

HKS$1
1T

HK$30,000,000
30,000,000 7
HK$214,000,000
214,000,000% 7T

HK$10,000
10,000% 7T

HKS$1
1T

HK$1
BT
HK$1
1T
HKS$1
1T
HK$1,141,000,000
1,141,000,0007% 7T
HK$1
1T

HK$1
BT

HK$1
BT

Attributable
equity interest

G R A 5
Direct Indirect

E# L
- 100%

S 100%

S 100%

S 100%

S 100%

= 100%

S 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

19 RMBRARZRE#)

Principal activities

IERHR

Agministrative Services
THRS

Production and broadcast
finance programs

RfERERMEHE

Forex trading service
MNERSRE

Futures and commodities
broking
HEREmEL

Bullion dealing and
provision of bullion
trading service to
customer

BEBEERMEFRM
EEBRIME

Investment holding

REER

Administrative services

T MR 7%

Administrative services

1B MR

Administrative services

TR MR #%

Securities broking and
margin financing

BrFELLARAE

Investment fund

kEES

Administrative services

TBR

Administrative services

TBUR
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19

20

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19 RHIEBAT 2R E (&)

Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company operations paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
AR EMRUEE E$HE EBERORBEZRE EERARER TEXEK
Direct Indirect
HE B#
]
Glow Dragon Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
BEERAT £ BT THR%
Huge Dynasty Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
RERRLA B BT THR%
Ideal Magic Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
HEERAT B BT THR%
Merit Act Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
REERRT B BT THR%
Rainbow Town Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
AHEERRA ¥ BT THR%
Victor Tone Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
ERAERAT B BT THR%
BT REZA(RINBERAA Hong Kong HK$1,600,000 - 100%  Inactive
(Note) (Wi #) R 1,600,000% ¢ TEeX
Note: It is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under Biat: WATDNIBEREANR LB EEZM
the laws of the People’s Republic of China. A—RHIEBEDLE -
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 20 B AR
2023 2022
—Eg-= P —
$’000 $'000
T T
]
Accounts payable FE - BR 3Kk
— Cash clients —BHeEP 447,948 450,682
— Margin clients - HEREF 892,294 1,017,756
— Clearing houses — BEEAT 1,288 143,022
— Brokers — & 122,585 327,891
1,464,115 1,939,351
All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled FIERMERFERRN —FANEENEARE
within one year or are repayable on demand. KIEE
No ageing analysis in respect of accounts payable is ERENERNEBLE  RROWI &
disclosed as the ageing analysis does not give additional MTYTREIEE WA RBUHBRERD
value in view of the business nature. e
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21

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER 21 BB REMERNKE

PAYABLES
2023 2022
—E=-= —E=- =

$°000 $'000
T Tt
Commission rebate payable FE 1R & Bl B 19,784 35,377
Accrued bonuses JEFHIEAL 6,000 14,643

Stamp duty, trading levy and trading fee ~ BETEIER - KHHER
payables RGE 7,780 12,111
Receipt in advance W FRIAE 528 2,840
Other payables H fth B {4 308 18,164 21,704
52,256 86,675
Included in the above balances are amounts of $608,000 RZEZ=F=A=1+—H  fTALill#&#

as at 31 March 2023 (2022: $794,000) which are expected
to be settled in more than one year.

2 5RIE A608,0007T (ZZF = —4 : 794,000
TT) EEHRN —FEBER -

22 BANK LOANS 22 RITER
2023 2022
—EC-=F ===
$’000 $°000
Fx T
[ [ [ |
Secured loans BEBER
— Bank loans — RITER 3,465,000 4,042,165
Unsecured loans I E R
— Bank loans — IRITER 944,000 1,120,000
4,409,000 5,162,165

All the bank loans are repayable within one year and
classified as current liabilities. The carrying amounts of the
bank borrowings approximate their fair value.

The bank loans as at 31 March 2023 are interest-bearing.
Securities collateral deposited by the Group’s margin
clients was re-pledged to banks to secure loan facilities.

186

Such banking facilities were utilised to the extent of
$3,465,000,000 (2022: $4,042,165,000). The fair value of
the collateral re-pledged to banks as at 31 March 2023
amounted to $7,155,583,000 (2022: $9,093,292,000).

PIARITERANR —FREERDBEAR
RITEE

BAEE - R ¥ 2 FRE{EEEAFEM
=

RIE-_=ZF=ZA=+t-BZRITERS
AR - AEBAREFFEZESFK

?ﬁﬂuuﬁﬁi#ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ LERISERME -
ERAR TRV E B 8 43,465,000,0007T (=
T~ — 4 :4,042,165,0007T) - R-ZE ==
FZA=+—HB BEBFEITZERR
A F {E &7,155,583,000 (T = —
9,093,292,0007T) °
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23

24

BIESETHEERRAR | —F—_—/

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group had obligations under contractual maturities of
the lease liabilities as follows:

As at 31 March 2023
R-Z2-=E=R=+-AH

Present value

23

HEAE
AEEECREHEEBEZAENINPENT
As at 31 March 2022

W-E--FE=ZR=+-H
Present value

of the minimum Total minimum of the minimum Total minimum
lease payments lease payment lease payments lease payment
RERERERE SEEENELE SEHEEFERE SEHESRELE
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
r i T Fr
' |
Within one year -ER 54,322 54,958 54,186 55,629
After one year but within  —F&ERLER
five years 8,545 8,754 51,304 51,793
62,867 63,712 105,490 107,422
Less: total future lease B A RAERLAE
expense (845) (1,932)
Present value of lease HESERE
liabilities 62,867 105,490

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
— DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance and not previously covered by
the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$30,000 (2022: $30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

=FER

24

BERAKERN — EEAKENK
3

=112

=

AEBBEEBRHMEABEETEEN A
BEESEREKRMNREEERERRAE
X ERERFRRF SRE 2B B4 iR
FlMEAEeHE((RESHE) - RES
FrEI AT REMREREE - ABULETA
B - RERESHTE  BEREEES
BAKEBMRBEWRA Z5%M 5 8 E
R ME DA ARSI A 30,000 (ZE ==
£ :30,0007T) & LR - sEIHRANEHE
RESR °
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 HMEMBRRARZFAER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) (Tax recoverable)/current taxation in the (a) ZEAPBRARZ(TEREHE)
consolidated statement of financial position BN HA B TE $8
represents:
2023 2022
—E-=F T —F
$’000 $'000
Fr T
'
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FABRBFNEHAX
expense for the year B 70,598 96,153
Provisional Profits Tax paid BT E &R SR (73,149) (114,398)
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax relating &1 FE &8
to prior year F 15 B 45 24 47 =
(2,504) (18,245)
Represented by: DTy EEERT:
Current taxation Bl HA 7 18 6,718 3,462
Tax recoverable AR B 7 18 (9,222) (21,707)
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 MEMBURRRZFABEH &)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)
(b)(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities represents: L) EEHEEEREEE:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities REEMBRARER CBELERIE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial (BE)/BEAKRT»RFEREEH M
position and the movements during the year are as T~
follows:
Differences
between
depreciation
allowance and
Credit loss Accrued the related
allowance bonuses  depreciation Total
REER RERRE
B it HERE2ER EH)
$000 $000 $000 $000
Tr r r i

1 e
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities UTREMELZEEHE

arising from: (EE)/&f:
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE--§¥MA-H (280) (1,509) 1,521 (268)
Credited to consolidated statement of R A 2 AR ERA

comprehensive income (note 8(a)) (H#8a) (146) (861) (545) (1,552)
At 31 March 2022 W-B--f=f=+-A (426) (2,370) 976 (1,820)
At 1 April 2022 R-ZE--fMA-A (426) (2,370) 976 (1,820)

Charged/(credited) to consolidated REAZERERNE/
statement of comprehensive income (Gt A)(#7:28/2)

ot 82) 8 1,374 (438) 1,019
At 31 March 2023 W-®-zEzfA=+-A (343) (996) 538 (801)
(b)(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (b)(ii) B2 4R & BF & AR R &k 2 B ER

financial position

2023 2022

—ECZ=F —E-=
$°000 $’000
Fr T

) A
Net deferred tax asset recognised in the R 4R A B # Ak L & &

consolidated statement of financial MRAZELHRIBEEE
position FE 801 1,820
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 EX - #FEERE

190

(a) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the year
are set out below:

(a) EREARBIZ2EH

ARG AN S AREH F 8
R A2 R R A 25
% o RATEARE B A EH R EH)
RERMZEBHEERIDT -

The Company b N/NE]
Share Retained
capital Share premium profits Total equity
IS R4 EE REEF ER4E
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
i i i i

At 1 April 2021 R-E--%¥MA-H 509,189 738,020 8,387 1,255,596
Profit and total comprehensive FEREHREZARSLE
income for the year - - 228,011 228,011
Dividend paid during the year FRRAZKEE - - (220,649) (220,649)
At 31 March 2022 R=B-Zf
ZA=t+-H 509,189 738,020 15,749 1,262,958
At 1 April 2022 W=E--fMA-A 509,189 738,020 15,749 1,262,958
Profit and total comprehensive FRGEHREZANG LS
income for the year - - 1,370,212 1,370,212
Dividend paid during the year FRRAZHEE - - (1,357,837) (1,357,837)
At 31 March 2023 R-B==§
ZA=t-H 509,189 738,020 28,124 1,275,333
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26

(Continued)

(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of

the Group attributable to the year

Dividends declared in respect of the current

year are as follows:

BEX RERKRE®)

by BRE

() AEEEZRREEAFE
BB A
RAFEETERZIKRBMT:

2023 2022
—EC-=E —E-=

$°000 $°000

Tr F

Final dividend proposed of 50.0 cents
(2022: 10.0 cents) per ordinary share for
a total of 1,697,296,308 issued shares
in 2023 (2022: 1,697,296,308 issued
shares) by the Group

Special dividend paid of 70.0 cents
per ordinary share for a total of
1,697,296,308 issued shares in 2023
(2022: 1,697,296,308 issued shares)
during the year

AEER T _=FaH#

1,697,296,308 % & % 17 A% 19
(ZEBE=-—4F:
1,697,296,308% = % 17 ik
MEFREREKETR
E®BAR50.01 (== =%
10.01ll1)

848,648 169,730

BB =EA#

= IPAN
1,697,296,308[% 2 AT 7
—F — — .

(— <= — —
1,697,296,308 % E % 17
B RAFEE IR

BIESETHEERRAR | —F—_—/

P B8 I 58 B 70.011L

1,188,107 =

The final dividend (partly paid out of the share
premium account) proposed after the end of
the reporting period is subject to approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and has not
been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

=FER

AEBEZZIRARE (B
P tn )it 8 BRI 3% ) BRF IR A
REEERRBEANE LHE
BHAEE B ER®EH
RERREE -
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(b) Dividends (Continued)

260 BEX - RERKRE#®)

(b RE#E)

(i) AEEESRREMLLE-FK

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Group attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the

(ii)

FEZEARE(FREHER

year:

Final dividend in respect of previous
financial year, approved and paid during
the year, of 10.0 cents (2022: 13.0
cents) per ordinary share for a total of
1,697,296,308 issued shares in 2023

TRAT) -
2023 2022
—EC-=HF —E- =
$’000 $°000
Fr F

F-UBEER_T_=F
& #£1,697,296,308 2
BIOIRH( 2T
1,697,296,308 % E % 17
Bfn) kERPREBGRLE

(©)

192

(2022: 1,697,296,308 issued shares)

B10.0M (Z T = =% :13.0

—_—s

WD ERNE A RIR ) 169,730 220,649
Share capital (0 B=E
2023 2022
—ECZE —E-C
No. of shares  Nominal value No. of shares Nominal value
RAEE EE Bt A
$'000 $000
i T

Authorised ordinary shares of SREE030TH
$0.30 each: EELEER:
At 1 April/31 March REA-R/
=A=+-8 10,000,000,000 3,000,000 10,000,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR:
At 1 April/31 March ROE-B/
=R=+-8 1,697,296,308 509,189  1,697,296,308 509,189

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

EBERFBEAERURBTIREIRZ
BERERRARAREG ERHERK
IR—F - REARBRBEEMS -
FBEEBRAZARFMA
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve

(i)

(i)

(iii)

BIESETHEERRAR | —F—_—/

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the
Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to
be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations as well as the effective portion
of any foreign exchange differences arising
from hedges of the net investment in these
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 2(q).

Merger reserve

On 29 June 2010, the Company acquired
the entire issued share capital of Bright
Smart Futures & Commodities Co., Ltd,
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited and Merit Act Limited through Bright
Smart Investment Holdings Limited from
their respective shareholders. The difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired as a result of the
restructuring exercise and the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof is treated as an equity
movement and recorded in “Merger reserve”.

=FER

260 EX - RERKRE#®)

d RFEMEEREH

(i)

(i)

(iii)

IR 105 B
RERASHEQRE  ARA
Z B a BRI AR MR X
ok B R - BT iR =2 B B 5
AR IR AR BEIR - ARE)
Bt NEHEEBERETEN
HEBER -

E L E B
EXRREREMBEELERE
BINEBHBERER ZIIMNEZE
K EE R FEFIEEFRE
mE S 2 EAERINEZ &R
2 o BRERERRME2(0)FrE
ZEETBEREIE -

]
R-ZE—ZTFXA-ThB &
RRAEBABTREERBRA
RIARA BERERERAT
BAEFEHFBEB(EB)BRAA
MErBRAERAGB ZEBBRER
EZERR 22D BITHRA -
AELAZHmEKEZHEA
Al BRAEEEARDE EITIE
EBREZEBRAEEMEZ =5
BIEEZEHERE WL AlE
PriEEIR -
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued)

(e

194

(iv) Distributability of reserve

The reserves of the Company are distributable
to the equity shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2023, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was $766,144,000
(2022: $753,769,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. In
addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group licensed
by the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”)
are obliged to meet the regulatory liquid capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR”) at all times.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group ensures each
of them maintains a liquid capital level adequate to
support the level of activities with sufficient buffer to
accommodate for increases in liquidity requirements
arising from potential increases in the level of
business activities. During the financial year, all the
licensed subsidiaries complied with the liquid capital
requirements under the FRR.

260 BEX - RERKRE#®)

d) REEERENE)

(e)

(iv) 2k f#
BEARRZHABER KR
AR WHEBEREEL DR
BARRARAEENRATERB
BHRIEBEHARET @ AQF
ARERKRRD RS -

W-E-=F=A=+—H 7
HAORTFARBERIRE ZHF
#4258 A766,144,0007T (= F
— 4 :753,769,0007T) °

EXERE

AEBEEREAZEZABRRRER
SERSEREZRS  WEBBERE
[\ B K EE N RS TE BIA R IA G
ERARGHE #EBR/BRER
B3 o & B A #2545 A A% KA
o BESRMEEHERZES
(BEgNRUER 2 AREE TH
BRI AREMNRBRNAES LY
B (FMBRER) SR (THEBRERRALD
ATZEERDESRE -

AEEEGLERRGTLREEENRN
Bl ErREHEERREEKFEZR
BARRERERZEEANRA TR
HREREZERSTFE YEHEE
RERRZBEHENEBIFLH
EopFEMNBATME  AEEE
REMBRARYRF[FESCEEAE -
RUSHEBEE  UREEHED
AREEBBEEMIIMHERDPESZ
FREFABIFEREMSEN - RAMK
FE MAEREMBEATSETHR
BRARAUABTZRBESRE °
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27 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2023 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

27

Contracted for

BAREE
R-BZ=F=A=+-AHRNPHR
REBEHEZEREAEDNT
2023 2022
—EC=F —F - =
$’°000 $'000
T ¥
552 5,378

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency
and equity price risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and
the financial risk management policies and practices used
by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
amounts due from clients, brokers and clearing
houses. The management has a credit policy in place
and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an

ongoing basis.

BABLSEREBERAR | —T——/ —=FF®W

28

MEEREERAFE

AEBZAREBELRESE RBHED -
MR SNE R BB R o T XA K E
FrEY cZERERASELEENLER
SR BRAREERRKE -

(@ FERR

AEBZEERREIZREBEE
F -BLk@EEMzER - EEE
ARERE  UHREBEZEFEER

G o
AA
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

196

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all clients
(including cash and margin clients) based on
underlying collateral. Cash clients are required to
place deposits as prescribed in the Group’s credit
policy before execution of any purchase transactions.
Receivables due from cash clients are due within the
settlement period commonly adopted in the relevant
market practices, which is usually within a few days
from the trade date. Because accounts receivable
from cash clients relate to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of default, there
has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are considered fully receivable, and
the prescribed deposit requirements and the short
settlement period involved, the credit risk arising from
the amounts due from cash clients is considered low.
The Group normally obtains liquid securities and/or
cash deposits as collateral for providing financing to
its cash and margin clients and has policy to manage
these exposures on a fair value basis. Margin loans
due from margin clients are repayable on demand.
For commodities and futures brokerage, an initial
margin is required prior to opening transaction.
Market conditions and adequacy of securities
collateral and margin deposits of each cash account,
margin account and futures account are monitored
by the management on a daily basis. Margin calls and
forced liquidation are made where necessary.

28

BEEREERAFESE)

(a)

FERRE)

FRUEEFERTE FIEEF (B
ReMAFREFP)HAERBHER
an & ZAEREEFE - RBITEM
BEXSH  BREeXPARAEEZ
EERKMIAEARE - BYR
EEFPRBADRBENSENEE
RAZEERRIE  —RARHH
BERA - ERNEBURRESEPER
WhEROPEBERRLEZEF
EEERUBEAES  ABMER
WE BRI 2HKE - MEEEFFRE
KSR EERE  HRKREEP
RRELZEERREN ~EHE
—REAERE RFREFIRER

BER /SR FRIERMRSRMHE
BMEZEMR  YTARRRAFE
ERnERER - RBUFREPZARE
ERBEREREE -BAMR#E
RLexBms  RAEMAXNER
Be EEREESEEBREREMRAURK
EREHRP FREFPRHPERFPZ
EFEAmERESELRN WA
FE QEBEARIFSNBRITHA -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a)

BrESETRHEETRAF |

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and
clearing houses, credit risks are considered low as
the Group normally enters into transactions with
brokers and clearing houses which are registered
with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation in
the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk as credits are granted to a large population of
clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 and measures the

related loss provision by 12-month ECLs or lifetime
ECLs.

T/ Z=5FR

28

BHEEREERAFE®E

(@)

FERRE)

HARARE—RED M EEE# BT
AERNBERHZELLEEME
TR WEWEREREERERRX
ZEERBER -

HRAKERREZEFPREHEE - &
VTEEREFEERR -

AEBYERHEMEMER B
SAKREEmHEERR -
AEECRMBBH B RS ERF

A RREAEREEEEXEH
BHEEERFENEBHERS -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIKREKREERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) @ FERRE)

The movements in the expected credit losses during FAMNEEBEZEHNT:
the year are as follows:

2023 2022
ZBIzF S
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit- (not credit- (credit-
12-month ECL impaired) impaired)  12-month ECL impaired) impaired)
2HES 2HES 2HEH 2HEH

1288 FEER FEER 1268 A FEBE FEF#
RAGEEE (REERE) (CREHE BHEEEE  (REREE) (EEEEE)

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
I n I r r T
1 e
Accounts receivable ERER
At 1 April RrEUA-H 2,539 - - 1,248 - -
(Reversal)/recognition of loss (&) /A BREKE
allowance (528) - - 1,291 - -
At 31 March R=A=1t-H 2,011 - - 2,539 - -
Other receivables, deposits HftiEWFE  #E R
and prepayments RftRE
At 1 April REA-H 29 - - 31 - -
Recognition/reversal) of loss 132/ (B E) B8 % &
allowance 887 - - 2 - -
At 31 March R=A=t-A 916 - - 29 = =
Financial assets at REERATEZ SR
amortised cost EE
At 1 April REA-A - - 6,542 - - -
Recognition of loss allowance % B 1E & & - - 399 - - 6,542
At 31 March R=A=t-A - - 6,041 - - 6,542
Cash and cash equivalents BE&REEZEY
At 1 April REUA-H 35 - - 437 - -
Reversal of loss alowance ~ ERIBEEE (6) = = (402) - -
At 31 March R=A=t-A 29 - - 3 - -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b)

BIESETHEERRAR | —F—_—/

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, and to ensure compliance with FRR. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding in
the short and longer term. Except accrued expenses
and other payables amounted to $608,000 and lease
liabilities amounted to $8,545,000, all of the Group’s
liabilities are expected to be settled within one year.
The carrying amounts of all financial liabilities equal
the contractual undiscounted cash outflow, except
for bank loans of which the contractual undiscounted
cash outflow as at 31 March 2023 amounted to
$4,410,669,000 (2022: $5,162,519,000) and lease
liabilities as set out in note 283.

=FER

28

BRREEERAFEE)

(b)

REBE SRR

AEEAEHELERAESAZH
TEHE  BERESEREFAEMNERE
EHFE ARRTAVHERBRL
AEBZBRRREREEEMRE
HRHESHFE WETHEERE
BREFEHREHEBEREAR
MHERBIARAEMERE - E
NEEPRHESFE -

REBZBK AT HEE &R &85
RBESLTE  BREBEZHRS R
BeRENENREEHETE - BEST
A 2 K H h FE {F 5L IE608,0007T M AR
& A1E58,545,0007T4)  NEB Z B
ABEEBHER —FRNEN - TSR
ABEZEMEMRSREFORIRE
SREE  HPTRERITER  E
RZE-_=F=A=+—B20:i%
FEHIRIR &R 2 A4,410,669,0007T
—FT - —4%#:5162,519,0007T) * 7K
TEESHI A T3 AEaE -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28

200

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

(i) Interest rate profile

The Group charges interest on its margin clients
and cash clients with outstanding loan amounts
on the basis of its cost of funding plus a mark-
up. Financial assets (such as margin loans and
deposits with banks) and financial liabilities
(such as bank loans) are primarily at floating
rates. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are not subject to significant interest rate

risk.

(© FM=mEk

(i) F=E4HAse

@B -

BRAREERAFEESE

AEBZEESRASMKE
DICENEE-S ¢
ReEPERBAE - EBEE
(MFREREBTEFOEE
BEBMRITEF) TBRY
BHEFFE - AKEEZHBAR
RERSREALEEHE KT

ZHREFPR

The interest rate profile of the Group at the TREIAEERBEEHZ
reporting date is as follows: FlEBE:
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
$’000 $'000
Fr FT
1
Assets BE
Deposits with banks RITEX 55,567 37,566
Statutory deposits with exchanges XRSRBEHEHMZEATES®
and clearing houses 39,493 77,628
Accounts receivable from FEW AT 18 2 BR 3K
— Margin loans —fFREX 5,466,015 7,062,400
— Cash clients with outstanding — MAREEERH
loan amounts Be®P 334,626 336,324
Financial assets at amortised BHENAGTEZSR
cost BE 943 1,443
5,896,644 7,515,361
2023 2022
—=E==-= —E-
$’000 $’000
Fr Tt
1
Liabilities &a1&
Secured bank loans EEARITERK 3,465,000 4,042,165
Unsecured bank loans EEARITERK 944,000 1,120,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 62,867 105,490
4,471,867 5,267,655
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

BIESETHEERRAR | —F—_—/

Interest rate profile (Continued)

Except for financial assets at amortised cost
amounted to $943,000 (2022: $1,443,000), all
the above interest-bearing financial assets are
receivable on demand or within one year.

Expect for lease liabilities amounted to
$8,545,000 (2022: $51,304,000), all the above
interest-bearing financial liabilities are repayable
within one year.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2023, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before
taxation would have increased by approximately
$14,248,000 (2022: $22,477,000).

As at 31 March 2023, if interest rates had been
100 basis point lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before taxation
would have decreased by approximately
$13,979,000 (2022: $21,620,000).

The increased/decreased profit before taxation
results mainly from higher/lower interest income
from deposits with banks, statutory deposits
with exchanges and clearing houses and margin
loans and higher/lower interest expense on bank
loans. Other components of equity would not be
significantly affected by the changes in interest
rates.

=FER

28 BIERBEERAFEE)

(¢ F=EREbE)

(i)

(ii)

MERBE (&)
B%Hﬂ%ﬁﬁ&ZKJEZ%ﬂé
E943,000L(= T = =
1,443,0007T) 5 + FT A £ i qu
BERMEER/MIZERIE K
R—F R E -

T2 & & 158,545,000 (- &

— — 4 :51,304,0007T) 9b 0 BT
ELiztEEMmEEAR —F
NEE -

HRE DN
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁmmﬁyzﬁhz‘mzﬁ
ST A R EF100ME E A
RIS 5= 181 27 B 756 Al dh ) 8 3B
#914,248,0007C (Z T = =
22,477,0007T) °

RZEBE_=F=R=+—8"
EMBEMEHRBERTE LB
ST WA R T 100 E E 2
BI 7S &= @ 2 Bk B A0 s 7 R A
43138,979,000L(ZF = =
21,620,0007T) °

%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ/ﬁQ%%ﬁ
RBITER REEMRZ
&mﬁ%&ﬁ?% A LIPS
A B A R ARITERA S
BB, WA PTE - s
E@@&%“Kﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
MEERTE
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

202

(©)

d

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before taxation that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the
reporting dates and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to interest
rate risk at the reporting dates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2022.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
arising from financial instruments that are
denominated in United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”),
Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Australian dollars (“AUD”)
and British pound (“GBP”). As the Hong Kong dollar
(“HKD”) is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between
the HKD and the USD as insignificant. In respect
of financial instruments denominated in other
currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept at an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances. The management
monitors all the foreign currency positions on a daily
basis.

Exposure to currency risk and sensitivity analysis
The Group’s significant net exposure to RMB, SGD,
JPY, AUD and GBP at the reporting date and the
estimated impact to the Group’s profit/(loss) for
the year had the foreign exchange rates of RMB,
SGD, JPY, AUD and GBP changed at that date are
illustrated below. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the HKD and the USD
would be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of the USD against other
currencies.

28 BIERBEERAFEE)

(©)

MEmEBRE)

(i) BREDH(E)

LT HRERESTETEREN X

PR EAHLE BEEE
AREFFEAEEMFAER
WMEAHERNAEEEE M X
ERzefmTE S4AEE
%m@mﬂﬁEZ%F“E

DM DEARE T —F A
Zﬁ/i TT °

d) IME = B

AEBAAZIINERBREZERE U
Eir ARE 3N - HERT
MG EzZemIT A ARET
EZEITH MAKERA - BLHE
EX2HREREBRA BB o FLA
EMmERTFE eI AMS ' A%
EEESZZMNE R TRAEEREA
S EINEARIRE IR EIER - &
AR BB F BB A 8 2 2K o
EEEGHEIEMBINERE -

SN E B AR R BRE DA
WSR2 AR  #pgoT - A
B BRITMESEXGHEY A&
ERHmEAMUARRE - ST
HE -RBTkEZEMATERERR
B AREBAEEFANZET,
(J%TE)ZEW SARBIIRAT - gk
ERRABTEXTTERHBIE
I%ERE@ S REB 2T ME
MEBERZE -

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2022/23



Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S BHEBH - B TIIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BMIKREKREEBERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) d) IERBEZ)
2023 2022
g Sy -
Appreciation/ Appreciation/
Net asset (depreciation) Effect on Net asset  (depreciation) Effect on
in foreign in foreign  profit before in foreign in foreign ~ profit before
currency currency taxation currency currency taxation

WoMiEZ  HEAE/ BRIA MNEHEZ  NERE/ HEHA
BERE (BfE) #EAewg BEFE () &BWFE

$'000 % $000 $:000 % $:000
7 % 7 7 % 1
1 e O
RMB AR¥ 143,556 5 7,178 158,397 ) 7,920
(5) (7,178) (5) (7,920)
SGD FME 5,521 5 276 4,671 5 234
(5) (276) (o) (234)
JPY AE 7,124 5 356 6,932 0 347
(5) (356) (5) (347)
AUD B 3,659 5 183 6,204 5 310
(5) (183) (5) (310)
GBP R 2,213 5 111 2,864 5 143
(5) (11) (o) (143)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change BRESTEBRIINEERZEEHE
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re- ERREHAERNRELIHEHA
measure those financial instruments which expose SEARIIMNERR SR ITE - %
the Group to foreign currency risk at the reporting EHAMDRAR-_ZE - —FHRE
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for AT o

2022.
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28

204

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIKREKREERAFEE)

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(e) Equity price risk (e)

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from listed equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, which have been
chosen based on their longer term growth potential
and are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations.

The following table shows the approximate change in
the Group’s other components of equity in response
to reasonable change in the value of listed equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:

2023

—B-ZEF
%
%

i 18 /= B

AEEBAZBERDBER/REAYE
AABmZEMEEN ETBRAR
BZBREZBRER -

AEBNMETREDEBT BB IR
£ DRBEREIRREDIE
VTERERRBARFERARESHEN -

TREINADBEREAFEFAR
HLEREENLTRAREEE
HRWAEEHEHNARE S H
AR E D EER O EE:

Effects Effects

on profit on profit
before tax 2022 before tax
IR B AR R SRR BANE R
hEe kS iE%

$'000 % $'000

i % Tr

Change in the relevant equity price risk B R (BB & 516

variable: 2%
Financial assets at fair value through A FEABR 2

profit or loss: EREE:
Increase #10 10
Decrease W (10)

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk in
relation to collaterals held for cash clients and margin
clients. Detailed analysis of the fair value of collaterals
held is set out in note 16.

6,601 10 4,958
(6,601) (10) (4,958)

AEETHHERARREEFL TR
EFFANERRNORERR - F
FER A T ES B DT E R
16 ©
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

®

Fair values measurement

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuation: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a finance team performing
daily valuations for the financial instruments.
The team reports directly to the chief financial
officer.

BARHETHMEEERAF | —T——/ _=FFH

28

BRREEERAFEE)

®

AREIE

(i)

BAFEFENERHEE

RFEER
TREINBERRRETEM
HEFESIDBEREEMB R
SERFREIAFEFFEIFR
REN=ZFRFESFRREN
AEBEMIARFE RF
B ENFEIBEDHZ2EUT
BEEMERBABENTER
MEREBEEE:

.« EMEE:RERE-
®eME(DERAERR
8 10 £ 8 B SR BR 1 8 0
REREREHENHL
F18

s FE_MMHEE ERAF-K
BAECIRENEFE R
MA B R AE) YR
EREETAERBAE
AREMNATE TABRR
BWABREBELIERMSH
EH B AR

« EEREEERAEEF
TERGABHEHLT
&

AEEFERE B HEBFAS

BMTASXETHE ZEK
BEERRAYBEEER -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND BEEREERAFEE)

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

28

& 2DFEFEE

(f) Fair values measurement (Continued)

206

() Financial assets measured at fair value () EBELATFEFTENEMEEE)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RFEEERE)
Fair value measurement as at Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2023 categorised into 31 March 2022 categorised into
RZB-=£ZA=1-8HK WZZZZF=f=F-RH
LTEFEAER ATEHENER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£-% £ £=4 g8 £24 224
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
O fF f fL FR
1 S
Recurring fair value measurements S AT &
Asses: BE:
Financial assets at far value through A FE AR 2
profit or loss SREAE
— Listed securities - tHE% 66,012 - - 49,354 = =
— Futures contracts - B8AD - - - 201 = =
~ Accounts receivable - BUER - 584719 1,252 - 7471300 1,285
During the year ended 31 March 20283, HE-Z-__F=A=+—H1
accounts receivable of $33,000 transferred out FF - $33,000BKRERERNE=
of Level 3. Except for the above, there were no EBeEd -BRLaiEN F—E
other transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, ME BN EE AT AE
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s FEoREBA S EBHREEZE -
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of REBZBEDREEEEZ
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting WMERARERLATFESRERE
period in which they occur. ERAHEE -
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in (i) F-BLAFEFEMAMEE

Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of fully collateralised accounts
receivables from cash clients, margin clients
and subscription in new shares in IPO is
determined by the fair value of collaterals,
capped by the principal amount and accrued
interest, without discounting.

FERBAE

2HEERRZIKEREEP
FREFARBERAMEE
iz B AR R 2 A FETIR
BEHmZAFEEE LRAX
ERREFMNE - ATRER -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BMIKREKREEBERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement (Continued) ) DFEEFEE)
(iii)y Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (i) WIHEAAFEIENEMEE
carried at other than fair value keaBEzAr¥E
The carrying amount of the Group’s financial $EI&W$§HB§E’J%%§IE
instruments carried at cost are not materially ZHEREMEEHER-_T-_=F=
different from their fair values as at 31 March A=+—BRZZ-__%=A
2023 and 31 March 2022, =+—BHZAFEYEEXRE
®o
(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g EHEtHmEERSRERS
liabilities
() Financial assets subject to offsetting, (i) ZIEE BFEIELHDS
enforceable master netting arrangements or HOUBED Fﬁzﬁmﬂﬁ BE

similar agreements

As 31 March 2023
RZBZZ8ZA=+-H
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial

financial assets
liabilities ~ presented
Gross offset in the inthe  Related amounts not offset

amount of consolidated consolidated in the consolidated statement

recognised  statement  statement of financial position

financial ~ of financial  of financial ~ Collateral Financial

Type of financial assets assets position position received instruments  Net amount

R&4

BHRRR &4
E#e MERREZ  EERGRMEMRK
BREREH CEISR 252¢R i Pl k3

SRHEEES BESE  BE4E  EEFE chERR S$RIE 5B
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
I Iz Iz T I I

| e
Accounts receivable due from ERLEER R

clearing houses 2074846 (1,828,377 246,469 - (1,288) 245,181
Accounts receivable due EURFZER
from clients 7,320,729 (1,473,338) 5,847,391 (5,847,119) - 272

9,395,575 (3,301,715 6,093,860  (5,847,119) (1,268) 245,453

BAESTHEERRAF | —F | Z=EFR 207



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7E SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B S BEA - AETIIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIEREERAFE R
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g BEHEREERERAEEHE)
liabilities (Continued)
() Financial assets subject to offsetting, (i) ZEE LFEIIZEEDS
enforceable master netting arrangements or HOUBBRNARzeMEEE)

similar agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2022
RZE--%=f=t+-H
Gross
amountof  Net amount
recognised  of financial

financial assets
liabilities presented
Gross  offset in the inthe  Related amounts not offset
amount of  consolidated  consolidated in the consolidated statement
recognised statement statement of financial position
financial of financial of financial Collateral Financial
Type of financial assets assets position position received  instruments  Net amount
R

BHERRR A
Bz  HBHRZ  LERGAMEMRK
ERRcE CERER 2.2 BEIABLE

SREEER BERE BEEE BESE EBlUAR £BIE FE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
I i i i T T
1 Oy S
Accounts receivable due from EREE 7B
clearing houses 2,616,597 (2,313,026) 303,571 - (143,022) 160,549
Accounts receivable due BUEFZER
from clients 0402075 OI2464  TATOSN (747032 - 186

12009572 (4325490) 7,774,082 (7,470,325) (143,022) 160,735
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BMIKREKREEBERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g E#HsmEEREREE#E)
liabilities (Continued)
(i)  Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (i) ZIMeE BFEIEZHSR
enforceable master netting arrangements or HOUBEARzemEE

similar agreements

As 31 March 2023
R-®-=#=A=1-8
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial

financial liabilities
assets offset  presented
Gross in the inthe Related amounts not offset in
amount of consolidated consolidated the consolidated statement of
recognised statement of statement of financial position
financial financial financial  Collateral Financial
Type of financial liabilities liabilities position position pledged instruments  Net amount
waa

bV E R&A
B¥z BEARE  LERGAHEMRE
BERER CEISE 2h2eR it pA ] A
SRERER ERIE  EESE  AEFE CRERR  SRIZ FE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T I

Accounts payable due to EREEHZER

clearing houses 1,829,665  (1,828,377) 1,288 (1,288) - -
Accounts payable due EREPZER

to clients 2,055,401 (1,473,338) 582,063 - - 582,063

3,885,066 (3,301,715 583,351 (1,288) - 562,063
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIEREERAFE R
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g HEETRMEEREREBEE)
liabilities (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (i) SHEPE LFEIIRHED
enforceable master netting arrangements or HOUWBEARzemE8E&E(#E)

similar agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2022
RZE--%=f=t+-H
Gross
amountof  Net amount
recognised  of financial

financial liabilities
assets offset presented
Gross in the inthe  Related amounts not offset in
amountof  consolidated  consolidated  the consolidated statement of
recognised  statement of  statement of financial position
financial financial financial Collateral Financial
Type of financial liabilities liabilities position position pledged  instruments  Net amount

BHERRR A
Bz  HBHRZ  LERGAMEMRK
ERRcE CEIER  2l.ER BERBLE

SREEER BfRE  AEEE  BEFE EMEER $BIA 58
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r r r r T T
1 A
Accounts payable due to EREEHZER
clearing houses 2,456,048 (2,313,026) 143,022 (143,022) - -
Accounts payable due EREPZER
to clients 2,585,171 (2,012,464) 572,707 - - 572,707
5,041,219 (4,325,490) 715,729 (143,022) - 572,707
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BMIKREKREEBERAFEE)
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g E#HsmEEREREE#E)
liabilities (Continued)

(iii) The tables below reconcile the “net amounts (i) TRAGEHBERIERET
of financial assets and financial liabilities ZeMEERESREBE 2 FE]
presented in the consolidated statement of (an £ XX prak) B 4 & B 3 AR OR
financial position”, as set out above, to the REVEWERARREMSERR
accounts receivable and accounts payable ZH R

presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position

2023 2022
—E-= —E - —F
$’000 $°000

T T

1
Net amount of financial assets after 40 F #il iK §4 1% & &t & &

offsetting as stated above R 6,093,860 7,774,082
Financial assets not in scope of WHEEFEHRE
offsetting disclosure TEEE 879,864 1,144,324
Loss allowance EiE A (2,011) (2,539)
6,971,713 8,915,867
Net amount of financial liabilities mEiKEHE SR AE
after offsetting as stated above F R 583,351 715,729
Financial liabilities not in scope of ~ W IFIKEIWEHE >~
offsetting disclosure AR 880,764 1,023,622
1,464,115 1,939,351
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29

30

212

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, corporate guarantees
provided by the Company in respect of banking facilities
granted by authorised institutions to its subsidiaries
engaging in securities and futures broking amounted
to $16,494,000,000 (2022: $15,724,000,000). As at 31
March 2023, the subsidiaries of the Company have utilised
$3,579,000,000 of these aggregate banking facility (2022:
$4,063,694,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors did
not consider that any claim would be made against the
Group under any of the guarantees. The Group has
not recognised any deferred income in respect of the
guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably measured
and the transaction price was nil.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(@) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 9 and certain of the

29

30

ZAREE

RMERR  ARBIRNBEEFRPEL
LEBZHBARBRURBEREZRT
B & %% 1116,494,000,000C (= F = —
15,724,000,00070) Z AR ER - RZF
—ZHFZAZ+ B ARRZHEAR
EERAZERITRLE 8% 23,579,000,000
T (ZZT = 4 :4,063,694,0007T) °

RSB  BERARETERY A%
MR HEARROBRTA - ARERZ
ATFETHARIERZHBAT B4
K EL A S AREREMELLN -

EXBEALRS

BRUBEEREMEORELHEALER
S REBETBETIERBEALRS °

(@ FTEEEASHMH
AEETEZEBEABZHM(BHEN

AEOFT I BB M AN X B E F M FE10AT
BEAETESFHEEI Nz

highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10, is as BE)WT
follows:
2023 2022
—EC-=F —=E-=
$’000 $°000
T Fi
.|
Directors’ fees = Yikn 711 687
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & ~ 3285 & E #4187 20,975 22,052
Discretionary bonuses )15 16 4T 7,942 19,988
Contributions to Mandatory R B ATE® M
Provident Fund 57 72
29,685 42,799

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 7(b)).

Bl at ATE T AR K &
7(0)) °
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EXAEAELRZ &)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Loans to directors and entities connected with b ESERHEEEZEEEEENER
directors
Yip Mow Lum and  Hui Yik Bun and Chan Wing Shing, Szeto Wai Sun and
his connected his connected Wilson and his his connected
Name of borrower entities entities connected entities  Yu Yun Kong entities
EEMR FEWR RXHR ARETR
EHALE HEEER HEEER ABEER e HEEER
|
Relationship with the Company Director of the Director of the Director of the Director of the Director of the
Company Company Company Company Company
and entities and entities and entities and entities
connected to director connected to director - connected to director connected to director
HANACBE FARESRHEE ANAEEREEE FNFAESRHEEE ANAEZ FRAESREES
EREEE EBEEE EREER EREEE

Terms of the loan

BRIEH
— Terms of the loan Repayable on demand Repayable on demand Repayable on demand Repayable on demand Repayable on demand
- BREREEER BAREXER BREXER RREXER BREXER BREXER

— Facilities granted

- ERIBE
— PO loan 4,000,000,000 100,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
- BRAFEEER
— Margin loan 1,000,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
- FREX
— Interest rate
L
— IPQ loan - - - - -
- BRAFBEER
— Margin loan HIBOR plus 1.5% per  HIBOR plus 3.5% per  Hong Kong Dollar HIBOR plus 4% per  HIBOR plus 4% per
annum - Hong Kong  annum -Hong Kong  Prime Rate plus annum annum
Dollar Prime Rate Dollar 5% per annum
plus 5% per annum  Prime Rate plus
5% per annum
- FREH BEROTRAERS BARORERS BrsBEHE EEROAEHKE BEROAEHE
101.5%5 7 % - M3S%EHIE - ns%EF|% 4% EF|1% 4% 7%
AETRBENE  AnREEHE
ME%E A X % =
— Security Marketable securities Marketable securities  Marketable securities  Marketable securities  Marketable securities
- &5 BEES HEES BEES BEES BEES
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EABEALTRSZ (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Loans to directors and entities connected with (b) EERHEEZEFHEERNER
directors (Continued) (#&
Yip Mow Lum and ~ Hui Yik Bun and Chan Wing Shing, Szeto Wai Sun and
his connected his connected Wilson and his his connected
Name of borrower entities entities connected entities  Yu Yun Kong entities
EEMR FEWR BABR AERHTR
BRARR HBERR ABERR RPERR REH ABERR

|
Balance of the loan
ENEH
— At 1 April 2021
- RZERZ-£@A-H
— IPO loan - - - - -
- BRAREEER
— Margin loan 382,488,000 1,424,000 - - -
- FRER

— At 31 March 2022 and
1 April 2022
- RZBCZZF
ZA=Z+-Bk
“E-"FNA-H
— IPO loan - - S S S
- BRARBEER
— Margin loan 313,609,000 8,505,000 - 47,000 -
- HRER

— At 31 March 2023

- RIE-ZEZA=1+-H
— IPO loan - - - - -
- BRAREEER
— Margin loan 253,215,000 1,989,000 - - -
- FRER

Maximum balance outstanding
AEERBER

— During 2023
-R-B-=f
— PO loan 100,000 50,000 50,000 = =
- BRAREEER
— Margin loan 389,986,000 9,374,000 - 81,000 449,000
- FREH

— During 2022

- WZE-—F
— IPO loan 2,059,977,000 4,544,000 4,099,000
- BRAREEER
— Margin loan 532,883,000 9,169,000 19,000 50,000 -
- FRER
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30

BIESETHEERRAR | —F—_—/

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(©)

Balances with related parties

(i)

(if)

(iil)

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had accounts
receivable from related parties of $255,204,000
(2022: $322,161,000) and accounts payable
due to related parties of $54,903,000 (2022:
$77,353,000) respectively which was arising
from the Group’s ordinary course of business
in securities broking, margin financing and
commodities and futures broking. Accounts
receivable/payable from/to related parties are
set at the same terms as those normally offered
to third party clients.

As at 31 March 2023, included in the other
receivables, deposits and prepayments were
rental and office management deposits of
$12,645,000 (2022: $16,570,000) which had
been made to related companies owned by Mr.
Yip. These amounts were unsecured, interest-
free and repayable upon expiry of the respective
leases.

As at 31 March 2023, right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities arising from the lease
arrangements with related companies owned
by Mr. Yip were amounted to $46,529,000 and
$46,768,000 (2022: $93,058,000 of right-of-use
assets and $92,782,000 of lease liabilities). For
the year ended 31 March 2023, the depreciation
of the right-of-use assets and the interest
expense of the lease liabilities were amounted to
$46,529,000 and $1,168,000 respectively (2022:
$50,561,000 and $817,000 respectively).

=FER

30

EXBAEAEIXRZ®)

(0 EBEEALZER

(i)

(if)

(ii)

RZE-_=F=A=+—8"
AEBEWRBEALTZERS
255,204,000 (Z & = =
322,161,0007T) & JE 1+ 8 & A
+ 7 R A54,903,0007T (— =
— — % :77,353,0007T) * 9 A
REANEBASESPET
ZEHERL TRBEARSE
mEEELER - EREE
ATZERER ENBEALZ
ERE-—RREETFE=ZFEF
HIEFKAER -

R-BE-_=F=A=+—H8 H
thEW R IE - ke RTEN KA
512,645,000 L (Z = — 4 :
16,570,0007T) & 7 [ 5t £ AT
BAEZEAB L RINZHEE R
WAETEERS  WEKEA
EE i e NN 2 < [ 1
HEmEEEE -

W-E-=F=A=+—8"
MELEFBER 2 BE AT 2
MEZHEmMEEZFTRBEE
K & & & 5 5l 246,529,000
JCK46,768,0007T (ZE = —4F :
2 B\ A {5 FA#E & & 93,058,000
N8 & (&92,782,0007T) ° &
BT -=F=ZR=+—HItHF
- ERAEEETEREERE
B FH X5 B £46,529,0007T &
1,168,000 (=& = —4F : /3 Al
#£50,561,0007T % 817,0007T) °

215



Notes to the Financial Statements

B IS AR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B S BEA - AETIIR)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(©

(d)

216

Balances with related parties (Continued)

(iv)

On 9 July 2018, the Company entered into
a loan facility letter with World Mix Limited
(“WML”), a company which is 100% beneficially
owned by Mr. Yip, for the provision of
$1,000,000,000 revolving loan facility from WML
to the Company for the Company’s general
working capital purpose. The loan bore interest
at HIBOR plus 2.75% per annum, is unsecured
and repayable on demand. No interest expense
was incurred during the year (2022: $Nil). As at
31 March 2023, no drawing was made (2022:
$Nil) under the facility.

On 9 July 2018, Bright Smart Securities
International (H.K.) Limited (“BSSI”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a loan facility letter with China
Finance (Worldwide) Limited (“CFW”), a
company which is 100% beneficially owned
by Mr. Yip, for the provision of a revolving loan
facility of $1,000,000,000 by CFW to BSSI for
BSSI’'s general working capital purposes. The
loan bore interest at HIBOR plus 2.75% per
annum, is unsecured and repayable on demand.
No interest expense was incurred during the
year (2022: $Nil). As at 31 March 2023, no
drawing was made (2022: $Nil) under the
facility.

Other transactions with related parties

Brokerage income of $797,000 (2022: $1,287,000)
and interest income of $10,957,000 (2022:
$6,620,000) was received from the directors of the
Company, their close family members and related
companies owned by a director of the Company
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business of
securities broking, commodities and futures broking
and margin and IPO financings. Commission rates
are set at the same level as those normally offered to
third party clients.

30 EXBAEALRZ 5

(©)

(d)

BREEALZERE)

ivy RZZE—NFELANH  KTRF
HittmERAR (tt4m] - Ex
2 BEREBZRAREIMN—
MEFMEHE AR FEM
BRARFRIREBRESRME
1,000,000,0007t A {E A A Al 2
—REEEL BREEAR
77 R 2 37 B n2.75% F ) R &t
B BEEERAREREE -
FRATEELAFNERAI(CE
TZFE)c RZBEZ=F=
A=+—8 #BEREZERE
REMKECEZZF: %
TT) °

RZE—-—N\FEANHE BF
BEBBEEBBRAA(R
FTHEE] ARBRZEEE2ER
Baa) BhEE B (BEER)ER
ARI(FEBBE] EXE2E
EnEAEZRRDRIL—MMEXR
BEERG  NAEBETRGH
MBS EFRERRENRE
1,000,000,0007T * VA4 A4 &
FRE—REBEES - BEL
BEHBRITRZERE IN2.75% F
FEFBE AEEBERARE
KEE - TR EEEF BHFH
S(ZEZZF:Fxn) - R=ZF
—ZHEZA=1+—H8 #MER
BZEBRERIREMKEAE(ZE
ZZFE) e

BHEEALZHMEXS

& 40 W A797,000C(Z 8 = =

1,287,0007t) & # B Uk A10,957,000
JTL(ZF = —4 :6,620,0007T) i K&
EREEBTETESFLL Bak
BHERKLURFEREAARAEE
MEEBEMEARRES FEZR
NRERERARR —ZEEHERF
AR A EUER o AR BIZE— W
F=FEPIERME ZERKFEHET
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31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 31
FINANCIAL POSITION

DNEEE M B RR K

At 31 March 2023 R-EBE-_=F=A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—4F
Note $°000 $’000
oka Fr Tt
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R ERAR ZI&E 19,887 19,887
Deferred tax assets FEIEFTAE E 1 1
Total non-current asset  : FrmeEERE 19888 19888
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ NI 2,365,073 2,363,739
Other receivables, deposits and HEMERRE ek
prepayments SEER RO 5,000 =
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEFEEY 12,797 10,913
Total current assets REBEEHAE 2,382,870 2,374,652
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b BT 3R 415 456
Amounts due to subsidiaries NGRS 181,040 11,000
Bank loans RITER 944,000 1,120,000
Current taxation Bl HA %4 18 1,970 126
Total current liabilities REBEERAE 1,127,425 1,131,582
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,255,445 1,243,070
NET ASSETS EEFHE 1,275,333 1,262,958
EQUITY =
Share capital J% 7 26 509,189 509,189
Share premium &0 E 26 738,020 738,020
Retained profits R 5= F 26 28,124 15,749
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,275,333 1,262,958

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 26 June 2023.

Yip Mow Lum
EEM

BARHETHMEEERAF | —T——/ _=FFH

Directors

5=

REEeN-_ZE-_=F A+ Bk

I 5 T 2 o

Hui Yik Bun
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32

33

218

P A TTAIR)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate
holding company of the Company as at 31 March 2023 to
be New Charming Holdings Limited which was incorporated
on 6 July 2009 in the British Virgin Islands under the laws
of the British Virgin Islands and beneficially owned by Mr
Yip Mow Lum. New Charming Holdings Limited does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2023

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2023 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements: Classification of liabilities as current or non-
current’

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Making
materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies '

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors: Definition of accounting
estimates '

Amendments to HKAS 12, /ncome taxes: Deferred tax
related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction '

32

33

BEERBRER

NG

EERR R-E_=F=ZA=+—8"
ARRZEEER T&rﬂT““TEﬁ
ERHERERRR > ZARIR_FTTA
Etﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ LEERBEEBRE X
ﬁ%Z&WE%%i YHEXMNELEE
SR  MRAEBRARABL EREA

HARERAZHBHRE -
RBE-Z2-=F=ZA=+—H
HFECEMERRERZ
Be] - MEARZREBIEELEZ
S &

=

BENEYHHRARTIEAY  FE Q6
REEEMRBE_T-_=F=A=+—
BIEFERAREN BT RENEFBHE
NEBZZRET R —BHER(FAEY
BHREEFATRRRAED]) - ZFER]
BREAEEREEHER 2 THRIE -

BEEGFEUNFBIRUET X)) HFH XA
EH-BEDERBRBELIFREG

EREGFENFIRET )T FHX A
ZHERBEEVBERELENEL REF2%R
TEHEAX I HBAEET - B ot R E

EB G ERESHR(E ETMA%B?%
B 1A BB R RS ET - ®A 1A A BIE
% 1

BEBGHERE12R (BRI R FEH - 4

X GEL A EER B B8R AE L
IE 1
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(Br = HIEBIN - LABTIIR)

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2023 (Continued)

U Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

BABLSEREBERAR | —T——/ —=FF®W

33 RBE=-ZE=-=F=H=+—H

HEECEMEERERZ
B HEARREATRELEZ

43¢ )

l REE-_=F A HAZBHABZEx
HIFR A K

AEBEENGEZFETBABRIEE
RPEELEZFE - BEBH  A5ER
REBZFET TR ZEAMBERE
EREATE -
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Five-year Financial Summary
IFMBERE

Year ended 31 March
HE-A=t-ALEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Results ES - —g-=f —%-zZ S ZEZTE  ZE-NE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEL THL TEL TEL
[ ! [/ [ [ | |

Revenue Yo A 881,733 1,068,012 1,285,201 864,017 830,305
Profit before taxation B AR A 692,195 656,214 817,188 528,911 499,185
Income tax FEH (71,600) ©04712) (113,283 (57,939) (58,257)
Profit for the year FRE 620,595 561,502 703,905 470,978 440,928
Other comprehensive income A2 E K& 285 (157) (293) 233 250
Total comprehensive income for the year R 2 E N & AE 620,880 561,345 703,612 471,211 441,178

As at 31 March
R=ZBA=+-H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Assets and Liabilities BERERE ZE-=f —%--§ ZZZ-% ZZZ%F ZT-N%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T TiEx FHL FEL TEL
[ ! [/ [ [ | |

Current assets MEEE 7,589,335 9,541,311 15,663,569 6,198,745 7,725,443
Non-current assets ERBEE 140,035 227,203 194,818 260,390 125,898
Total assets BELE 7,729,370 0,768,514 15,858,387 6,459,135 7,851,341
Current liabilities nEEE 5,985,803 7245045 13,719,716 4,490,487 4,928,034
Non-current liabilities EneasE 9,153 52,098 7,996 66,342 17
Total liabilities BEAE 5,994,956 7297143 13,727,712 4,556,829 4,928,051
Net assets BERE 1,734,414 2,471,371 2,130,675 1,902,306 2,923,290
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